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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark
One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-36709

Sientra, Inc.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Girart

Delaware 2C-555100C
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (IRS Employer Identification No.)
Incorporation or Organizatiol

420 South Fairview Avenue, Suite 2C
93117

Santa Barbara, California (Zip Code)
(Address of Principal Executive Offict

(805) 562-3500
(Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Gode

Indicate by check mark if the registranaiwell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Ribeof the Securities Actyes O No

Indicate by check mark if the registranot required to file reports pursuant to Secti8ror Section 15(d) of the AcYes O No



Indicate by check mark whether the registr (1) has filed all reports required to be filbgd Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securi
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 moifthnsfor such shorter period that the registrans wequired to file such reports),
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsHe past 90 daysyes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the regrdtihas submitted electronically and posted oonatporate Web site, if any, every Interac
Data File required to be submitted and posted pumisto Rule 405 of Regulation 548 232.405 of this chapter) during the prece
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegit was required to submit and post such fil¥®s No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofimiguent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulat®i (§ 229.405 of this chapter) is |
contained herein, and will not be contained, tolibst of registrant's knowledge, in definitive prax information statements incorporatec
reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any amerent to this Form 10-K[xl

Indicate by check mark whether the regitis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated i nonaccelerated filer, or a smaller repori
company. See the definitions of "large accelerfited, "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporticgmpany" in Rule 1212-of the Exchange Ac

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated filerd Non-accelerated file& Smaller reporting compariy
(Do not check if a
smaller reporting compan’

Indicate by check mark whether the regigtis a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-thefAct). Yes O No [X

The registrant did not have a public floatthe last business day of its most recently derag second fiscal quarter because there w
public market for the registrant's common equitypfsuch date. As of March 13, 2015, there wer8241949 shares of the registrant's com
stock, par value $0.01 per share, outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of theegistrant's definitive Proxy Statement relatingt$o2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incogbed by referen:
into Part Il of this Annual Report on Form XOwhere indicated. Such Proxy Statement will bedilwith the U.S. Securities and Exche
Commission within 120 days after the end of thedigear to which this report relates.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K containswfardlooking statements within the meaning of SectioA 2 the Securities Act,
amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21fhefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetheoExchange Act. These forward:
looking statements involve risks and uncertaingieswell as assumptions that, if they never mateeiadr prove incorrect, could cause
results could differ materially from those exprebkee implied by such forward-looking statements.

Forwardeoking statements are often identified by the efseords such as, "anticipate,” "believe," "maypiight,” "could,"” "will," "aim,
"estimate," "continue," "intend," "expect," "plart the negative of those terms, and similar exgioas that convey uncertainty of future ev
or outcomes to identify these forwdibking statements. These statements are basdtedretiefs and assumptions of our management
on information currently available to managemenictsforwardlooking statements are subject to risks, uncertgnand other importa
factors that could cause actual results and thangirof certain events to differ materially from dué results expressed or implied by ¢
forwarddooking statements. Factors that could cause ofriboite to such differences include, but are notited to, those discussed in
section titled "Risk Factors' included under Part I, Item 1A below. Forward#ow statements in this Annual Report on FormKLiclude
but are not limited to, statements about:

. our history of net operating losses and uncettaiegarding our ability to achieve profitability;
. our dependence on sales of silicone gel bregstints to generate a significant amount of oursaés;
. our reliance on a foreign, sole source, thuedty to manufacture and supply our silicone gebbt implants, tissue expanders

other products;

. our limited operating history and any difficultieacountered by us as a result of being a compatyiaats commercialization;

. our ability to successfully commercialize our protiy

. our inability to operate in a competitive industmd compete successfully against competitors thee lgreater resources tl
we do;

. pricing pressure from customers and our congrstit

. concern about the safety and efficacy of oudpuots, which is based on limited long-term clinidata;

. the failure of our products to achieve and naimtnarket acceptance;

. our inability to expand our sales force and reéifg programs;

. the productivity of our sales representatives ability to achieve expected growth;

. our inability to retain a high percentage of oustaumer base;

. any inaccuracies in our assumptions about the bireatant market;

. our inability to protect our intellectual property;

. our failure to comply with the applicable governrrsmegulations to which our products and operatiare subject;

. the accuracy of our estimates regarding expensésates, capital requirements and needs for additfinancing;

. our expectations regarding the period during whiehqualify as an emerging growth company unded@®BS Act; and

. our use of the proceeds from this offering.

We caution you that the risks, uncertamtid other factors referenced above may not coathiof the risks, uncertainties and ot
factors that are important to you. In addition, egmnot guarantee future results, level of actiyiigrformance or achievements. Any forwarc
looking statement made by us in this Annual Repart~orm 10K speaks only as of the date of this report. Ex@ptequired by law, v
undertake no obligation to update any forwhroking statements, whether as a result of newrinédion, future events or otherwise, after
date of such statements.
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PART |
ltem 1. Business
Overview

We are a medical aesthetics company comditt making a difference in patients' lives byarding their body image, growing their self
esteem and restoring their confidence. We werededrto provide greater choice to boasttified plastic surgeons and patients in nee
medical aesthetics products. We have developedadiportfolio of products with technologically difentiated characteristics, supportet
independent laboratory testing and strong clinidal outcomes. We sell our breast implants and&tréissue expanders, or Breast Prod
exclusively to board-certified and boaadmissible plastic surgeons and tailor our custaseevice offerings to their specific needs, whiat
believe helps secure their loyalty and confidedt®se advantages have allowed us to increase aglenhshare each year since we entere
market in 2012.

Our primary products are silicone gel bréaplants for use in breast augmentation and breasnstruction procedures, which we offe
over 150 variations of shapes, sizes and text@esbreast implants are primarily used in elecfiv@cedures which are generally performe
a cash-pay basis. Many of our breast implants pmate one or more differentiated technologiesluitiog a proprietary higlstrength
cohesive silicone gel and proprietary texturingnbled TRUE Texture. Our breast implants offer ardesbalance between strength, si
retention and softness due to the higlength, cohesive silicone gel used in our manufangy process. TRUE Texture provides texturinghu
implant shell that is designed to reduce the inoigeof malposition, rotation and capsular contnactWe also offer breast tissue expander:
a range of other aesthetic and specialty prod\i¢esdo not have any patents or patent applicatiouistely on trade secrets, proprietary know
how and regulatory barriers to protect our prodacis technologies.

Our breast implants were approved by th®. Bood and Drug Administration, or FDA, in 2012skd on data we collected from
ongoing, longterm clinical trial of our breast implants in 1,78®men across 36 investigational sites in the Wn&éates. Our clinical trial
the largest prospective, longrm safety and effectiveness pivotal study of &irémplant patients in the United States. The clihidata w
collected over a five-year followp period demonstrated rupture rates, capsularamote rates and reoperation rates that were c@iiigatc
or better than those of our competitors, baseduwncompetitors' published siear data. In addition to our pivotal study, ounichl data i
supported by our Continued Access Study of 2,49me@min the United States. We have also commissianedmber of bench trials run
independent laboratories that we believe furthenatestrate the advantages of our breast implantstbwse of our competitors.

We sell our Breast Products exclusivelpdard-certified and boaradmissible plastic surgeons, as determined by therfan Board «
Plastic Surgery, who we refer to as Plastic Surge®hese surgeons have completed the extensivé yealt plastic surgery residency trair
required by the American Board of Plastic Surgéithile aesthetic procedures are performed by a wétge of medical profession:
including dermatologists, otolaryngologists, olr#t&ins, gynecologists, dentists and other spet&lithe majority of aesthetic surg
procedures are performed by Plastic Surgeons.i®l8sirgeons are thought leaders in the medicahagss industry. According to t
American Society of Plastic Surgeons, or ASPS etlage approximately 6,400 boardrtified plastic surgeons in the United States.dafkek t
provide Plastic Surgeons with differentiated segsjancluding enhanced customer service offeriagen-year limited warranty that is the bes
in-the-industry based on providing patients with targest cash reimbursement for certain oytaafket costs related to revision surgeries
covered event; a lifetime no-charge implant replaeat program for covered ruptures; and our indufétsy CapCon Care Program, or
Program, through which we offer rtvarge replacement implants to breast augmentptitients who experience capsular contracture v
the first five years after implantation with our @oth or textured breast implants.
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We commenced sales of our breast implamtthé United States in the second quarter of 2@&. net sales were $44.7 milli
$35.2 million and $10.4 million for the years endBécember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. @it loss was $5.8 millio
$19.1 million and $23.4 million for the years end®ecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Our Market

The overall market for medical aesthetiogedures is significant, and awareness and acaptaithese procedures is growing in
United States. According to ASAPS, in 2013, consunime the United States spent approximately $1Rliémon aesthetic procedures over
including both surgical and non-invasive cosmatatments. Of this amount, more than $7.2 billi@swpent on aesthetic surgical procedure

Breast augmentation surgery remains thdingaaesthetic surgical procedure by dollars anaibar of procedures in the United Ste
According to ASAPS, over 313,000 primary breastnaegtation procedures and 55,000 revision augmentgtiocedures were performec
the United States in 2013. These procedures praxdmetic solutions generally to enhance breastasizl shape, correct breast asymmetri
help restore fullness after breastfeeding. Fordiresconstruction, ASPS estimates that approxim&@J000 procedures were performed ir
United States in 2013. These procedures are acsiiggilution generally used to restore a breasety normal shape and appearance follo
a mastectomy and typically utilize a breast tissygander prior to implantation of a breast impl&#sed on the number of procedures rep
by ASAPS and by ASPS, and our estimates of avesallieg price, implant mix and implants per proceguve estimate that the U.S. ma
for breast implants and breast tissue expandeeseebed $600 million in 2013. Based on data from ASARd ASPS, between 1997 and 2
the number of breast augmentation and breast rerootien procedures has grown at a compound argraavth rate of approximately 7.3
and 4.4%, respectively. We believe several fadogscontributing to the ongoing growth of thesecpdures, including:

. the introduction of new technologies and produotthe market, such as anatomically-shaped irtglan
. medical professionals increasingly promoting adgthpeocedures;
. a growing number of patients proactively seekinbdwe aesthetic procedures performed to enhanoebthdy image, grow the

self-esteem and restore their confidence;

. a greater awareness among patients who have umdergastectomies in recent years about the breeshstuction optior
available to them;

. changes in laws now requiring insurance covefageome post-mastectomy breast reconstructioh; an
. an increasing number of patients who are at higk of developing breast cancer seeking prophylantistectomies and bre
reconstruction.
Our Opportunity

We believe a significant opportunity existgshe U.S. marketplace due to the high barriersritry in the U.S. breast implant market
the historical lack of product and service innoeatior Plastic Surgeons.

For more than 20 years prior to the FDArapal of our breast implants in 2012, only two c@njgs manufactured and distributed bt
implants in the United States. We believe that thisket concentration is largely a result of thasiderable costs and risks associated wit
lengthy regulatory approval process required byRDBé@, which has created a significant barrier teneim the U.S. breast implant market.
new breast implants require pmearket approval, or PMA, from the FDA before thewyrbe marketed in the United States. The |
application process is lengthy and uncertain, &aedRMA application must be supported by valid difienevidence, which typically requir
long-term
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follow-up of a large number of enrolled patients,veell as extensive technical, prknical, clinical and manufacturing data to dentosis
safety and effectiveness. At present, we are narewf any ongoing clinical studies in the Unitadt&s for silicone breast implants other 1
those posapproval studies being performed by us and ourlivw& competitors. We believe that in the near tétis, likely that the compani
currently providing silicone breast implants in theited States will continue to be the only comparservicing the U.S. silicone breast img
market.

We believe the rigorous FDA approval precasd the existence of only two competitors inh®. market have historically contributec
a lack of technological innovation in the U.S. tateianplant industry resulting in limited productaites. Until recently, surgeons in the Un
States were only able to purchase basic round thiraptants from our two U.S. competitors, while geons outside of the United States v
able to purchase technologically-advanced roundasagiomically-shaped breast implants.

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe that we are well positionedaket advantage of opportunities afforded by curmeatket dynamics. By focusing on prodt
with technologically differentiated characteristic®emonstrating strong clinical data, offering m@mduct choice and providing servi
tailored specifically to the needs of Plastic Sorge we believe we can continue to enhance outiposn the breast implant market. (
competitive strengths include:

Differentiated silicone gel and texturing¢hnologies. We incorporate differentiated technologies iato breast implants, including
proprietary highstrength, cohesive silicone gel and proprietaryuigixg branded TRUE Texture. Our breast implanterod desired balan
between strength, shape retention and softnessodtee gel used in our manufacturing process. Wievrethe beneficial properties of «
breast implants using higttrength, cohesive silicone gel arise both fromdi@racteristics of the gel itself, as well asdhéue integration «
the gel with our implant shell. Inside each of bueast implants, the unique way that the gel adhteréhe shell creates additional strength
shape retention. This allows us to deliver implaht have strength and shaping capability witlsautrificing the desired softness. In addit
TRUE Texture technology provides texturing on tmpliant shell that is designed to reduce the inadesf malposition, rotation and caps!
contracture. We do not have any patents or papiications, but rely on trade secrets, proprietargw-how and regulatory barriers to prof
our products and technologies.

Strong clinical trial outcomes. Our clinical trial results demonstrate the safend effectiveness of our breast implants. Owak
implants were approved by the FDA based on dataolected from our ongoing, longrm clinical trial of our breast implants in 1,788mer
across 36 investigational sites in the United Stafaur clinical trial is the largest prospectivendterm pivotal study of breast implant patie
in the United States and we have published theysafed effectiveness data that we collected oviveayear follow-up period. Our clinic:
data demonstrated rupture rates, capsular conteacites and reoperation rates that were compat@lolebetter than those of our competit
based on our competitors' published six-year data.

Innovative services that deliver an impralveustomer experience. Our customer service offerings are intendeddcommodate al
anticipate the needs of Plastic Surgeons so tlegt ¢hn focus on providing better services to tpatients. For example, we provide Ple
Surgeons with three warranty programs. Our ten-ligated warranty is the best-in-thedustry based on providing patients with the lai
cash reimbursement for certain out-of-pocket coeltsted to revision surgeries in a covered event. lifetime nocharge implant replacemt
program provides patients replacement devices énetbent of a covered rupture. Our C3 program isndnstry-first, noeharge implar
replacement program for breast augmentation patight experience capsular contracture within tret five years after implantation with ¢
smooth or textured breast implants. We also prosjecialized educational initiatives for both Aa8urgeons and patients to educate 1
about our technology, products and services andggeo
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greater security and confidence in choosing ouadirenplants. In addition, we provide a streamlinediring, shipping and billing process
is tailored for Plastic Surgeons to help enhane# firactices.

Board-certified plastic surgeon focus. We sell our Breast Products exclusively to Hezertified and boar@dmissible plastic surgec
who are thought leaders in the medical aesthatihssiry. This helps ensure that our products apgainted by the most highlskilled surgeor
in the field. We address the specific needs oftll&urgeons through continued product innovatexpansion of our product portfolio ¢
enhanced customer service offerings. We believiesénauring the loyalty and confidence of Plasticg@ons is essential to our success anc
our association with Plastic Surgeons enhancesredibility and aligns with our focus on makingiffetence in patients' lives.

Proven and experienced leadership teamWe have a highly experienced management tedmthtthe corporate and operational le
with significant experience in the medical aest®industry. Members of our senior management teenich consists of ten executiv
including our founder and chief executive offickligni Zeini, collectively have more than 125 yearsnedical aesthetics industry experiel
Plastic Surgeons value working with a team comgriskhighly skilled professionals who havedepth knowledge of the industry and
understanding of their needs.

Our Strategy

Our objective is to become a leading previdf differentiated medical aesthetic products sebices tailored to meet the needs of Pl
Surgeons, allowing us to deliver on our commitntenénhance and make a difference in patients'.livés are currently focused on grow
the breast implant and breast tissue expander msaske our share of them in the United Statesjredd to leverage our capabilities into 1
or complementary aesthetic products or technologed new geographic markets or market segmentsachieve our objective, we
pursuing the following business strategies:

Create awareness of our differentiated taologies, products and services with Plastic Sumge@nd consumers. To date, we ha
focused most of our marketing efforts on Plasticgans to promote and create awareness of theitseeobbur products. We believe t
investing in expanded marketing initiatives willMeaa positive impact on our business. We offer atiagal initiatives exclusively to Plas
Surgeons through our Sientra Education Forum. Vigeige this education through iBook applicationspimars and online forums, at natiol
regional and local plastisdrgery meetings, as well as through preceptorshifes plan to expand our recent initiative to edeaainsume!
considering breast augmentation or breast recangiruabout our technologies, products and servicedrive adoption of our products. !
have also partnered with entities such as Real&#&lélp Plastic Surgeons reach a broader audignpetential patients and allow them to o
increased education, confidence and comfort tepttiseeking an aesthetic procedure.

Enhance our sales capabilities and markefiprograms to drive adoption of our products. We intend to increase our direct s
capabilities through the hiring of additional, expaced sales representatives and support staffb&lieve that continued expansion of
sales team will allow us to broaden our markethesed educate a broader group of Plastic Surgeotisecbenefits of our products.

Invest in clinical studies and peer reviesvarticles with key opinion leaders. We intend to continue to invest in clinicaldies in orde
to provide published peer reviewed articles thaipsut the clinical benefits of our products anchtemlogies over those of our competitors.
believe our relationship with Plastic Surgeons amnd continued focus on providing differentiated guots and services will allow us
leverage our existing capabilities to increasestare of the breast implant market specifically tredmedical aesthetics market generally.

Broaden our product portfolio and launch meproducts and services. We plan to continue to develop products thalr@ss the unm
needs of Plastic Surgeons and patients by levegamin innovative technologies in combination witlr cegulatory and product developnr
expertise. We have a number of new Breast Produncter development with different characteristicd aonfigurations. We believe these
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expanded product choices will allow Plastic Surgetmnpotentially achieve better outcomes for thatients.

Expand to new markets. We are pursuing regulatory approval for ouratémplants in Canada and intend to expand irédCtanadia
market upon receipt of such approval. We regulavigluate additional expansion opportunities anthénfuture may also expand our busi
to cover new markets and geographic territories.

Selectively pursue acquisitions. We may selectively pursue domestic and int@nat acquisitions of businesses or technologied
may allow us to leverage our relationships withsktaSurgeons and our existing commercial infrastme to provide us with new
complementary products or technologies, and allswoucompete in new geographic markets or markgineats or to increase our ma
share.

Our Products

Our portfolio of products has been spealfictailored to the needs of the Plastic Surgasaserve. We believe that our broad portfoli
products with technologically differentiated chagaistics enable Plastic Surgeons to deliver beitktomes for their patients.

Breast Augmentation and Breast Reconstruction Pradis
Breast Implants. We offer the following breast implants:

. Anatomically-shaped texturedA full line of textured, anatomicallghaped HSC+ breast implants, all of which incorfeoau
high-strength, cohesive silicone gel and TRUE Textechnology. Our anatomicalghaped implants are engineered for s
retention and feature a gradual uppete slope and distributed volume that mimics tharacteristics of a natural breast. T
also provide a desired balance between streng#pestetention and softness and are designed tmemhissue adherence
reduce malposition and capsular contracture. Dubdainique relationship between our implant gel aar implant shells, o
anatomicallyshaped implants have enhanced ability to retaiin #epe without sacrificing the desired softné¥s. offer thes
anatomically-shaped implants in three configuratioround-base, classic-base and oval-base. Ourdiloase implants a
available in eight volumes, our classic-base imiglame available in eight volumes and our dvade implants are available
three projection profiles and 25 volumes.

. Round textured. A full line of textured, round HSC breast implanall of which incorporate our higdtrength, cohesive silico
gel and TRUE Texture technology. Our textured, tbimplants maintain softness and are designedharae tissue adherel
that reduces malposition and capsular contracWe.offer these textured, round implants in threejgmtion profiles: low
moderate and high. Our low projection implantsarailable in 15 volumes, our moderate projectioplants are available in
volumes and our high projection implants are até#lan 14 volumes.

. Round smooth. A full line of smooth, round HSC breast implard, of which incorporate our higbtrength, cohesive silico
gel. Our smooth, round implants are designed twvelefull upperpole aesthetic results without compromising sofin¥ge offe
these smooth, round implants in 17 volumes with enat® projection and 18 volumes with high projettiddditionally, in the
fourth quarter of 2014, we introduced implants kkde in two new projections and 30 new volumes.

Breast Tissue Expanders.We offer a full line of breast tissue expandemnsst of which are marketed as ACX, in 25 différgimapes ar
sizes that include single and double chamber tisgpanders. Our double chamber tissue expandermagee to the marketplace and fea
technology that was designed to allow controlled differentiated expansion of breast tissue. Oea$rr tissue expanders are used in
reconstruction and implanted during or after thenpletion of a mastectomy and before the patientdmamigh tissue to adequately cov
breast implant. Our breast tissue expanders angaiary devices
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intended to aid in the process of recreating tismverage to allow for the placement of the fimaplant to reconstruct the breast.
Other Products

We also offer a range of other aesthetitipcts that have received 510(k) clearance fronirw, including:

. body contouring and other implants, including ghlitepectoral, calf, facial and nasal implants, aadal stents, all made fr
single pieces of silicone elastomer;

. silicone elastomer oval carving blocks that canshaped and sized by surgeons to address deformitged by traum
congenital and other deformities or cancer therapy;

. scar management specialty products under the ivaaddel that use a compound of biocompatible, médjcade silicone gel
sheeting specifically formulated to treat or prewearious types of scars;

. temporary, single-use, salifided breast sizers that can be used to help ifjetiie correct style and size implant for
individual patient; and

. non-reast tissue expanders, which are temporary deuitended to aid in the process of expanding ¢isswud skin surface ai
for burn care and other reconstructive use.

Our Technology

Our current portfolio of breast implantdliés what we believe are the most advanced tdogies currently available on the marl
These technologies are supported by rigorous ptddsting, analytics and clinical data. The advarneehnologies in our products include:

High-strength, cohesive silicone gel. Our HSC and HSC+ breast implants offer a dddiadance between strength, shape retentio
softness due to the high-strength, cohesive sigm used in our manufacturing process. The udégbfstrength, cohesive silicone gel in
HSC and HSC+ breast implants allows the breastantplto hold a controlled shape while maintainirspfa feel.

The raw silicone stock used in our breasilants has been designed to provide the charstitsridesired by Plastic Surgeons for bi
implants. At present, we are the only company i thnited States that has received FDA approvalsw this special raw material in
products.

We have completed a number of studies otteduby independent laboratories to demonstrateahgpetitive advantages of using high
strength, cohesive silicone gel in our breast imgzlaWe believe this technology differentiates longast implants for the following reasons:

. our implant gel is stronger, which is evidenbgdts resistance to gel fracture;

. due to the unique relationship between our imptgitand our implant shells, our implants have amaaned ability to reta
their shape while preserving the shape of anatdipishaped implants without sacrificing the desissdtness; and

. our shaped implants are softer and more elasticdbacompetitors' shaped implants.

We believe the beneficial properties of woplants arise from the characteristics of the gelwell as the unique integration of the gel
our implant shell. Inside each of our implants, e adheres to the shell, creating additionalcttinal strength and shape retention in
implant. This results in the ability to deliverestgth and shaping capability without a stiffer geimplant and without sacrificing the desi
softness. We typically evaluate these charactesistsing the following metrics:

. Peel-force. Peel-force is measured by the amount of forceasmed in poundbrece, or Ibf, necessary to separate the outet
of the implant from the internal gel filling. A gater peel-force measurement indicates greatestgal-integration. In the case
anatomically-shaped implants, greater peel-forceatso be an indication of the ability of the impléo retain its shape,
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particularly the upper portions of the implant,cateferred to as the upper pole. Upper pole stliiof particular importance
preserving the desired anatomical shape of an mhpheer time.

. Gel strength. Gel strength is measured by the amount of formgsured in Ibf, required to cause permanent frestin the ge
A larger value indicates greater strength.

. Gel elasticity and implant elasticityGel elasticity and implant elasticity can be mmead by the level of resistance, measurt
millimeters, or mm, to an applied constant forcehigher value represents greater softness and ar ldeformation valt
represents greater firmness.

TRUE Texture. We sell breast implants that are available vaitemooth outer surface or with an outer surfae¢ ightextured usir
TRUE Texture technology. We believe our texturedalst implants using TRUE Texture technology offerclinical advantages over ¢
competitors' textured products, including:

. better tissue adherence to reduce the incidenoefgfosition and rotation; and

. reduction in the rate of capsular contracture, mp@cation in which the patient's body creates artissue capsule around
implant that can tighten and squeeze the implaterpially causing discomfort, pain and even distmzaof the implant. Whil
we have neither sought nor obtained FDA approvatébe that TRUE Texture technology reduces tha&lémce of capsul
contracture, we believe it may significantly redticis risk, as evidenced by the lower rates of agwcontraction reported o\
a five-year follow-up period in our ongoing clinidgal.

On a breast implant, the desired textumikhhave a proportionate amount of surface dignpas overly aggressive texture can rest
doubleeapsule formation while not enough texturing casulein a lack of adherence resulting in malpositar rotation. We believe tt
TRUE Texture technology has the right combinatibawface disruption without overly aggressive teixtg.

We use the competitive advantages demdedtiay the independent laboratory results abovedmrbreast implants incorporating high
strength, cohesive silicone gel and TRUE Textucanelogy to market and differentiate our produot®lastic Surgeons.

Our Clinical Data

In 2012, our breast implants were apprdwethe FDA, based on data we collected from oumorgy longterm clinical trial of our brea
implants in 1,788 women across 36 investigatioitassOur clinical trial results demonstrate théegaand effectiveness of our breast impl
and provide Plastic Surgeons and their patientselarity and confidence to choose our products.

Our clinical trial is the largest prospeeti longterm safety and effectiveness pivotal study of &rréaplant patients conducted in
United States. As shown in the tables below, tivécal data we collected over a five-year follap-period demonstrates that our HSC rc
implants and HSC+ shaped implants have low ruptates, as measured by the percent of implants stesh& have ruptured in the bc
following implantation, low capsular contracturdes as measured by the percent of implants thmtltrén moderate-tgevere capsul
contracture, low rotation rates, as measured byéneent of implants that rotate in the pocket/bfadipwing implantation, and low reoperati
rates, as measured by the percent of implant puvesdhat result in the need for at least one mahdik operation due to patient choice
undesirable clinical outcome.

We, and our two competitors were requiredun independent teyear clinical studies to obtain PMA approval frohe tFDA. Eve
though these PMA studies were not designed toitfateilhead-tdiead comparisons, we believe that these studiesf,\ahich were reviewed t
the FDA, measured similar end points under sinplatocols and are regularly provided to PlasticgBans for their interpretation. Howe\
since Allergan and Mentor published six-year datadme cases, and our data is currently reportedafiveyear period, our data and tha
our competitors' may change as data from all tRidé studies continue to be analyzed.
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Our Services

Our services are designed to cater tolkeiic needs of Plastic Surgeons to enable themaimtain and grow their practices. We pro
our Plastic Surgeons with superior warranty progra@mhanced customer service offerings and spesibfducational initiatives. We belit
that tailoring our customer service offerings tadbic Surgeons helps secure their loyalty and denfie.

Industry-Leading Product Programs and Wanmtes. Through our C3 Program, we provide etaarge replacement implants to pati
who experience capsular contracture in the finge fyears following primary breast augmentation. jvevide this benefit to every patis
implanted with our smooth or textured breast imfdaiVe also provide a ten-year limited warrantyt tisethe best-in-thédustry based ¢
providing patients with the largest cash reimbursenfor certain out-ofocket costs related to revision surgeries in aemV event and
lifetime no-charge implant replacement programcimrered ruptures.

Enhanced Customer Service. As we focus exclusively on Plastic Surgeons Hrar patients, we believe we are able to tailor
customer service offerings to their specific ne€ls: surgeon-facing customer service policies idelu

. simplified account setup through our sales reptasi®es and with pre-qualification and pre-approeegtit terms;
. no-charge shipping to and from accounts;

. six-month pre-approved returns of unused pradwith no-charge return shipping and no restockies;

. end-of-month statement billing, rather than onaice per shipment, and 30-day payment terms;

. individualized consignment inventory; and

. order acceptance by phone, fax, email or thraughsales representatives.

Educational and Marketing Initiatives. We have implemented educational and marketnitipiives with a focus on both Plas
Surgeons and their patients considering breast angtion or reconstruction.

Plastic Surgeons. In order to educate Plastic Surgeons about ourygtoéhes and, in particular, about the proper okeul
anatomicallyshaped breast implants, we provide a variety otation programs for Plastic Surgeons under the draohthe Sienti
Education Forum.

. we have developed a tableised mobile marketing tool for our sales repregmets to use while calling on accounts
includes access to our patient and surgeon lahgbulglished clinical studies, marketing literatudletails on our warranty a
C3 programs, our educational iBooks and more.

. we host symposia with one or more kayte speakers who speak on topics ranging fromcorporate identity and custon
service offerings to surgical tips and suggestiom® thought-leading Plastic Surgeons.

. we produce comprehensive guides for Plastic Susye@n the Internet, referred to as iBooks, to pievthem training ar
expertise on the implantation of anatomically-stiblpesast implants.

. we send a limited number of Plastic Surgeons t@f®ito observe surgeries and train with waddewned surgeons who hi
been implanting anatomicalhaped breast implants for decades and, upon réduthe United States, we engage ther
consultant-educators to conduct training sessionsther U.S.-based Plastic Surgeons.

. we periodically sponsor educational surgical prémehips where a small group of Plastic Surgeorsabie to observe a li
surgery conducted by one of our trained precepodstrain with that preceptor.
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Patients. We have recently begun to engage directly with soress who are considering breast augmentationconstructior
We have initially focused our consumer educatiaral marketing activities on websites where consarneme to research their bre
augmentation or reconstruction options, including:

. our own consumer website, branded with our "FeeG8od" campaign, that provides resources for coessitonsidering bre:
augmentation or reconstruction, including referralsd commentaries, product descriptions, patieanrphg guides ar
educational brochures and information regardingveanranty and C3 programs; and

. a oneyear exclusive relationship with RealSelf, the lagdnline community helping people make confidetmbices in electiy
cosmetic procedures. Together with RealSelf, werelefresh and meaningful content to the RealSethmunity that answe
common questions patients have regarding breastentgtion. This content is featured on a dedic&iedtra page on RealSe
website designed to build consumer engagementthéthorand and open up the online conversation a@rbosast augmentati
directly with Plastic Surgeons.

We believe that our innovative servicesjuding industryleading product programs and warranties, enhangstbmer service offerin
and educational and marketing initiatives, delaeimproved customer experience to Plastic Surgandgheir patients.

Sales and Marketing

As of December 31, 2014, we had a saleamzgtion of 46 employees, including sales reprasees and sales management. We a
sales territories based on the regions with thdsgconcentration of accounts. Our sales teamppaosted by customer and sales experi
teams, which provide full-time telephonic and encatomer support to our sales representativesastomers.

In addition, our marketing team leads offiores in brand development, tradeshow attendardecational forums, product messag
website development and advertising, among others.

Research and Development

We have incurred, and expect to continu@dar, significant research and development exgenSur research and development expt
were approximately $4.7 million, $4.5 million an®.% million for the years ended December 31, 213 and 2012, respectively. (
research and development expenses primarily coosisbsts associated with our clinical and pmgproval studies, regulatory activity
product development, including our efforts to selproval for a range of breast implant line extemsithat would allow us to sell Bre
Products in additional styles, sizes and projestitiat we do not currently offer.

Manufacturing and Quality Assurance

All of our products are listed under our AADedical Device Establishment Registration whedréndicates we are the specificat
developer of our products and we are the owneuopooducts' FDA approvals and clearances. Thisnstfzat we are primarily responsible
the manufacturing and quality assurance of ourywtsd However, we do not manufacture our produatseves. Instead, we rely on Silim
as our contract manufacturer, to manufacture arckgue our silicone gel breast implants, tissue mapes and other products to
specifications. Silimed has over 34 years of exgmex@@ manufacturing silicortgased implants and distributes its products to é@ecountrie
worldwide. When we receive products from Silimed imspect the products prior to shipping them to @ustomers. We maintain strate
levels of inventory at our storage facilities lamhin Santa Barbara, California.

We and Silimed are subject to the FDA'sI@u8ystem Regulation, or QSR, reporting requiratseand cGMP audits by the FDA. Un
the QSR and cGMP requirements, manufacturers,dimduthird party manufacturers, must follow stringdesign, testing, production, cont
supplier and contractor selection, complaint hargdldocumentation and other quality assurance guves during all aspects of
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the manufacturing process. Both we and Silimed Hseen inspected by the FDA regularly, and no FDAn483 observations, which
issued when an FDA inspector believes that obsereeditions or practices indicate the possibilltattan FDAregulated product may be
violation of FDA's requirements, have been madeannection with these inspections. Silimed hasthage FDA inspections in seven ye
and is also audited periodically by our quality aeément to ensure conformity with the specificasiopolicies and procedures for our products

At present, all of our products, includiogr silicone gel breast implants and breast tigsgenders, are manufactured by Silimed pur:
to an amended and restated exclusivity agreeméntSilimed which we refer to as the Silimed Agream®ursuant to the Silimed Agreem
Silimed manufactures and supplies products ordeyeds for distribution in the United States and &m which we refer to as the Territc
We agreed to use commercially reasonable efforfgdmote, sell and distribute the products in tleerifory. In addition to Silimed's existi
products, we have the exclusive right to sell amtridute any new products manufactured by Silinteoling the term of the Silimi
Agreement. Silimed sells the products to us axedficost, which may be increased by no more tHaw aingle-digit percentage per annum.

The Silimed Agreement provides that Silinveitl not provide its products to any third party the Territory, with the exception of 1
distribution of one of its gastric products pursiutma pre-existing supply agreement that it hath i thirdparty distributor, and we ha
agreed not sell Silimed's products to any thirdypidiiwe have reason to believe that such prodoate been or will be distributed outside of
Territory. We have also agreed not to distribute mroduct that directly competes with a product ofantured by Silimed in the Territory.

In the event Silimed fails to supply prottuordered by us, we may, under certain circums&nexercise manufacturing rights
manufacture the products directly or through adtipiarty manufacturer. Pursuant to the Silimed Agred, Silimed granted to us an exclus
royalty-free, nortransferable license to use certain of its tradémar the Territory, including in the event Silimé&ils to supply the produc
to us and in connection with the marketing and sélthe products in the Territory. In addition, tBdimed Agreement allocates intellect
property rights between the parties, including that parties will jointly own all developments, nifoichtions, enhancements or alteration
products jointlycreated by the parties, subject to certain regiristconcerning the use of such improvements caitsicthe Territory. Eac
party is subject to certain limitations and ottestrictions on the transfer of the other party¢ht@logy to third parties.

The Silimed Agreement can be terminate@ithyer party under certain limited circumstancasluding in connection with the other par
breach of any of its material obligations which lsumeaching party fails to cure within 60 days efeiving notice from the nooreachin
party. If the breach relates only to single prodtlatn the nomreaching party is entitled to terminate the age@mwith respect to that spec
product. The parties may also terminate the agreeatieany time on a product-by-product basis upotual written agreement of the parties.

The term of the Silimed Agreement will dooe until April 2017.
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Competition

The medical device industry is intenselynpetitive, subject to rapid change and highly demsto the introduction of new products
other market activities of industry participantse\rimarily compete with two companies that manufieec and sell breast implants in
United States: Johnson & Johnson through its whedmed subsidiary, Mentor, and Allergan.

Both of our U.S. competitors are either Imjptraded companies or divisions or subsidiarigs publiclytraded companies wi
significantly more market share and resources tamave. These companies have greater financialiress for sales, marketing and pro
development, broader established relationships hédthcare providers and thipadsty payors, and larger and more establishedilulisiton
networks. In some instances, our competitors difew products that include features that we doaustently offer. For example, Allergan si
temporary gel sizers for silicone gel implants avel sell only temporary saline filled sizers. In gidd, our competitors may offer prici
programs with discounts across their non-breashats product portfolios.

We also face potential future competitiooni a number of companies, medical researchersxzisting medical device companies
may be pursuing new implant technologies, new riatechnologies and new methods of enhancing aocdnstructing the breast.

We believe the primary competitive factor®ur markets include:

. breadth of portfolio;

. technological characteristics of products;
. clinical evidence;

. product price;

. customer service; and

. support by key opinion leaders.

Government Regulation

Our products are medical devices subjeaxtensive regulation by the FDA and other fedarad state regulatory authorities, He
Canada and, if we commence international salesdeutsf the United States and Canada, other regyldiodies in other countries. \
currently market our tissue expanders and faciglamts in Canada, and are awaiting Health Canagbggeoval to market our breast impl
products in Canada. Although we do not anticipatg @dditional nonclinical or clinical study requinents, we may be delayed in obtair
approval to sell our breast implants in Canadadfnged to respond to requests for information fitealth Canada during the review proc
which remains ongoing.

Regulation by the FDA. The Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, or BD&nd the FDA's implementing regulations govemgpac
other things:

. product design and development;

. pre-clinical and clinical testing;

. establishment registration and product listinthvhe FDA,
. product manufacturing;

. product labeling and storage;

. pre-market clearance or approval;
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. post-market studies;

. advertising and promotion;

. product sales and distribution;

. recordkeeping and device tracking;

. complaint handling;

. recalls and field safety corrective actions; and

. post-market surveillance and adverse event tiegotincluding reporting of deaths, serious inggror device malfunctions.

Unless an exemption applies, each newgmifgiantly modified medical device we seek to coenaially distribute in the United Sta
will require either a prenarket notification to the FDA requesting permissfor commercial distribution under Section 510¢kthe FDCA
also referred to as a 510(k) clearance, or appifowal the FDA of a prenarket approval, or PMA, application. Both the 3 Qflearance ar
PMA processes can be expensive, lengthy and repgajment of significant user fees, unless an exiem|x available.

The FDA classifies medical devices into afig¢hree classes. Devices deemed to pose low terate risk are placed in Class | o
which, absent an exemption, requires the manufactiar obtain a 510(k) clearance. Class | devicessabject to general controls sucl
labeling, premarket notification and adherence to the FDA's @u&ystem Regulation, or QSR, which cover manufars' methods ai
documentation of the design, testing, producti@mtiol, quality assurance, labeling, packagingiilgtation, storage and shipping of produ
Class Il devices are subject to special controlshsas performance standards, postket surveillance, FDA guidelines, or particutar
labeling requirements, as well as general contBxdsne low risk devices are exempted by regulatiomfthe 510(k) clearance requirement,
the requirement of compliance with substantiallyoélthe QSR. A PMA application is required for imas deemed by the FDA to pose
greatest risk, such as life-sustaining, Bigpporting or certain implantable devices, inclgdal breast implants, or devices that are
substantially equivalent” either to a device presig cleared through the 510(k) process or to adprendment” Class Il device in commel
distribution in the United states before May 287@ %or which a regulation requiring a PMA applicatihas not been issued by the FDA.

Our tissue expanders and our body contgufatial and nasal implants received FDA clearaaxc€lass Il devices at various dates pri
approval of our breast implants in March 2012. Twam 510(k) clearance, we must submit a ket notification demonstrating that
proposed device is substantially equivalent to evipusly cleared 510(k) device or a preamendmenicde The FDA's 510(k) clearar
pathway usually takes from three to 12 months ftbendate the application is completed, but it Gl tsignificantly longer and clearanc
never assured. Although many 510(k) prerket notifications are cleared without clinicatal in some cases, the FDA requires signif
clinical data to support substantial equivalencerelviewing a pranarket notification, the FDA may request additiomdbrmation, includin
clinical data, which may significantly prolong tlmeview process. After a device receives 510(k) releee, any modification that coi
significantly affect its safety or effectiveness,tbat would constitute a new or major change sniritended use, will require a new 51!
clearance or, depending on the modification, coatfliire a PMA application. The FDA requires eachnufiacturer to make this determinat
initially, but the FDA can review any such decisiand can disagree with a manufacturer's deterromalf the FDA disagrees with
manufacturer's determination regarding whethenapremarket submission is required for the modificatidran existing device, the FDA ¢
require the manufacturer to cease marketing and/call the modified device until 510(k) clearanaeapproval of a PMA application
obtained. If the FDA requires us to seek 510(kicace or approval of a PMA application for any ifications to a previously clear
product, we may be required to cease
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marketing or recall the modified device until wetaih this clearance or approval. In addition, iesh circumstances, we may be subje
significant regulatory fines or penalties for faduo submit the requisite PMA application(s). tidaion, the FDA is currently evaluating
510(k) process and may make substantial changadustry requirements.

Silicone gefilled breast implants are treated as Class lllicessand a full PMA is required. A PMA for our bst@amplants was approv
by the FDA in March 2012. The PMA application pregas generally more costly and time consuming than510(k) process and requ
proof of the safety and effectiveness of the dewa@ée¢he FDA's satisfaction. Accordingly, a PMA dppation must be supported by ve
scientific evidence that typically includes, butist limited to, extensive technical informatiorgaeding device design and development, pr
clinical and clinical trial data, and manufacturiagd labeling information to demonstrate to the FDgatisfaction the safety and effectivel
of the device for its intended use. After a PMA laggtion is submitted and found to be sufficientigmplete, the FDA begins an deptt
review of the submitted information. By statutes fRDA has 180 days to review the "accepted appicdtalthough, generally, review of 1
application takes between one and three yearsmbyttake significantly longer. During this reviewrd, the FDA may request additio
information or clarification of information alreagyovided. Also during the review period, an adwspanel of experts from outside the F
may be convened to review and evaluate the apita@nd provide recommendations to the FDA as #oahprovability of the device.
addition, the FDA generally will conduct a pmpproval inspection of the manufacturing facility évaluate compliance with QSR, wk
requires manufacturers to implement and follow etate design, testing, control, documentation ahdroquality assurance procedures ir
device design and manufacturing process.

The FDA may approve a PMA application wbstapproval conditions intended to ensure the safaty effectiveness of the dev
including, among other things, restrictions on latgg promotion, sale and distribution and collentof long-term followup data from patien
in the clinical study that supported approval. la&lto comply with the conditions of approval casult in materially adverse enforcern
action, including the loss or withdrawal of the apml. New PMA applications or PMA application silgmpents are required for signific:
modifications to the manufacturing process, lalgelimd design of a device that is approved throbghRMA modifications that affect t
safety or effectiveness of the device, including, éxample, certain types of modifications to thevide's indication for use, manufactul
process, labeling and design. PMA supplements aéignire submission of the same type of informatiera PMA application, except that
supplement is limited to information needed to frppny changes from the device covered by ther@id®MA application, and may r
require as extensive clinical data or the convepingn advisory panel, depending on the naturé®proposed change.

Clinical Trials. A clinical trial is almost always required tapport a PMA application and may be required f&18(k) premarke
notification. In the United States, absent cerfaimted exceptions, human clinical trials intendedsupport product clearance or appr
require an Investigational Device Exemption, or |@plication. Some types of studies deemed toeptésionsignificant risk" are deemed
have an approved IDE once certain requirementaddeessed and IRB approval is obtained. If theagepresents a "significant risk" to hur
health, as defined by the FDA, the Sponsor mush#udn IDE application to the FDA and obtain IDEpapval prior to commencing the hun
clinical trials. The IDE application must be supeorby appropriate data, such as animal and latrgrégsting results, showing that it is saf
evaluate the device in humans and that the teptioipcol is scientifically sound. The IDE applicatimust be approved in advance by the |
for a specified number of subjects, unless the yobds deemed a nasignificant risk device and eligible for more abbated IDE
requirements. Clinical trials for a significantkislevice may begin once the IDE application is appd by the FDA and the respons
institutional review boards at the clinical tridles. There can be no assurance that submissian B9E will result in the ability to commer
clinical trials. Additionally, after a trial beginthe FDA may place it on hold or terminate itaifnong other reasons, it concludes that the
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clinical subjects are exposed to unacceptablelheaks that outweigh the benefits of participatiorthe study. During a study, we are requ
to comply with the FDA's IDE requirements for intigator selection, trial monitoring, reporting, ced keeping and prohibitions on
promotion of investigational devices or making safer efficacy claims for them. We are also resjildesfor the appropriate labeling &
distribution of investigational devices. Our cliaictrials must be conducted in accordance with Fi2gulations and federal and s
regulations concerning human subject protectiocipgting informed consent and healthcare privacye Hivestigators must also obtain pat
informed consent, rigorously follow the investigetal plan and study protocol, control the dispositdf investigational devices and corr
with all reporting and recordkeeping requiremeiitse FDA's grant of permission to proceed with clahitesting does not constitute a binc
commitment that the FDA will consider the studyigesadequate to support clearance or approvalddtitian, there can be no assurance
the data generated during a clinical study will r@d®sen safety and effectiveness endpoints onetbe produce results that will lead the F
to grant marketing clearance or approval.

Other Regulatory Requirements. Even though our breast implants have been a&pdr@and commercialized, numerous regule
requirements apply after a device is placed onntlaeket, regardless of its classification or prarket pathway. These include, but are
limited to:

. establishment registration and device listinthwtie FDA,

. QSR, which requires manufacturers, including thpiadty manufacturers, to follow stringent desigrstitey, production, contrc
supplier and contractor selection, complaint hargdldocumentation and other quality assurance guses during all aspects
the manufacturing process;

. labeling regulations that prohibit the promotionpsbducts for uncleared or unapproved, or 'laffel," uses, and impose ot
restrictions on labeling, advertising and promation

. medical Device Reporting, or MDR, regulations, whiequire that manufacturers report to the FDAhdit device may ha
caused or contributed to a death or serious injurgnalfunctioned in a way that would likely caugecontribute to a death
serious injury if the malfunction were to recurgan

. corrections and removals reporting regulations civitequire that manufacturers report to the FDAdfeorrections and prodt
recalls or removals if undertaken to reduce a tiskealth posed by the device or to remedy a vtadf the FDCA that me
present a risk to health. In addition, the FDA neagler a mandatory recall if there is a reasonabidability that the devic
would cause serious adverse health consequendesibr.

Also, the FDA requires us to conduct postrket surveillance studies and to maintain a syste tracking our products through the ct
of distribution to the patient level. The FDA ar tFood and Drug Branch of the California DepartnuérHealth Services enforce regulat
requirements by conducting periodic, unannouncegdantions and market surveillance. Inspections imelyde the manufacturing facilities
our subcontractors.

Failure by us or our manufacturer to complth applicable regulatory requirements can resukenforcement actions by the FDA
other regulatory agencies. These may include, layt mot be limited to, any of the following sancsoor consequences:

. warning letters or untitled letters that requirerective action;

. fines and civil penalties;

. unanticipated expenditures;

. delays in or refusal to grant requests for 510[@g@nce or pre-market approval of new productaadified products;
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. FDA refusal to issue certificates to foreign goveemts needed to export products for sale in otbentries;
. suspension or withdrawal of FDA clearance or apakov

. product recall, detention or seizure;

. operating restrictions, partial suspension or tetaitdown of production;

. injunctions and consent decrees; and

. criminal prosecution.

We and our contract manufacturers and ssupeliers of components or device accessoriesaasoequired to manufacture our prod
in compliance with cGMP requirements set forth e QSR. The QSR requires a quality system for #sigd, manufacture, packagi
labeling, storage, installation and servicing ofrketed devices, and it includes extensive requiremwith respect to quality management
organization, device design, buildings, equipmpatchase and handling of components or servicesiuption and process controls, packa
and labeling controls, device evaluation, distridt installation, complaint handling, servicingidarecord keeping. The FDA evalu:
compliance with the QSR through periodic, unannedniaspections that may include the manufacturagjjifies of our subcontractors. If 1
FDA believes that we or any of our contract manufeas or regulated suppliers are not in complianith these requirements, it can <
down our manufacturing operations, require rectur products, refuse to approve new marketindiegiions, institute legal proceedings
detain or seize products, enjoin future violationgissess civil and criminal penalties againstrusuo officers or other employees.

Healthcare Regulatory Laws. Our business activities, including but not tieci to, research, sales, marketing, promotionriligton,
medical education and other activities are suligcégulation under additional laws by numerousitapry and enforcement authorities in
United States, in addition to the FDA. These lamdude, without limitation, state and federal datikback, fraud and abuse, false clai
physician sunshine and privacy and security lavesragulations, including but not limited to thosesdribed below.

Additionally, our relationships with headtre providers and other third parties are suliestrutiny under these laws. Noomplianci
with the laws described below may result in the dsipon of civil, criminal and administrative petias, damages, monetary fir
disgorgement, individual imprisonment, possiblelesion from participation in Medicare, Medicaid aother federal healthcare progra
contractual damages, reputational harm, diminigiveflts and future earnings, and curtailment of operations, any of which could adver:
affect our ability to operate our business andresults of operations. Defending against any astion noneompliance of such laws can
costly, timeeonsuming and may require significant financial @edsonnel resources. Therefore, even if we areesstul in defending agai
any such actions that may be brought against ud)uginess may be impaired.

Federal Anti-Kickback Laws. The federal AntKickback Statute prohibits, among other things, iamgly or willfully soliciting,
receiving, offering, or paying remuneration, difgair indirectly, to induce, or in return for, e@ththe referral of an individual or the purch
or recommendation, order or furnishing of an itemservice reimbursable under a federal healthcaogram, such as the Medicare
Medicaid programs. The definition of "remuneratidmds been broadly interpreted to include anythihgyalue, including such items
improper payments, gifts, discounts, the furnistohgupplies or equipment, credit arrangementsyevadf payments and providing anythin
less than its fair market value. There are a nurnbstatutory exceptions and regulatory safe haripootecting certain common activities fr
prosecution. Failure to meet all of the requireraasfta particular applicable statutory exceptiorregjulatory safe harbor does not make
conduct per se illegal under the federal Anti-Kiakk Statute. Instead, the legality of the arrangemal be evaluated on a case-bgse bas
based on a cumulative review of all of its factd amcumstances.
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The penalties for violating the federal iAlkickback Statute include imprisonment for up toefiyears, fines of up to $25,000 per viola
and possible exclusion from federal healthcare famog such as Medicare and Medicaid. Further, aparsentity does not need to have ac
knowledge of this statute or specific intent tolate it. In addition, a claim including items omgees resulting from a violation of the fede
Anti-Kickback Statute constitutes a false or fraledt claim for purposes of the FCA.

We have entered into consulting, speakdraher financial arrangements with physiciansluding some who prescribe or recomm
our products to patients. We engage such physi@anonsultants, advisors and to educate otheligéuys. Noncompliance with the fede
Anti-Kickback Statute could result in significant adrstrétive, civil and/or criminal penalties and fin@scluding our debarment or exclus
from Medicare, Medicaid or other governmental pemgs and restrictions on our ability to operatedrtain jurisdictions.

Federal Civil False Claims Act. The FCA, prohibits any person from knowinglggenting, or causing to be presented, a false dta
payment to the federal government, or knowingly imgkusing or causing to be made or used, a falserd or statement material to a fals
fraudulent claim to the federal government. The R@& been used to prosecute persons submittingshar payment that are inaccurat
fraudulent, that are for services not providedlasned, or for services that are not medically ssaey. Manufacturers can be held liable u
the FCA if they are deemed to "cause" the submsefofalse or fraudulent claims by, for examplepyding inaccurate billing or codil
information to customers or promoting a productlaffel. Penalties for FCA violations include threeds the actual damages sustained b
government, plus mandatory civil penalties of betw&5,500 and $11,000 for each separate false ,cthenpotential for exclusion frc
participation in federal healthcare programs, atfithough the federal FCA is a civil statute, FCAlations may also implicate various fed
criminal statutes.

In addition to actions initiated by the govment itself, the statute authorizes actionstbrought on behalf of the federal government
private party having knowledge of the alleged frakimbwn as "qui tam" whistleblower lawsuits. Beaatise complaint is initially filed und
seal, the action may be pending for some time betoe defendant is even aware of the action. Iigtheernment intervenes and is ultima
successful in obtaining redress in the matterf ¢ine plaintiff succeeds in obtaining redress withthe government's involvement, then
plaintiff will receive a percentage of the recove@ui tam actions have increased significantly énent years, causing greater numbe
healthcare companies to have to defend a falsencdation, pay fines or be excluded from MedicareedMaid or other federal or st
healthcare programs as a result of an investigatising out of such action.

Federal Criminal False Claims Law. The federal criminal false claims laws prohilsitmong other things, knowingly and willfu
making, or causing to be made, a false statemergpsesentation of a material fact for use in deieing the right to any benefit or paym
under a federal health care program. A violatiothef statute may constitute a felony or misdemeand may result in fines or imprisonment.

Civil Monetary Penalties Law. The Federal Civil Monetary Penalties Law prdisibamong other things, the offering or transfegrof
remuneration to a Medicare or Medicaid beneficthigt the person knows or should know is likelyrtfiuence the beneficiary's selection
particular supplier of Medicare or Medicaid payaitéens or services. Noncompliance can result il aoney penalties of up to $10,000
each wrongful act, assessment of three times tlreiantlaimed for each item or service and exclusiom the federal healthcare programs.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountdiiy Act of 1996. The Health Insurance Portability and AccourigbiAct of 1996, o
HIPAA, created two new federal crimes: healthcasud and false statements relating to healthcargéersa The healthcare fraud sta
prohibits knowingly and willfully executing, or atnpting to execute, a scheme to defraud any hea#thwenefit program, including priv.
payors. A violation of this statute is a felony amdy result in fines, imprisonment or exclusionnfrgovernmental programs. The fe
statements statute prohibits knowingly and willfutlsifying,
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concealing or covering up a material fact or malkang materially false, fictitious or fraudulent tgt@ent in connection with the delivery of
payment for healthcare benefits, items or serviBesolation of this statute is a felony and maguk in fines or imprisonment.

HIPAA, as amended by the Health Informati@mcthnology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, MITECH, and their implementit
regulations, including the final omnibus rule pshid on January 25, 2013, mandates, among otingystithe adoption of uniform stande
for the electronic exchange of information in conmmuealthcare transactions, as well as standardsinglto the privacy and security
individually identifiable health information, whicrequire the adoption of administrative, physicatl aechnical safeguards to protect ¢
information. Among other things, HITECH makes ciertaf HIPAA's standards and requirements direciplegable to "business associates"
independent contractors or agents of covered estitiat create, receive or obtain protected héafitihmation in connection with providing
service for or on behalf of a covered entity. HITHE@lso increased the civil and criminal penaltiest imay be imposed against covered en
and business associates, and gave state attoreegsanew authority to file civil actions for dages or injunctions in federal courts to enft
the federal HIPAA laws and seek attorney's feesastis associated with pursuing federal civil astidn addition, certain state laws go\
the privacy and security of health information értain circumstances, some of which are more strinthan HIPAA and many of which dif
from each other in significant ways and may notehthe same effect, thus complicating complianceresf Failure to comply with these la
where applicable, can result in the impositionighgicant civil and/or criminal penalties.

Physician Payments Sunshine Act. The Patient Protection and Affordable Care A&s,amended by the Health Care and Educ
Reconciliation Act of 2010, or collectively, PPACHnposed, among other things, new annual reporgagirements for device manufactu
for certain payments and "transfers of value" pedi to physicians and teaching hospitals, as veetivenership and investment interests
by physicians and their immediate family memberailufe to submit timely, accurately, and completétg required information for i
payments, transfers of value and ownership or tnvest interests may result in civil monetary peaeralbf up to an aggregate of $150,00C
year and up to an aggregate of $1 million per year'knowing failures." Device manufacturers weeguired to begin collecting data
August 1, 2013 and submit reports on aggregate payaata to the government for the first reporiiegiod (August 1, 2013-Becember 3.
2013) by March 31, 2014, and were required to rregetailed payment data for the first reportingigetrand submit legal attestation to
completeness and accuracy of such data by Jun203@. Thereafter, device manufacturers must subepiorts by the 9@ day of eac
subsequent calendar year. CMS released the dataefirst reporting period on a public websiteSeptember 30, 2014.

In addition, there has been a recent t@hithcreased federal and state regulation of paysand other transfers of value provide
healthcare professionals and entities. Similah&ofederal law, certain states also have adoptelletiiag and/or transparency laws relevai
device manufacturers, some of which are broadscape. Certain states, such as California and @bicng mandate that device manufactu
implement compliance programs. Other states, sscMassachusetts and Vermont, impose restrictionslestice manufacturer market
practices and require tracking and reporting agiiompensation, and other remuneration to heakhgrofessionals and entities. The ne
build and maintain a robust compliance program vdiffierent compliance and/or reporting requiremeimsreases the possibility tha
healthcare company may violate one or more of¢lg@irements, resulting in fines and penalties

Additional State Healthcare Laws. Many states have also adopted some form of efitte aforementioned laws, some of which me
broader in scope and may apply regardless of perertheless, a determination of liability undects laws could result in fines and pena
and restrictions on our ability to operate in thgsesdictions.

Additionally, as some of these laws ark stiolving, we lack definitive guidance as to tgplication of certain key aspects of these
as they relate to our arrangements with providéiis respect to
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patient training. We cannot predict the final fotihat these regulations will take or the effect tthe final regulations will have on us. A
result, our provider and training arrangements mtisnately be found to be not in compliance wittpkgable laws.

United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act The United States Foreign Corrupt Practices, ActFCPA, prohibits United Sta
corporations and their representatives from offgripromising, authorizing or making corrupt paynserdifts or transfers to any fore
government official, government staff member, podit party or political candidate in an attempbtatain or retain business abroad. The s
of the FCPA would include interactions with certaalthcare professionals in many countries.

International Regulation. We may evaluate international expansion opmpdigs in the future. International sales of mebaevices ar
subject to local government regulations, which magy substantially from country to country. The ¢imequired to obtain approval in ano
country may be longer or shorter than that requiced=DA approval, and the requirements may différere is a trend towards harmoniza
of quality system standards among the Europeanri)tlaited States, Canada and various other in@ligegd countries.

The primary regulatory body in Europe isttlof the European Union, which includes most & thajor countries in Europe. Ot
countries, such as Switzerland, have voluntarilypaeld laws and regulations that mirror those ofEneopean Union with respect to med
devices. The European Union has adopted numeroestisdes and standards regulating the design, naatwre, clinical trials, labeling a
adverse event reporting for medical devices. Davibat comply with the requirements of a relevargative will be entitled to bear the ¢
conformity marking, indicating that the device cmmfis to the essential requirements of the applkcalilectives and, accordingly, can
commercially distributed throughout Europe. The et of assessing conformity varies depending orctags of the product, but norms
involves a combination of self-assessment by theufeeturer and a third party assessment by a "ldtiBody." This thirdparty assessme
may consist of an audit of the manufacturer's tyalystem and specific testing of the manufactsireroduct. An assessment by a Noti
Body of one country within the European Union iquieed in order for a manufacturer to commerciaistribute the product throughout
European Union. Additional local requirements maplg on a country-byountry basis. Outside of the European Union, i@guy approve
would need to be sought on a country-by-countryshiasorder for us to market our products.

Coverage and Reimbursement; Healthcare Refo Sales of our products depend, in part, on #ten¢ to which the procedures us
our products will be covered by thighrty payors, such as government health care pragreommercial insurance and managed healt
organizations. Breast augmentation procedures energlly performed on a cash-pay basis and arecowdred by thirgparty payors. |
contrast, breast reconstruction procedures maybered by third-party payors, but such thiakty payors are increasingly limiting cover
and reducing reimbursements for medical productssamvices. In addition, the U.S. government, stegéslatures and foreign governme
have continued implementing castntainment programs, including price controlstrietions on coverage and reimbursement. Adoptit
price controls and cosmntainment measures, and adoption of more rag&igplicies in jurisdictions with existing contsohnd measure
could further limit our net sales and results.

By way of example, in the United Stateg, thcent implementation of PPACA is an example llaatthe potential to substantially che
healthcare financing and delivery by both governi@eand private insurers, and significantly impta pharmaceutical and medical de
industries. The PPACA imposed, among other thiagsew federal excise tax of 2.3% on certain estitieat manufacture or import med
devices for sale in the United States and implestepayment system reforms including a nationalt gilmgram on payment bundling
encourage hospitals, physicians and other provitemiprove the coordination, quality and efficignaf certain healthcare services thro
bundled payment models.
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In addition, other legislative changes hbagen proposed and adopted since the PPACA wagseen@n August 2, 2011, President Ob
signed into law the Budget Control Act of 2011, @hhi among other things, created the Joint Selechrfittee on Deficit Reduction
recommend to Congress proposals in spending reshsctiTrhe Joint Select Committee did not achievargeted deficit reduction of at le
$1.2 trillion for the years 2013 through 2021, geging the legislation's automatic reduction toesalk government programs. This inclu
reductions to Medicare payments to providers offf&¥fiscal year, which went into effect on AprilZ013, and will stay in effect through 2(
unless Congressional action is taken. On Janua2@P3, President Obama signed into law the Americapayer Relief Act of 2012, whic
among other things, further reduced Medicare paysienseveral providers, including hospitals.

We expect that additional state and fedeealthcare reform measures will be adopted irfuhee, any of which could limit the amou
that federal and state governments will pay forltheare products and services, which could resulteduced demand for our product:
additional pricing pressure.

Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property portfolio consigirimarily of trademarks and trade secrets and doé presently consist of any patents or p
applications. We do not currently intend to fileygratent applications in the United States or efsre.

Our trademark portfolio consists of fivagistered U.S. trademarks and six pending Canadademark applications. We maintai
program to protect our marks and will institutedegction where necessary to prevent others froimguasnd registering confusingly simi
marks.

In addition, to protect our trade secretd ather intellectual property rights, we have ssdeinto confidentiality agreements with tt
parties, and confidential information and inventassignment agreements with employees, consuliaot@dvisors. However, there can b
assurance that these measures will be successamlyimgiven case and third parties may still obthis information or we may be unable
protect our rights.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had 95 finle employees. None of our employees are repreddnt a collective bargaining agreem
and we have never experienced any work stoppagéélitere we have good relations with our employees.

Facilities

Our headquarters located in Santa Barl@adifornia is approximately 20,000 square feet. Téwen of the lease for our headqual
expires in February 2020. We also lease warehqueseedocated in Santa Barbara, California, whicapigroximately 10,000 square feet.
term of the lease for our warehouse expires in@an2016.

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be involved irrigas disputes and litigation matters that arisehie ordinary course of business. We
currently not a party to any material legal proéegs.

Seasonality

We expect that, in the future, our net saldl fluctuate on a quarterly basis due to a e@riof factors, including seasonality of bre
augmentation procedures. We believe that breadaimhgales are subject to seasonal fluctuationtdireast augmentation patients' plan
their surgery leading up to the summer seasonratitkiperiod around the winter holiday season.
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Corporate Information

We incorporated in Delaware on August Z8)2under the name Juliet Medical, Inc. and subestyuchanged our name to Sientra,
in April 2007. Our principal executive offices doeated at 420 South Fairview Avenue, Suite 200t&8arbara, California, 93117, and
telephone number is (805) 58300. Our website is located at www.sientra.com¢g aur investor relations website is locatec
http://investors.sientra.com.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following infotina about these risks, together with the otheorimfation appearing elsewhere in t
Annual Report on Form -K, including our financial statements and relatemtes thereto, before deciding to invest in our cammstock. Th
occurrence of any of the following risks could havenaterial adverse effect on our business, firnodndition, results of operations &
future growth prospect:

Risks Relating to Our Business and Our Industry
We have incurred significant net operating lossésce inception and cannot assure you that we witlhéeve profitability.

Since our inception, we have incurred d$igant net operating losses. As of December 31,42Me had an accumulated defici
$134.0 million. To date, we have financed our opena primarily through sales of preferred stoctrrbwings under our term loans, sale
our products since 2012, and our recent initiallipusifering of our common stock. We have devotebstantially all of our resources to
acquisition and clinical development of our produthe commercial launch of our products, the dgmekent of a sales and marketing team
the assembly of a management team to manage ounebss

We commenced sales of our breast implantbeé second quarter of 2012. For the year endebeer 31, 2014, our gross profit \
$33.2 million. However, although we have achievambsitive gross profit, we had an operating los$®:8 million in 2014. The extent of ¢
future operating losses and the timing of profiigbare uncertain, especially in light of the rateommercialization of our silicone gel bre
implants, which makes forecasting our sales mdifeudlit. We will need to generate significant satesachieve profitability, and we might 1
be able to do so. Even if we do generate signifisates, we might not be able to achieve, sustainaease profitability on a quarterly
annual basis in the future. If our sales grow nsbogvly than we have forecasted, or if our opera@rgenses exceed our forecasts, our fina
performance and results of operations will be asbigraffected.

Our future profitability depends on the successafr Breast Products.

Sales of our Breast Products accounte®7é6, 97% and 96% of our net sales for the yeargdmkcember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2
respectively. We expect our net sales to contirude based primarily on sales of our Breast Pradushy product liability lawsuit
introduction of competitive products by our compm@s and other third parties, the loss of markeeptance of our Breast Products, adv
rulings by regulatory authorities, adverse publiat other adverse events relating to us or oua&r@roducts may significantly impact
sales and profitability, which would adversely affeur business, financial condition and resulte#rations.

We rely on a foreign, sole source, thigghrty to manufacture and supply our silicone geldast implants, tissue expanders and ol
products.

We rely on Silimed Industria de Implantedd. (formerly, Silimed-Silicone e Instrumental NtemCirugio e Hospitalar Ltda.), or Silime
our sole source, third-party manufacturer locateBriazil, to
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manufacture and supply our silicone gel breast amigl tissue expanders and other products, anthegilirelies on Applied Silico
Corporation, or ASC, its sole source, third-padpier of medicagrade silicone based in Santa Paula, CaliforniAS€ becomes unable
willing to supply medicafrade silicone to Silimed or if Silimed becomeshlaar unwilling to manufacture and supply ourcsitie gel brea
implants, tissue expanders and other products, Waat be able to replace ASC or Silimed quickiyzd we have not qualified another silic
supplier nor another manufacturer to source outdntp in that event. Even if we were able to idigrdi replacement manufacturer or silic
supplier, either would have to be qualified witke fiDA, which is an expensive and timeasuming process during which we may experiel
supply interruption. As a result, our financial fios and results of operations may be adversdigctdd. There can also be no guarantee
ASC or Silimed will be able to meet our demand todpice sufficient quantities of medigglade silicone or our products in a timely mar
Furthermore, our current contract with Silimed egpiin 2017, and there can be no assurance tlae8iill agree to continue to manufaci
and supply our products after the expiration of camtract, which would have a material adverseceéfd@ our business, financial condition
results of operations.

In addition, our reliance on Silimed invesva number of other risks, including, among othiegs, that:

. our products may not be manufactured in accordamite agreed upon specifications or in compliancehwiegulator
requirements, or its manufacturing facilities mat be able to maintain compliance with regulat@guirements, which cot
negatively affect the safety or efficacy of ourgwots or cause delays in shipments of our products;

. we may not be able to timely respond to unantieipathanges in customer orders, and if orders donatth forecasts, we m
have excess or inadequate inventory of materialcamponents;

. we may be subject to price fluctuations when a supgntract is renegotiated or if our existing gait is not renewed;

. our agreement with Silimed does not permit us tbtse products we obtain from Silimed in any caynther than the Unite
States and Canada;

. we, Silimed or ASC may lose access to critical ey and components, resulting in an interruptiorthe manufacture
shipment of our products;

. Silimed may not be able to find an alternate s@ph a timely manner if the medicgtade silicone becomes unavailable f
ASC or we may not be able to find an alternate bepjm a timely manner if the products become wilable from Silimed;

. we may be required to obtain regulatory approvaksted to any change in our supply chain;

. ASC may discontinue manufacturing and supplyinglpots to Silimed for risk management reasons;

. Silimed may discontinue manufacturing and suipglyproducts to us for risk management reasons; and

. Silimed or ASC may encounter financial or otherdships unrelated to our demand for products, whalid inhibit its abilit

to fulfill our orders and meet our requirements.

If any of these risks materialize, it cowdnificantly increase our costs, our ability tengrate net sales would be impaired, mi
acceptance of our products could be adversely tefieand customers may instead purchase or useooypetitors' products, which coi
materially adversely affect our business, financ@idition and results of operations.
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There are inherent risks in contracting with manuéturers located outside of the United States sushraBrazil.

Silimed is our sole source, thpdsty manufacturer and its manufacturing planbcated in Brazil. There are inherent risks in cacting
with manufacturers located outside of the Uniteatédt such as in Brazil, including the risks of ewuit change, recession, labor strike
disruptions, political turmoil, new or changing it or trade barriers, new or different restrictioon importing or exporting, civil unre
infrastructure failure, cultural differences in dgibusiness, lack of contract enforceability, la€lprotection for intellectual property, war ¢
terrorism. If any of these risks were to materlizve and Silimed would both be materially adversdfected and our business, finan
condition and results of operations would suffer.

Various factors outside our direct control may adsely affect manufacturing and supply of our breashplants, tissue expanders and otl
products.

Manufacturing and supply of our breast iamp$, tissue expanders and other products is walhnichallenging. Changes that
manufacturer may make outside the purview of otgatlicontrol can have an impact on our processeguality and the successful deliven
products to Plastic Surgeons. Mistakes and misirandtle not uncommon and can affect productionsamupbly. Some of these risks include:

. failure of our manufacturer to follow Good Manufaghg Practices, or cGMP, requirements or mishagdbf our produc
while in production or in preparation for transit;

. transportation and import and export risk, paricyl given the global nature of our supply chain;
. delays in analytical results or failure of analgtitechniques that we depend on for quality cordnal release of products;
. natural disasters, labor disputes, financial déstréack of raw material supply, issues with féeid and equipment or other for

of disruption to business operations affectingmanufacturer or its suppliers; and

. latent defects that may become apparent after ptediave been released and which may result inadl iif such products.
If any of these risks were to materialiaer, ability to provide our products to customersagimely basis would be adversely impacted.

We have a limited operating history and may facéidulties encountered by companies early in th@iommercialization in competitive ai
rapidly evolving markets.

We commenced operations in 2007 and beganmercializing silicone gel breast implants in seeond quarter of 2012. Accordingly,
have a limited operating history upon which to eeét our business and forecast our future net sadsoperating results. In assessing
business prospects, you should consider the varisks and difficulties frequently encountered loympanies early in their commercializai
in competitive markets, particularly companies tatelop and sell medical devices. These risksideebur ability to:

. implement and execute our business strategy;

. expand and improve the productivity of our salesdoand marketing programs to grow sales of oustiexj and propost
products;

. increase awareness of our brand and build loyattyrey Plastic Surgeons;

. manage expanding operations;

. respond effectively to competitive pressures aneidgments;
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. enhance our existing products and develop new pisgu

. obtain regulatory clearance or approval to enhancexisting products and commercialize new praogfuct
. obtain and maintain adequate levels of coveragaeinbursement for our products;

. perform clinical trials with respect to our exigfiproducts and any new products; and

. attract, retain and motivate qualified personneldrious areas of our business.

Due to our limited operating history, weymret have the institutional knowledge or expergta be able to effectively address these
other risks that we may face. In addition, we mal/be able to develop insights into trends thatdemerge and negatively affect our busii
and may fail to respond effectively to those trenlils a result of these or other risks, we may retble to execute key components of
business strategy, and our business, financialitondnd operating results may suffer.

If we fail to compete effectively against our contipers, both of which have significantly greater seurces than we have, our net sales
operating results may be negatively affected.

Our industry is intensely competitive andbject to rapid change from the introduction of naducts, technologies and other activitie
industry participants. Our competitors, Mentor Vdaride, LLC, or Mentor, a division of Johnson & Jsbn, and Allergan, Inc., or Allerg:
are wellcapitalized pharmaceutical companies that have hieermarket leaders for many years and have therityaghare of the bree
implant market in the United States. These congrstilso enjoy several competitive advantages esgncluding:

. greater financial and human resources for salesketiag and product development;

. established relationships with health care prowderd third-party payors;

. established reputations and name recognition anheadth care providers and other key opinion leadetse plastic surge
industry;

. in some cases, an established base of longelistomers;

. products supported by long-term clinical data;

. larger and more established distribution networks;

. greater ability to cross-sell products; and

. more experience in conducting research and devanpnmanufacturing, performing clinical trials anbtaining regulator

approval or clearance.
If we fail to compete effectively againsircompetitors, our net sales and operating remdig be negatively affected.

Pricing pressure from customers and our competitorgy impact our ability to sell our products at pas necessary to support our curn
business strategies.

Our 2012 entry into the U.S. breast implanatrket represented a significant expansion ofbtteast implant choices and technolo
available in the United States. As a result of entry into the U.S. breast implant market, our cetitprs intensified competitive prici
pressure for traditional round-shaped breast inipldhwe are not successful in convincing custayarthirdparty payors of the differentiati
of the gel technology used in our implants andctile of shapes and products as compared to oupetitors' products, thirgarty payors me
not cover or adequately reimburse our productscaistbmers may choose our competitors' productsitidddlly, as more competitors
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introduce anatomically-shaped products that compéteours, we may face additional pricing presghe will impact our future results.

The long-term safety of our products has not fulbheen established and our breast implants are cuthgmnder study in our PMA and post-
approval studies, which could reveal unanticipatedmplications.

We currently market our silicone gel braagtlants in the United States. These products heseived prenarket approval from the FD
However, there could still be unanticipated congiluns or unforeseen health consequences of beiptanted with our silicone gel bre
implants over the longerm (defined as 10 years or more). Additionallyg wely on our clinical data to make favorable corigmms of ou
product to our competitive products, and our lorigem data may change over time. Further, futurdies or clinical experience may indic
that treatment with our products is not differetgthto treatment with competitive products. Suctults could slow the adoption of «
products and significantly reduce our sales, whiolld prevent us from achieving our forecastedsséédegets or achieving or sustair
profitability. Moreover, if longterm results and experience indicate that our ptsdcause unexpected or serious complications,ouk doe
subject to mandatory product recalls, suspensianitbdrawal of FDA clearance or approval and siigaifit legal liability.

Any negative publicity concerning our products callharm our business and reputation and negativatypact our financial results

The responses of potential patients, pleiss; the news media, legislative and regulatordids and others to information ab
complications or alleged complications of our pratducould result in negative publicity and couldtenilly reduce market acceptance of
products. These responses or any investigationpateatial resulting negative publicity may haveaterial adverse effect on our business
reputation and negatively impact our financial dtiad, results of operations or the market priceoof common stock. In addition, signific
negative publicity could result in an increased banof product liability claims against us.

If we are unable to train Plastic Surgeons on thafe and appropriate use of our products, we mayun@ble to achieve our expected grow

An important part of our sales processudek the ability to educate Plastic Surgeons atheuavailability of anatomicallghaped brea
implants and train Plastic Surgeons on the safeappdopriate use of our products. If we become len@battract potential new Plastic Surg
customers to our education and training progranesmay be unable to achieve our expected growth.

There is a learning process involved fasBt Surgeons to become proficient in the useuofamatomicallyshaped products. It is critic
to the success of our commercialization effortgdo a sufficient number of Plastic Surgeons arwvide them with adequate instruction in
appropriate use of our products via preceptorships additional demonstration surgeries. This trgmrocess may take longer than expe
and may therefore affect our ability to increadesarollowing completion of training, we rely dmettrained Plastic Surgeons to advocat
benefits of our products in the marketplace. Cotivig Plastic Surgeons to dedicate the time andggneecessary for adequate trainin
challenging, and we cannot assure you that web&iuccessful in these efforts. If Plastic Surgemasot properly trained, they may misus
ineffectively use our products. This may also resylamong other things, unsatisfactory patieritomes, patient injury, negative publicity
lawsuits against us, any of which could have areestreffect on our business and reputation.
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If we are unable to continue to enhance our exigiBreast Products and develop and market new prddubat respond to customer net
and preferences and achieve market acceptance, \ag experience a decrease in demand for our prodwatd our business could suffer.

We may not be able to compete effectiveiyrvwur competitors, and ultimately satisfy the dand preferences of our customers, u
we can continue to enhance existing products awuelole and market new innovative products. Prodesetbpment requires the investmer
significant financial, technological and other res®s. Product improvements and new product intrioios also require significant planni
design, development and testing at the technolhgicaduct and manufacturing process levels andmag not be able to timely deve
product improvements or new products. Our compstittew products may beat our products to marletnbre effective with new featur
obtain better market acceptance or render our ptedcabsolete. Any new or modified products thatdegelop may not receive clearanc
approval from the FDA, or achieve market acceptarcetherwise generate any meaningful sales oiitprfafr us relative to our expectatic
based on, among other things, existing and ant®ipmvestments in manufacturing capacity and cdmanits to fund advertising, marketi
promotional programs and research and development.

If changes in the economy and consumer spendingefprences and trends reduce consumer demand for products, our sales ar
profitability would suffer.

We are subject to the risks arising frommeade changes in general economic and market aomglitCertain elective procedures, suc
breast augmentation and body contouring, are tilpicat covered by insurance. Adverse changes éngtonomy may cause consumel
reassess their spending choices and reduce thendéiorathese surgeries and could have an advefset @n consumer spending. This ¢
could have an adverse effect on our net saleshé&umbore, consumer preferences and trends maydlefto a variety of factors, includi
changes in demographic and social trends, publadtthenitiatives and product innovations, which maduce consumer demand for
products.

We are required to maintain high levels of inventgmwhich could consume a significant amount of otgsources and reduce our cash flo

We need to maintain substantial levelsngéntory to protect ourselves from supply interiops, provide our customers with a wide re
of shapes and sizes of our breast implants, armbatdor the high return rates we experience astiel&urgeons typically order our product
multiple sizes for a single surgery and then retuat they do not use. As a result of our substhimventory levels, we are subject to the
that a substantial portion of our inventory becormlesolete, which could have a material adversecedie our earnings and cash flows du
the resulting costs associated with the inventoryairment charges and costs required to repladeisuentory.

Any disruption at our facilities could adverselyfatt our business and operating resul

Our principal offices are located in SaBtrbara, California. Substantially all of our op@yas are conducted at this location, incluc
customer and technical support, development andageanent and administrative functions. In additisumpstantially all of our inventory
finished goods is held at a second location in &&drbara, California. Despite our efforts to safeg our facilities, including acquiri
insurance, adopting health and safety protocolsutitiding off-site storage of computer data, vandalism, terroasia natural or other disas
such as an earthquake, fire or flood, could dansagiestroy our inventory of finished goods, causdestantial delays in our operations, rest
the loss of key information and cause us to inclditeonal expenses. Our insurance may not covetaases in any particular case. In addit
regardless of the level of insurance coverage, dart@mour facilities may have a material adverséecebn our business, financial condition
operating results.
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If there are significant disruptions in our inform&on technology systems, our business, financiahddion and operating results could |
adversely affected.

The efficient operation of our businesseatefs on our information technology systems. We oelypur information technology system:
effectively manage sales and marketing data, a¢omumnd financial functions, inventory, productvdlpment tasks, clinical data, ¢
customer service and technical support functionsr @formation technology systems are vulnerabledtonage or interruption frc
earthquakes, fires, floods and other natural diésssterrorist attacks, computer viruses or hackmwer losses, and computer system or
network failures. In addition, a variety of our sadire systems are cloud-based data managementapis hosted by thirgarty servic
providers whose security and information technolegstems are subject to similar risks.

The failure of our or our service providenformation technology could disrupt our entiggeoation or result in decreased sales, incre
overhead costs and product shortages, all of wbizhd have a material adverse effect on our rejmutabusiness, financial condition ¢
operating results.

We may be adversely affected by earthquakes or rottaural disasters and our business continuity amlisaster recovery plans may 1
adequately protect us from a serious disaster.

Our corporate headquarters and other figsiliare located in Santa Barbara, California, Whic the past has experienced both se
earthquakes and wildfires. We do not carry eartkguasurance. Earthquakes, wildfires or other radtdisasters could severely disrupt
operations, and have a material adverse effectiobusiness, results of operations, financial ciimdiand prospects.

If a natural disaster, power outage or o#went occurred that prevented us from usingradl significant portion of our headquarters,
damaged critical infrastructure, such as our endinancial systems or manufacturing resouremmihg and enterprise quality system:
that otherwise disrupted operations, it may badliff or, in certain cases, impossible for us tatawie our business for a substantial peric
time. The disaster recovery and business contimlitys we have in place currently are limited aredumlikely to prove adequate in the e
of a serious disaster or similar event. We may rirstibstantial expenses as a result of the limitgdre of our disaster recovery and busi
continuity plans, which, particularly when takergéther with our lack of earthquake insurance, cdidde a material adverse effect on
business.

Failure to obtain hospital or group purchasing orgezation contracts could have a material adversédeef on our financial condition an
operating results.

A portion of our net sales is derived freaies to hospitals. Many hospital customers, thHrdbg contracting process, limit the numbe
breast implant suppliers that may sell to theitiinson. Hospitals may choose to contract with competitors who have a broader rang
products that can be used in a wider variety ot@dares or our competitors may actively positicgirthroader product portfolios agains:
during the hospital contracting process. Any litiitas on the number of hospitals to which we cdhae products may significantly restr
our ability to grow.

In addition, contracts with hospitals andup purchasing organizations, or GPOs, often l@raplex insurance and indemnificat
requirements, which may not be beneficial to usyemay not be able to successfully negotiate aotgrwith a substantial number of hosp
and GPOs at all, which could adversely affect agiess, financial condition and results of opereti
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Our business could suffer if we lose the servicé&ey personnel or are unable to attract and retaadditional qualified personnel.

We are dependent upon the continued sexaitkey personnel, including members of our exeeunanagement team who have exter
experience in our industry. The loss of any on#éhebe individuals could disrupt our operations ar strategic plans. Additionally, our futi
success will depend on, among other things, odityalbd continue to hire and retain the necessamlified sales, marketing and manage
personnel, for whom we compete with numerous otieenpanies, academic institutions and organizatidhs. loss of key personnel or
inability to attract or retain other qualified penmel could have a material adverse effect on oasiness, results of operations and final
condition.

We will need to increase the size of our organipatiand we may experience difficulties in managiggowth.

As of December 31, 2014, we had approxitp&® full-time employees. Our management and personnelhangl/stems and facilities
currently have in place, may not be adequate tp@uguture growth. Effectively executing our grdwdtrategy requires that we increase
sales through sales and marketing activities, ieand retain additional employees and continud@rtprove our operational, financial ¢
management controls, reporting systems and proesdlirwe are not able to effectively expand owamization in these ways, we may no
able to successfully execute our growth strateggl,aur business, financial condition and resultsp#rations may suffer.

We may not realize the benefits of partnershipshwidther companies, acquisitions of complementaryogucts or technologies or oth
strategic alternatives

From time to time, we may consider oppaittes to partner with or acquire other businespesducts or technologies that may enhi
our product platform or technology, expand the 8teaof our markets or customer base or advancebosiness strategies. Poter
partnerships or acquisitions involve numerous rigkduding:

. integration of the acquired products or technolegigh our existing business;

. maintenance of uniform standards, procedure#yals and policies;

. unanticipated costs associated with partnerahipgquisitions;

. diversion of management's attention from ous#xg business;

. uncertainties associated with entering new ntarikewhich we have limited or no experience; and

. increased legal and accounting costs relatirtgegartnerships or acquisitions or compliancé wagulatory matters.

We currently have no commitments with resp® any partnership or acquisition. We do notwnidé we will be able to identif
partnerships or acquisitions we deem suitable, dretve will be able to successfully complete anghspartnerships or acquisitions
favorable terms or at all, or whether we will bdeatn successfully integrate any partnered or aeqguproducts or technologies. Our pote!
inability to integrate any partnered or acquiredducts or technologies effectively or realize dptited synergies may adversely affect
business, financial condition and results of openat
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Risks Related to Our Financial Results

Our quarterly net sales and operating results arepredictable and may fluctuate significantly fromuarter to quarter due to factors outsi
our control, which could adversely affect our bugiss, results of operations and the trading priceooir common stock.

Our net sales and operating results may s@nificantly from quarter to quarter and yearywar due to a number of factors, man
which are outside of our control and any of whicayncause our stock price to fluctuate. Our netssata results of operations will be affec
by numerous factors, including:

. the impact of the buying patterns of patientsd s@asonal cycles in consumer spending;

. our ability to drive increased sales of anat@ityeshaped breast implants products;

. our ability to establish and maintain an effeetand dedicated sales organization;

. pricing pressure applicable to our productsiuding adverse third-party coverage and reimbursgrmetcomes;
. results of clinical research and trials on axisting products;

. timing of our research and development activitied mitiatives;

. the mix of our products sold due to different prafiargins among our products;

. timing of new product offerings, acquisitions, lises or other significant events by us or our cditys;

. the ability of our suppliers to timely provide ughvan adequate supply of products;

. the evolving product offerings of our competitors;

. regulatory approvals and legislative changes affgadhe products we may offer or those of our cotibqres;
. increased labor and related costs;

. interruption in the manufacturing or distributiof our products;

. the effect of competing technological, indusind market developments;

. changes in our ability to obtain regulatory cteace or approval for our products; and

. our ability to expand the geographic reach afsales and marketing efforts.

Many of the products we may seek to devalug introduce in the future will require FDA apypabor clearance before commercializa
in the United States, and commercialization of spidducts outside of the United States would likedguire additional regulatory approv.
CE Certificates of Conformity and import licensAs.a result, it will be difficult for us to forecedemand for these products with any degrt
certainty. In addition, we will be increasing oypenating expenses as we expand our commercial disipabAccordingly, we may experien
significant, unanticipated quarterly losses. If @urarterly or annual operating results fall beldwe expectations of investors or secur
analysts, the price of our common stock could decfiubstantially. Furthermore, any quarterly oruahrluctuations in our operating resi
may, in turn, cause the price of our common stociuctuate substantially. We believe that quagtedmparisons of our financial results
not necessarily meaningful and should not be reljgsh as an indication of our future performance.
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Our future capital needs are uncertain and we magead to raise additional funds in the future, anddabke funds may not be available
acceptable terms or at all.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $96.7 amlin cash and cash equivalents. We believe thatailable cash on hand will be sulffici
to satisfy our liquidity requirements for at leéts¢ next 18 months. However, the continued groviithuo business, including the expansio
our sales force and marketing programs, and resesand development activities, will significantlyciease our expenses. In addition,
amount of our future product sales is difficultpiedict, especially in light of the recent commatigiation of our silicone gel breast impla
and actual sales may not be in line with our fos&xaAs a result, we may be required to seek aaditifunds in the future. Our future cag
requirements will depend on many factors, including

. net sales generated by our silicone gel breastaimigland tissue expanders and any other futuraipi®that we may devel
and commercialize;

. costs associated with expanding our sales fandemarketing programs;

. cost associated with developing and commeranginur proposed products or technologies;

. cost of obtaining and maintaining regulatoryacénce or approval for our current or future prasiuc
. cost of ongoing compliance with regulatory requiesns;

. expenses we incur in connection with potentiaydition or governmental investigations;

. anticipated or unanticipated capital expendituaest

. unanticipated general and administrative expenses.

As a result of these and other factorsgdavenot know whether and the extent to which we fayequired to raise additional capital.
may in the future seek additional capital from pailor private offerings of our capital stock, bosiogs under term loans or other sour
subject to the restrictions under our Loan and BigcAgreement with Oxford, which was amended aadtated on June 30, 2014, or
Amended Term Loan Agreement. If we issue equitydebt securities to raise additional funds, our texgsstockholders may experiel
dilution, and the new equity or debt securities naye rights, preferences and privileges seniathtse of our existing stockholders.
addition, if we raise additional funds through ablbrations, licensing, joint ventures, strategl@ates, partnership arrangements or ¢
similar arrangements, it may be necessary to neléigvaluable rights to our potential future praguor proprietary technologies, or gr
licenses on terms that are not favorable to us.

If we are unable to raise additional cdpitee may not be able to expand our sales forceraarketing programs, enhance our cul
products or develop new products, take advantadetwfe opportunities, or respond to competitivegsures, changes in supplier relations
or unanticipated changes in customer demand. Artiesdfe events could adversely affect our abilitaehieve our strategic objectives, wt
could have a material adverse effect on our busjriegmncial condition and operating results.

Our term loan agreement contains restrictive covetsthat may limit our operating flexibility.

Our Amended Term Loan Agreement with Oxfoahtains certain restrictive covenants that limit ability to transfer or dispose
certain assets, engage in new lines of businessigehthe composition of our management, merge avithcquire other companies, in
additional debt, create new liens and encumbramuaes,dividends or subordinated debt and enter inéberial transactions with affiliat
among others. We therefore may not be able to engagny of the foregoing transactions unless weinhthe consent of the lender
terminate the Amended Term Loan Agreement. The Atedmerm Loan Agreement also contains financiabntapg requirements. There is
guarantee that we will be able
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to pay the principal and interest under the Amenbemn Loan Agreement or that future working capibairrowings or equity financing will |
available to repay or refinance the amounts outstgnunder the Amended Term Loan Agreement. Intamdiwe may enter into de
agreements in the future that may contain simitanore burdensome terms and covenants, includianéial covenants.

Our ability to use net operating losses to offseture taxable income may be subject to certain liations.

As of December 31, 2014, we had federalapetrating loss carryforwards, or NOLs, of appraadety $101.2 million, which expire
various years beginning in 2027, if not utilizedoffset taxable income. In general, under Sect®h & the Internal Revenue Code of 198¢
amended, or the Code, a corporation that undergoéswnership change" is subject to limitationsitsrability to utilize its preshange NOL
to offset future taxable income. In general, anriewhip change" occurs if there is a cumulativengedn our ownership by "5% sharehold
that exceeds 50 percentage points over a rollingeear period. Our existing NOLs may be subject toithtions arising from previol
ownership changes, and if we undergo one or moremhip changes in connection with this offeringfudure transactions in our stock,
ability to utilize NOLs could be further limited b$ection 382 of the Code. As a result of thesetéiticins, we may not be able to utiliz
material portion of the NOLs reflected on our baksheet and for this reason, we have fully reseagainst the value of our NOLs on
balance sheet. We have not completed a SectioraB8B/sis to determine if an ownership change hasiroed. Until such analysis
completed, we cannot be sure that the full amo@ithe existing federal NOLs will be available to, even if we do generate taxable inct
before their expiration.

Future changes in financial accounting standards maause adverse unexpected net sales or expenstufitions and affect our reporte
results of operations.

A change in accounting standards could teasggnificant effect on our reported results aral/raven affect our reporting of transacti
completed before the change is effective. New pnonements and varying interpretations of existir@npuncements have occurred and
occur in the future. Changes to existing rulesusrant practices may adversely affect our repdiitexhcial results of our business.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property and Potatial Litigation

If our intellectual property rights do not adequdteprotect our products or technologies, others éicompete against us more direc
which would hurt our profitability.

Our success depends in part on our aliitprotect our intellectual property rights. Outeitectual property portfolio consists of
patents or patent applications, and we do not ntigrelan to file for patent protection in the fody in the United States or elsewhere.
instead rely on trade secrets, proprietary ki and regulatory barriers to protect our prodactd technologies and seek protection o
rights, in part, through confidentiality and pragierry information agreements. However, these ageatsimay not provide sufficient protect
or adequate remedies for violation of our rightstie event of unauthorized use or disclosure ofidential and proprietary informatic
Without additional protection under the patent lagisch unauthorized use or disclosure may enabtgettors to duplicate or surpass
technological achievements. Moreover, the lawsesfain foreign countries do not recognize intelilettproperty rights or protect them to
same extent as do the laws of the United Statdlswr&#0 protect our proprietary rights could sesty impair our competitive position.

If our exclusive license to use certain trademarksthe United States is terminated, we may be regdito cease using those trademal
which could interfere with our ability to market a@sting or future products under those trademarks.

We rely on a license from our manufactdogruse of the Silimed trademark. In the eventnS#i believes that our products do not me
commercially reasonable quality expectations andiavaot cure
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any deficiency within a commercially reasonablequpof time to Silimed's reasonable satisfactiagtim®@d may revoke our exclusive licenst
use the Silimed trademark. If such license is teat@d, the inability to use that trademark couklitein a loss of sales to us as a result @
goodwill associated with the Silimed trademark, andompetitor may use that trademark to capitadizehe goodwill associated with -
Silimed trademark. Either of these outcomes coeattbasly impair our competitive position.

The medical device industry is characterized byeggtlitigation and we could become subject to latgn that could be costly, result in tl
diversion of management's time and efforts, requine to pay damages or prevent us from marketing euisting or future products.

Our commercial success will depend in peartnot infringing the patents or violating the atlpeoprietary rights of others. Signific:
litigation regarding patent rights occurs in oudustry. Our competitors in both the United Stated abroad, many of which have substant
greater resources and have made substantial ineetsrin patent portfolios and competing technolegieay have applied for or obtainec
may in the future apply for and obtain, patentd thidl prevent, limit or otherwise interfere withuo ability to make, use and sell our prodt
Generally, we do not conduct independent reviewgabénts issued to third parties. We may not beewhwhether our products do or \
infringe existing or future patents. In additiomtg@nt applications in the United States and elsesvb@n be pending for many years, and m:
confidential for 18 months or more after filing,dabhecause pending patent claims can be revisedebiskuance, there may be applicatior
others now pending of which we are unaware that lai@y result in issued patents that will prevédiniit or otherwise interfere with our abili
to make, use or sell our products. We may not barawf patents that have already issued that d pairty might assert are infringed by
products. It is also possible that patents of whighare aware, but which we do not believe arevagieto our product candidates, cc
nevertheless be found to be infringed by our prégluthe large number of patents, the rapid rateewf patent applications and issuances
complexities of the technology involved and the antainty of litigation increase the risk of busiaesssets and management's attention
diverted to patent litigation. In the future, weymaceive communications from various industry iggrénts alleging our infringement of th
patents, trade secrets or other intellectual ptgpéaghts and/or offering licenses to such intdiled property. Any lawsuits resulting from si
allegations could subject us to significant liglilfor damages and invalidate our proprietary sghgven if they lack merit. Any poten
intellectual property litigation also could force to do one or more of the following:

. stop making, selling or using products or tedbgies that allegedly infringe the asserted intdilal property;

. lose the opportunity to license our technology thecs or to collect royalty payments based uporcessful protection ai
assertion of our intellectual property rights agaithers;

. incur significant legal expenses;

. pay substantial damages or royalties to the paniyse intellectual property rights we may be foumbé infringing;

. pay the attorney fees and costs of litigation ®ghrty whose intellectual property rights we mayfdund to be infringing;

. redesign those products that contain the allegadiynging intellectual property, which could be stly, disruptive and/c
infeasible; or

. attemp”t to obtain a license to the relevant intélial property from third parties, which may notéaailable on reasonable tel
or at all.

Any litigation or claim against us, evemsk without merit, may cause us to incur substiatists, and could place a significant strail
our financial resources, divert the attention ohagement from
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our core business and harm our reputation. If weg@und to infringe the intellectual property righuf third parties, we could be required to
substantial damages (which may be increased uprée times of awarded damages) and/or substaatialties and could be prevented fi
selling our products unless we obtain a licensarerable to redesign our products to avoid infringet. Any such license may not be avalil
on reasonable terms, if at all, and there can bassarance that we would be able to redesign aaugts in a way that would not infringe
intellectual property rights of others. If we ftol obtain any required licenses or make any nepgssanges to our products or technologies
may have to withdraw existing products from the ketwor may be unable to commercialize one or méreuo products, all of which cou
have a material adverse effect on our businessitses operations and financial condition.

In addition, we generally indemnify our tarsers with respect to infringement by our produaftshe proprietary rights of third parti
Third parties may assert infringement claims agains customers. These claims may require us t@ieior defend protracted and co
litigation on behalf of our customers, regardlekthe merits of these claims. If any of these clsncceed, we may be forced to pay dan
on behalf of our customers or may be required t@inblicenses for the products they use. If we carobtain all necessary licenses
commercially reasonable terms, our customers mdgroed to stop using our products.

We may be subject to damages resulting from clathest we or our employees have wrongfully used csdibsed alleged trade secrets of
competitors or are in breach of non-competition non-solicitation agreements with our competitors.

Many of our employees were previously emptbat other medical device companies, includingammpetitors or potential competitc
in some cases until recently. We have been theesubf and may, in the future, be subject to clatina we, our employees have inadverte
or otherwise used or disclosed alleged trade seoredther proprietary information of these forreemployers or competitors. In addition,
have been and may in the future be subject to sldivat we caused an employee to breach the terrhis afr her non-competition or non-
solicitation agreement. Litigation may be necessargiefend against these claims. Even if we areessful in defending against these cla
litigation could result in substantial costs andildobe a distraction to management. If our defdnsthose claims fails, in addition to pay
monetary damages, we may lose valuable intellegiegderty rights or personnel. Any litigation oetthreat thereof may adversely affect
ability to hire employees. A loss of key personpeltheir work product could hamper or prevent obility to commercialize produ
candidates, which could have an adverse effecuobuasiness, results of operations and financiatitimn.

We may be subject to substantial warranty or protiligbility claims or other litigation in the ordimry course of business that may adver:
affect our business, financial condition and openag) results.

As a supplier of medical devices, we maligject to substantial warranty or product liapitlaims alleging that the use of our prod
has resulted in adverse health effects or othigatibn in the ordinary course of business that meayire us to make significant expenditure
defend these claims or pay damage awards. Thethneglant industry has a particularly significanstory of product liability litigation. Th
risks of litigation exist even with respect to puots that have received or in the future may recedgulatory approval for commercial sale
addition, our silicone gel breast implants are suith a warranty providing for noharge replacement implants in the event of cerigature:
that occur any time during the life of the patiantl this warranty also includes cash paymentsfseib$urgical fees if the rupture occurs wi
10 years of implantation.

We maintain product liability insurancet Ihis insurance is limited in amount and subjecdignificant deductibles. There is no guara
that insurance will be available or adequate tagmtoagainst all claims. Our insurance policiessaigiect to annual renewal and we may ni
able to obtain liability insurance in the future acceptable terms or at all. In addition, our iaswe premiums could be
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subject to increases in the future, which may béend. If the coverage limits are inadequate teeroour liabilities or our insurance cc
continue to increase as a result of warranty odyeb liability claims or other litigation, then obusiness, financial condition and opera
results may be adversely affected.

Fluctuations in insurance cost and availability cdadiadversely affect our profitability or our risk anagement profile.

We hold a number of insurance policies|uding product liability insurance, directors' aofficers' liability insurance, general liabil
insurance, property insurance and workers' compiensansurance. If the costs of maintaining adeguatsurance coverage incre
significantly in the future, our operating resutsuld be materially adversely affected. Likewigeriy of our current insurance coverage sh
become unavailable to us or become economicallyrdntjzal, we would be required to operate our bessnwithout indemnity fro
commercial insurance providers. If we operate awgiess without insurance, we could be responéiblpaying claims or judgments aga
us that would have otherwise been covered by inseravhich could adversely affect our results adfrations or financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Legal and Regulatory Environmat

We are subject to extensive federal and state ratiah, and if we fail to comply with applicable retations, we could suffer severe crimir
or civil sanctions or be required to restructure pwperations, any of which could adversely affeairabusiness, financial condition an
operating results.

As a device manufacturer, even though waataontrol referrals or bill directly to Medicaftdedicaid or other thirgharty payors, we a
subject to healthcare fraud and abuse regulatidneaforcement by the federal government and thessia which we conduct our busine
The laws that may affect our ability to operatdude:

. the federal AntiKickback Statute, which applies to our businessviiets, including our marketing practices, educa#
programs, pricing policies and relationships withalthcare providers, by prohibiting, among othdngh, knowingly an
willfully soliciting, receiving, offering or proviothg any remuneration (including any bribe, kickbamk rebate) directly «
indirectly, overtly or covertly, in cash or in kinthtended to induce or return for the purchaseeoommendation of any got
facility, item or service reimbursable, in wholeiorpart, under a federal healthcare program, siscthe Medicare or Medic:
programs. A person or entity does not need to laatgal knowledge of the AnKickback Statute or specific intent to violate
In addition, the government may assert that a claictuding items or services resulting from a vima of the federal Anti-
Kickback Statute constitutes a false or fraudutdsitn for purposes of the false claims laws;

. federal civil and criminal false claims laws andilcmonetary penalty laws, including the federaldeaClaims Act, or FCA, th
prohibit, among other things, knowingly presentingcausing to be presented, claims for paymemb fkéedicare, Medicaid
other thirdparty payors that are false or fraudulent, or mglarfalse statement material to an obligation toqraransmit mone
or property to the federal government, and whicly aqaply to entities that provide coding and billiadvice to customers;

. the federal Health Insurance Portability and Acdability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, and its implemengnregulations, whic
created federal criminal laws that prohibit, amalger things, knowingly and willfully executing, attempting to execute
scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit programatiing false statements relating to healthcardersaand, as amended
the Health Information Technology for Economic a@tinical Health Act, also imposes certain regulptand contractu
requirements regarding the privacy, security aadsmission of individually identifiable health infoation;
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. federal "sunshine" requirements imposed by theeRafrotection and Affordable Care Act, as amergethe Health Care a
Education Reconciliation Act, or PPACA, on certalavice manufacturers regarding any "transfers dfie’aprovided ti
physicians and teaching hospitals. Failure to stiveguired information may result in civil monetapgnalties of up to :
aggregate of $150,000 per year and up to an aggref&1 million per year for "knowing failures rfall payments, transfers
value or ownership or investment interests thatnatetimely, accurately, and completely reportecmannual submission. T
period between August 1, 2013 and December 31, 8@k3the first reporting period, and manufactureese required to repc
aggregate payment data by March 31, 2014, and regréred to report detailed payment data and sulegdl attestation to t|
accuracy of such data by June 30, 2014. Thereaftanufacturers must submit reports by the 90thafagach subseque
calendar year; and

. state law equivalents of each of the above fedeves, such as ankickback and false claims laws that may apply émni$ o
services reimbursed by any thiparty payor, including commercial insurers; stat®d that require device companies to cot
with the industry's voluntary compliance guidelirmesl the relevant compliance guidance promulgayettido federal governme
or otherwise restrict payments that may be provitiedhealthcare providers and entities; state lala trequire devic
manufacturers to report information related to pagta and other transfers of value to physiciansaher healthcare provide
and entities or marketing expenditures; and st lgoverning the privacy and security of certagalth information, many
which differ from each other in significant waysdaoften are not preempted by HIPAA, thus complitgattompliance efforts.

Because of the breadth of these laws,pbssible that some of our business activitieduifing our relationships with physicians and o
health care providers and entities, sashevhom recommend, purchase and/or prescribe amgygts, could be subject to challenge under o
more of such laws. Any action against us for violabf these laws, even if we successfully defegairest it, could cause us to incur signific
legal expenses and divert our management's attefnion the operation of our business. If our ogeret are found to be in violation of any
the laws described above or any other governmeadgilations that apply to us, we may be subjegetmalties, including, without limitatic
administrative, civil and/or criminal penalties, ndages, fines, disgorgement, contractual damagemjtational harm, exclusion frc
governmental health care programs, and the cusaiiror restructuring of our operations, any of whoould adversely affect our ability
operate our business and our financial results.

Our medical device products and operations are &abjto extensive governmental regulation both iretbnited States and abroad, and «
failure to comply with applicable requirements calitause our business to suffe

Our medical device products and operatemessubject to extensive regulation by the FDA wadous other federal, state and fore
governmental authorities, such as Health Canadse®ment regulation of medical devices is meardagsure their safety and effectiven
and includes regulation of, among other things:

. design, development and manufacturing;

. testing, labeling, content and language of insionstfor use and storage;

. clinical trials;

. product safety;

. marketing, sales and distribution;

. regulatory clearances and approvals includimgmarket clearance and approval;
. conformity assessment procedures;
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. product traceability and record keeping procedures;

. advertising and promotion;

. product complaints, complaint reporting, recalld &rld safety corrective actions;

. postmarket surveillance, including reporting of deadhserious injuries and malfunctions that, if thvegre to recur, could le

to death or serious injury;
. post-market studies; and

. product import and export.

The regulations to which we are subjectcamaplex and have tended to become more stringamttome. Regulatory changes could re
in restrictions on our ability to carry on or explasur operations, higher than anticipated costewer than anticipated sales.

Before we can market or sell a new regdlgeduct or a significant modification to an eiigtproduct in the United States, we n
obtain either clearance under Section 510(k) of#aderal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, or FDCA, roapproval of a preaarket approval,
PMA, application unless the device is specificatkempt from prenarket review. In the 510(k) clearance processFba& must determine th
a proposed device is "substantially equivalenté tdevice legally on the market, known as a "pradicdevice, with respect to intended |
technology and safety and effectiveness, in ordecléar the proposed device for marketing. Clinitala is sometimes required to sup
substantial equivalence. In the PMA approval prectsee FDA must determine that a proposed devisafis and effective for its intended
based, in part, on extensive data, including, lmtlimited to, technical, prelinical, clinical trial, manufacturing and labejirdata. The PM.
process is typically required for devices for whible 510(k) process cannot be used and that areedket® pose the greatest risk, such as lif
sustaining, lifesupporting or implantable devices. Modificationgptoducts that are approved through a PMA appbcagjenerally need FC
approval. Similarly, some modifications made todurats cleared through a 510(k) may require a ne@(l§1The FDA's 510(k) clearar
process usually takes from three to 12 monthspiayt last longer. The process of obtaining a PMAigh more costly and uncertain than
510(k) clearance process and generally takes frogn@three years, or even longer, from the tineeghplication is submitted to the FDA u
an approval is obtained.

In the United States, our silicone gel btamplants are marketed pursuant to a PMA ordared by the FDA in March 2012, and
tissue expanders are marketed pursuant taramiet clearance under Section 510(k) of the FDiEAhe FDA requires us to go throug!
lengthier, more rigorous examination for futureguots or modifications to existing products thanveel expected, our product introducti
or modifications could be delayed or canceled, widould cause our sales to decline. The FDA mayadenthat we obtain a PMA prior
marketing certain of our future products. In aduitiif the FDA disagrees with our determinationtthgporoduct we market is subject to
exemption from prenarket review, the FDA may require us to submitl@(k) or PMA in order to continue marketing the quot. Furthe
even with respect to those future products wheRIVBA is not required, we cannot assure you that vile he able to obtain the 5101
clearances with respect to those products.

The FDA can delay, limit or deny clearanc@pproval of a device for many reasons, including

. we may not be able to demonstrate to the FDélIsfaction that our products are safe and effedtiv their intended uses;
. the data from our pre-clinical studies and clitrials may be insufficient to support clearancapproval, where required; and
. the manufacturing process or facilities we use matymeet applicable requirements.
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In addition, the FDA may change its cleamand approval policies, adopt additional regafetior revise existing regulations, or t
other actions that may prevent or delay approvall@arance of our products under development oagnpur ability to modify our current
approved or cleared products on a timely basisekample, in 2011, the FDA announced a Plan ofohctd modernize and improve the FC
pre-market review of medical devices, and has impleted, and continues to implement, reforms intéridestreamline the prearket reviey
process. In addition, as part of the Food and Dxdministration Safety and Innovation Act of 2012, EDASIA, Congress enacted sew:
reforms entitled the Medical Device Regulatory loygments and additional miscellaneous provisionstwvill further affect medical devi
regulation both pre- and poapproval. Any change in the laws or regulationg tfavern the clearance and approval processesngelat ou
current and future products could make it moreialiff and costly to obtain clearance or approvalfew products, or to produce, market
distribute existing products.

The FDA could also reclassify some or &lbor products that are currently classified ass€l&to Class Il requiring additional contre
clinical studies and submission of a PMA for ugdatinue marketing and selling those products. Uné& changes instituted by FDASIA,
FDA may now change the classification of a meddmlice by administrative order instead of by regoia Although the revised proces:
simpler, the FDA must still publish a proposed orgiethe Federal Register, hold a device clasdificapanel meeting and consider comm
from affected stakeholders before issuing the ssfi@ation order. We cannot guarantee that the RIANnot reclassify any of our Class
devices into Class Ill and require us to submit@Hor FDA review and approval of the safety anéeefiveness of our product. Any delay
or failure to receive or maintain, clearance orrapgl for our products under development could prews from generating sales from tt
products or achieving profitability. Additionalljthe FDA and other regulatory authorities have breamdorcement powers. Regulat
enforcement or inquiries, or other increased seyutin us, could dissuade some surgeons from using@mducts and adversely affect
reputation and the perceived safety and efficacyuofproducts.

In addition, even after we have obtaineaghoper regulatory clearance or approval to maak@toduct, the FDA has the power to rec
us to conduct postarketing studies. For example, we are requirezbiinue to study and report clinical results t® EDA on our silicone g
breast implants. Failure to conduct this or otlegpuired studies in a timely manner could resutharevocation of the PMA approval or 51(
clearance for the product that is subject to suchgairement and could also result in the recalvithdrawal of the product, which wot
prevent us from generating sales from that progtutite United States.

Failure to comply with applicable laws amdjulations could jeopardize our ability to selt guoducts and result in enforcement act
such as:

. warning letters;

. fines;

. injunctions;

. civil penalties;

. termination of distribution;

. recalls or seizures of products;

. delays in the introduction of products into tharket;

. total or partial suspension of production;

. refusal of the FDA or other regulator to grantfe clearances or approvals;
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. withdrawals or suspensions of current clearancegprovals, resulting in prohibitions on sales wf products; and/or

. in the most serious cases, criminal penalties.

Any of these sanctions could result in kigthan anticipated costs or lower than anticipatdds and have a material adverse effect ¢
reputation, business, results of operations arahfiial condition.

If we or our third-party manufacturer fail to comply with the FDA's gl manufacturing practice regulations, it could inair our ability to
market our products in a cost-effective and timehanner.

We and our thirgarty manufacturer are required to comply with FBA's Quality System Regulation, or QSR, which asviie methoc
and documentation of the design, testing, prodactiontrol, quality assurance, labeling, packagstgrilization, storage and shipping of
products. The FDA audits compliance with the QSRugh periodic announced and unannounced inspasctibrmanufacturing and otf
facilities. The FDA may conduct inspections or asicit any time. If we or our manufacturer fail tdhare to QSR requirements, h
significant noneompliance issues or fail to timely and adequatefpond to any adverse inspectional observatiopsaaiuct safety issues, o
any corrective action plan that we or our manufatypropose in response to observed deficienciemtssufficient, the FDA could ta
enforcement action against us, which could delagpction of our products and may include:

. untitled letters, warning letters, fines, injuncisy consent decrees and civil penalties;

. unanticipated expenditures to address or defeniu actions;

. customer notifications or repair, replacement, mdfy recall, detention or seizure of our products;

. operating restrictions or partial suspensiototal shutdown of production;

. refusing or delaying our requests for 510(kjpctéace or premarket approval of new products orifiedidproducts;
. withdrawing 510(k) clearances or pre-market appls that have already been granted,;

. refusal to grant export approval for our produot

. criminal prosecution.

Any of the foregoing actions could have atenial adverse effect on our reputation, businfisancial condition and operating rest
Furthermore, our manufacturer may not currentipbmay not continue to be in compliance with allégable regulatory requirements, wh
could result in our failure to produce our produmtsa timely basis and in the required quantiifest, all.

There is no guarantee that the FDA will grant 510(klearance or PMA approval of our future productand failure to obtain necessa
clearances or approvals for our future products widwadversely affect our ability to grow our busires

Some of our future products may require Féd#arance of a 510(k) or FDA approval of a PMAeTHDA may not approve or clear th
products for the indications that are necessanesirable for successful commercialization. Ind¢lee ,FDA may refuse our requests for 51
clearance or pre-market approval of new products.

Significant delays in receiving clearanceapproval, or the failure to receive clearancemproval for our new products would have
adverse effect on our ability to expand our busines
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If we modify our FDA approved or cleared devicese way need to seek additional clearances or appigvanhich, if not granted, woul
prevent us from selling our modified product

In the United States, our silicone gel btémplants are marketed pursuant to a PMA ordareid by the FDA in March 2012, and
tissue expanders are marketed pursuant to pre-ineldaance under Section 510(k) of the FDCA. Anydifications to a PMAapproved ¢
510(k)-cleared device that could significantly affectsefety or effectiveness, including significant desand manufacturing changes, or
would constitute a major change in its intended, usenufacture, design, components, or technologuires a new 510(k) clearance
possibly, approval of a new PMA application or PMApplement. However, certain changes to a Padgfroved device do not reqt
submission and approval of a new PMA or PMA supgletrand may only require notice to FDA in a PMA AahReport. The FDA requir
every manufacturer to make this determination & fitst instance, but the FDA may review any mantufieer's decision. The FDA may |
agree with our decisions regarding whether newratezses or approvals are necessary. We have modifiee of our 510(k) cleared produ
and have determined based on our review of theicaipé FDA guidance that in certain instances thanges did not require new 51(
clearances or PMA approvals. If the FDA disagreil aur determination and requires us to seek ne@®§ clearances or PMA approvals
modifications to our previously cleared or appropedducts for which we have concluded that newreleges or approvals are unnecessanr
may be required to cease marketing or to recalhtbdified product until we obtain clearance or apat, and we may be subject to signific
regulatory fines or penalties. Furthermore, oudpats could be subject to recall if the FDA deteresi, for any reason, that our products ar
safe or effective or that appropriate regulatorpmsissions were not made. Delays in receipt or ffailto receive approvals, the loss
previously received approvals, or the failure tanpty with any other existing or future regulatoryquirements, could reduce our st
profitability and future growth prospects.

A recall of our products, either voluntarily or athe direction of the FDA or another governmental thority, or the discovery of seriol
safety issues with our products that leads to cetige actions, could have a significant adverse mepon us.

The FDA and similar foreign governmentathauities have the authority to require the recflcommercialized products in the even
material deficiencies or defects in design or maoufre of a product or in the event that a proghastes an unacceptable risk to health.
FDA's authority to require a recall must be basedao FDA finding that there is reasonable probgbthat the device would cause seri
injury or death. Manufacturers may also, underrtbein initiative, recall a product if any materd#ficiency in a device is found or withdra
product to improve device performance or for otteasons. The FDA requires that certain classificatiof recalls be reported to the F
within 10 working days after the recall is initidt& governmenthandated or voluntary recall by us or one of ostritiutors could occur as
result of an unacceptable risk to health, compofahtres, malfunctions, manufacturing errors, dasor labeling defects or other deficien:
and issues. Similar regulatory agencies in othenta@s have similar authority to recall devicesdese of material deficiencies or defec
design or manufacture that could endanger healtly. r&call would divert management attention anariitial resources and could cause
price of our stock to decline, expose us to prodiability or other claims and harm our reputatieith customers. Such events could impair
ability to produce our products in a cedfective and timely manner in order to meet owstomers' demands. A recall involving our silicord
breast implants could be particularly harmful t@ business, financial and operating results. Conggaare required to maintain certain rec
of recalls, even if they are not reportable toFRA or similar foreign governmental authorities. Wiay initiate voluntary recalls involving ¢
products in the future that we determine do nouimeqnotification of the FDA or foreign governmehtauthorities. If the FDA or foreig
governmental authorities disagree with our deteatioms, they could require us to report those astas recalls. A future recall announcer
could harm our reputation with customers and negbtiaffect our sales. In addition, the FDA or aign governmental authority could t:
enforcement action for failing to report the resallhen they were conducted.
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In addition, under the FDA's medical dewvieporting regulations, we are required to repoithe FDA any incident in which our prod
may have caused or contributed to a death or senmury or in which our product malfunctioned aifdhe malfunction were to recur, wot
likely cause or contribute to death or seriousrinjiRepeated product malfunctions may result imlantary or involuntary product recall. \
are also required to follow detailed recordkeepeguirements for all firmnitiated medical device corrections and removaital to report suc
corrective and removal actions to FDA if they agegried out in response to a risk to health and hateotherwise been reported under
medical device reporting regulations. In additimnpecember of 2012, the FDA issued a draft guidantended to assist the FDA and indu
in distinguishing medical device recalls from prodanhancements. Per the guidance, if any changeoap of changes to a device addres
violation of the FDCA, that change would generalbnstitute a medical device recall and require ssdion of a recall report to the FC
Depending on the corrective action we take to sdeeproduct's deficiencies or defects, the FDA reguire, or we may decide, that we
need to obtain new approvals or clearances fodéwice before we may market or distribute the e device. Seeking such approval
clearances may delay our ability to replace thalled devices in a timely manner. Moreover, if we ribt adequately address probli
associated with our devices, we may face additioeglatory enforcement action, including FDA warpletters, product seizure, injunctic
administrative penalties, or civil or criminal fsleWe may also be required to bear other costaker dther actions that may have a neg
impact on our sales as well as face significaneesky publicity or regulatory consequences, whialiccharm our business, including our ab
to market our products in the future.

Any adverse event involving our productbether in the United States or abroad, could resdliture voluntary corrective actions, s
as recalls or customer notifications, or agencjoactsuch as inspection, mandatory recall or o#rdorcement action. Any corrective acti
whether voluntary or involuntary, as well as defegdourselves in a lawsuit, will require the dediica of our time and capital, distri
management from operating our business and may barmeputation and financial results.

If the third parties on which we rely to conduct owlinical trials and to assist us with p-clinical development do not perform
contractually required or expected, we may not li@eato obtain regulatory clearance or approval for commercialize our products.

We often must rely on third parties, suchcantract research organizations, medical ingiitgt clinical investigators and contr
laboratories to conduct our clinical trials andgae our regulatory submissions. If these thirdigardo not successfully carry out tt
contractual duties or regulatory obligations or treegected deadlines, if these third parties nedaktreplaced, or if the quality or accurac
the data they obtain is compromised due to tharfailo adhere to our clinical protocols or regulat@quirements or for other reasons, our pr
clinical development activities or clinical triatsay be extended, delayed, suspended or termireteldye may not be able to obtain regule
clearance or approval for, or successfully comnadize, our products on a timely basis, if at alldeour business, operating results
prospects may be adversely affected. Furthermarethird-party clinical trial investigators may be delayedconducting our clinical trials f
reasons outside of their control.

We may be subject to regulatory or enforcement @t if we engage in improper marketing or promotiafiour products.

Our educational and promotional activitimsd training methods must comply with FDA and otlapplicable laws, including t
prohibition of the promotion of a medical device Bouse that has not been cleared or approvedeb¥EA. Use of a device outside of
cleared or approved indications is known as "dffeld use. Physicians may use our productdaifél in their professional medical judgmen:
the FDA does not restrict or regulate a physiciaht@ce of treatment within the practice of medicirlowever, if the FDA determines that
educational and promotional activities or trainicgnstitutes promotion of an ofktbel use, it could request that we modify ourniirag ol
promotional materials or
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subject us to regulatory or enforcement actionsluiting the issuance of warning letters, untitlettdrs, fines, penalties, injunctions,
seizures, which could have an adverse impact onreputation and financial results. It is also pblkesithat other federal, state or fore
enforcement authorities might take action if thepsider our educational and promotional activiGesraining methods to constitute promo
of an offiabel use, which could result in significant firmspenalties under other statutory authoritieshsaglaws prohibiting false claims
reimbursement. In that event, our reputation ctseldiamaged and adoption of the products could paifed. Although our policy is to refre
from statements that could be consideredlaifel promotion of our products, the FDA or anothegulatory agency could disagree
conclude that we have engaged inlaffel promotion. It is also possible that othereied, state or foreign enforcement authorities mtgke
action if they consider our business activitiesstitate promotion of an offabel use, which could result in significant peiesit including, bt
not limited to, criminal, civil and/or administraé penalties, damages, fines, disgorgement, ercluBom participation in governme
healthcare programs, and the curtailment or restrimg of our operations. In addition, the d¢dbel use of our products may increase the ri
product liability claims. Product liability claimare expensive to defend and could divert our managés attention, result in substar
damage awards against us, and harm our reputation.

Changes in existing thirdparty coverage and reimbursement may impact ourligpto sell our products when used in breast resbruction
procedures

Maintaining and growing sales of our praguahen used in breast reconstruction procedurpsrdis, in part, on the availability
coverage and adequate reimbursement from phartly payors, including government programs suchMaslicare and Medicaid, prive
insurance plans and managed care programs. Haspital other healthcare provider customers thathpgec our products to use in bri
reconstruction procedures typically bill variougdhparty payors to cover all or a portion of the castd fees associated with the procedur
which our products are used, including the costhef purchase of our products. Changes in the amithinatparty payors are willing
reimburse our customers for breast reconstructrongquures using our products could create pricnegqures for us. We may be unable tc
our products on a profitable basis if thpdrty payors deny coverage or reduce their cuteuals of payment, or if our costs of produc
increase faster than increases in reimbursemeeislev

Furthermore, the healthcare industry in theted States has experienced a trend toward a@m#hinment as government and pri
insurers seek to control healthcare costs by inmgosdiwer payment rates and negotiating reducedracintates with service provide
Therefore, we cannot be certain that the breashsguction procedures using our products will denbursed at a costffective level. Nor ce
we be certain that thirgarty payors using a methodology that sets amcaged on the type of procedure performed, suchas® tutilized b
government programs and in many privately managee systems, will view the cost of our productdéojustified so as to incorporate s
costs into the overall cost of the procedure. Meeepwe are unable to predict what changes wiliniaele to the reimbursement methodolc
used by third-party payors in the future.

To the extent we sell our products inteorelly, market acceptance may depend, in parthute availability of coverage a
reimbursement within prevailing healthcare paymgrgtems. Reimbursement and healthcare paymentsysteinternational markets v
significantly by country, and include both govermisponsored healthcare and private insurance. Wenoggbtain international covere
and reimbursement approvals in a timely manneat dll. Our failure to receive such approvals wonddjatively impact market acceptanc
our products in the international markets in whithse approvals are sought.
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Legislative or regulatory health care reforms mayake it more difficult and costly to produce, markand distribute our products aft
clearance or approval is obtained.

Recent political, economic and regulatarffuences are subjecting the health care industrfuhdamental changes. The sales of
products depend, in part, on the availability off@@ge and adequate reimbursement from théndy payors such as government he
programs, private health insurers, health maintemasrganizations and other health cagleted organizations. Both the federal and
governments in the United States and foreign gawents continue to propose and pass new legislatidnregulations designed to contai
reduce the cost of health care. Such legislatiahragulations may result in decreased reimbursefoemedical devices and/or the proced
in which they are used, which may further exacertadustrywide pressure to reduce the prices charged forgakdevices. This could ha
our ability to market and generate sales from aadupcts.

In addition, FDA regulations and guidance aften revised or reinterpreted by the FDA in svélyat may significantly affect our busin
and our products. Any new regulations or revisionseinterpretations of existing regulations mayase additional costs or lengthen re\
times of our products.

Federal and state governments in the UrStaties have recently enacted legislation to owgrifie nation's health care system. In Mi
2010, the PPACA was signed into law. While the gidiealth care reform is to expand coverage tcenmattividuals, it also involves increa:
government price controls, additional regulatoryndetes and other measures designed to constraiitahedsts. The PPACA substanti
changes the way healthcare is financed by bothrgavental and private insurers, encourages improwuésria the quality of healthcare ite
and services and significantly impacts the medieaice industry. Among other things, the PPACA:

. imposes an annual excise tax of 2.3% on any etht#tly manufactures or imports medical devices offéoe sale in the Unite
States, with limited exceptions;

. establishes a new Patidbentered Outcomes Research Institute to overseeidamdify priorities in comparative clinic
effectiveness research in an effort to coordinatedevelop such research;

. implements payment system reforms including a natipilot program on payment bundling to encouragspitals, physicial
and other providers to improve the coordinatiorgliqy and efficiency of certain health care sersiterough bundled payme
models; and

. creates an independent payment advisory boardamiiasubmit recommendations to Congress to reduealikbre spending

projected Medicare spending exceeds a specifiegthrate.

In addition, other legislative changes haeen proposed and adopted since the PPACA waseedn&an August 2, 2011, the Presic
signed into law the Budget Control Act of 2011, @i among other things, created the Joint Selechr@ittee on Deficit Reduction
recommend to Congress proposals in spending reshsctiTrhe Joint Select Committee did not achievargeted deficit reduction of at le
$1.2 trillion for the years 2013 through 2021, ¢eging the legislation's automatic reduction toesalsgovernment programs. This inclu
reductions to Medicare payments to providers offfiscal year, which went into effect on April2013 and will stay in effect through 2(
unless additional Congressional action is taken.J@muary 2, 2013, President Obama signed into h@nAmerican Taxpayer Relief Act
2012, or the ATRA, which, among other things, redtld/edicare payments to several providers, inclydiospitals, imaging centers
cancer treatment centers and increased the statlitaitations period for the government to recoeserpayments to providers from thre:
five years.

In the future there may continue to be toidal proposals relating to the reform of the Lh8althcare system. Certain of these prop
could limit the prices we are able to charge for products, or the amount of reimbursement avaldbi our products, and could limit 1
acceptance and availability
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of our products, any of which could have a mateathlerse effect on our business, results of opeEstnd financial condition.
If we fail to obtain and maintain regulatory appral in Canada, our market opportunities will be lit@d.

In order to market our products in Canagle,must obtain and maintain separate regulatoryoapis and comply with numerous
varying regulatory requirements. We currently marer tissue expanders and facial implants in Canadt are awaiting Health Canai
approval to market our breast implant products emala. Although we do not anticipate any additiomahclinical or clinical stuc
requirements, we may be delayed in obtaining aggrtmvsell our breast implants in Canada if we nieerespond to requests for informai
from Health Canada during the review process, wh@&hains ongoing. The time required to obtain ratguy approval in Canada may
longer than the time required to obtain FDA prarket approval. The Canadian regulatory approvatgss includes many of the ri
associated with obtaining FDA clearance and we nayobtain Canadian regulatory approval on a tinbelgis, if at all. FDA approval does
ensure approval by regulatory authorities in ottmmtries, including Canada, and approval by oneida regulatory authority does not en:
approval by regulatory authorities in other fore@untries. However, the failure to obtain cleasac approval in one jurisdiction may ha\
negative impact on our ability to obtain clearancapproval elsewhere. If we do not obtain or n@mnhecessary approvals to commerci:
our products in Canada, it would negatively affaat overall market penetration.

Our customers and much of our industry are requiréal be compliant under the federal Health Insuran&®rtability and Accountability Ac
of 1996, the Health Information Technology for Ecamic and Clinical Health Act and implementing regations (including the fina
Omnibus Rule published on January 25, 2013) affedfithe transmission, security and privacy of healtiformation, and failure to compl
could result in significant penalties.

Numerous federal and state laws and reigaktincluding HIPAA, and the Health Informatioredhnology for Economic and Clinic
Health Act, or the HITECH Act, govern the collectjodissemination, security, use and confidentiatityhealth information that identifi
specific patients. HIPAA and the HITECH Act requar surgeon and hospital customers to comply wéftain standards for the use
disclosure of health information within their comgss and with third parties. The Privacy Standadd Security Standards under HIP
establish a set of standards for the protectiomaividually identifiable health information by héa plans, health care clearinghouses
certain health care providers, referred to as CGmldEntities, and the Business Associates with wi@owered Entities enter into serv
relationships pursuant to which individually iddiatble health information may be exchanged. Notabliiereas HIPAA previously direc
regulated only these Covered Entities, the HITEC#, Avhich was signed into law as part of the stiumsubackage in February 2009, me
certain of HIPAA's privacy and security standarto alirectly applicable to Covered Entities' Busiméssociates. As a result, both Cov
Entities and Business Associates are now subjesigtficant civil and criminal penalties for faikito comply with Privacy Standards
Security Standards.

HIPAA requires Covered Entities (like ourstomers) and Business Associates to develop armataimapolicies and procedures w
respect to protected health information that isdusedisclosed, including the adoption of admitistre, physical and technical safeguarc
protect such information. The HITECH Act expands tiotification requirement for breaches of patieleftifiable health information, restri
certain disclosures and sales of patieeftifiable health information and provides fowitimonetary penalties for HIPAA violations. T
HITECH Act also increased the civil and criminalhpéies that may be imposed against Covered Estitied Business Associates and
state attorneys general new authority to file cagtions for damages or injunctions in federal toto enforce the federal HIPAA laws and ¢
attorney fees and costs associated with pursuiteréé civil actions. Additionally, certain statesvie adopted comparable privacy and sec
laws and regulations, some of which may be moregant than HIPAA.
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We are not currently required to complyhatlPAA or HITECH because we are neither a Covérstity nor a Business Associate (as
term is defined by HIPAA). However, in administeriour warranties and complying with FDA requiredvide tracking, we do regula
handle confidential and personal information simitathat which these laws seek to protect. We atsmsionally encounter hospital custor
who pressure us to sign Business Associate AgreismenBAAs, although, to date, we have refusedemithat we do not believe we
business associates to such Covered Entities U1&&A or HITECH. If the law or regulations were ¢hange or if we were to agree to si
BAA, the costs of complying with the HIPAA standardre burdensome and could have a material adefest on our business. In additi
under such situations there would be significaskgiand financial penalties for us if we were tlieand to have violated the laws ¢
regulations that pertain to Covered Entities andiBess Associates.

We are unable to predict what changese¢dHiPAA Privacy Standards and Security Standardghtrbe made in the future or how th
changes could affect our business. Any new legisiabr regulation in the area of privacy and sdguof personal information, includil
personal health information, could also adverséfigchour business operations. If we do not compiy existing or new applicable federal
state laws and regulations related to patient héadbrmation, we could be subject to criminal drilcsanctions and any resulting liability co
adversely affect our financial condition.

An adverse outcome of a sales and use tax audilddave a material adverse effect on our resultsopierations and financial condition

We sell our products in all 50 states aachestate (and some local governments) has itssahas tax laws and regulations. We ch
each of our customers sales tax on each order ggattrand pay that tax to the appropriate stathosiy, unless we believe there is
applicable exception. In some states, there aravailable exceptions; in some states, we believepoaducts can be sold tax free. In o
states, we believe we can sell our products taxdrdy for customers who request Exempt treatment due to the nature of the devieesel
or due to the nature of the customer's use of euicd. We may be audited by the taxing authoritiesne or more states and there can t
assurance, however, that an audit will be resoilmegur favor. Such an audit could be expensive tiamd-consuming and result in substar
management distraction. If the matter were to Iselved in a manner adverse to us, it could haveagenial adverse effect on our result
operations and financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Our stock price may be volatile, and you may notdi#e to resell shares of our common stock at ooaé the price you paid.

The market price of our common stock i€lljkto be highly volatile and could be subject tmevfluctuations in response to vari
factors, some of which are beyond our control. €Hastors include those discussed in this "Riskdfat section of this Form 1R-and other
such as:

. a slowdown in the medical device industry, the lzetsts industry or the general economy;

. actual or anticipated quarterly or annual variagionour results of operations or those of our cetibqrs;

. changes in accounting principles or changes inpné¢ations of existing principles, which couldeaff our financial results;
. actual or anticipated changes in our growth rekative to our competitors;

. changes in earnings estimates or recommenddiipescurities analysts;

. fluctuations in the values of companies peragivg investors to be comparable to us;
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. announcements by us or our competitors of new mtsdar services, significant contracts, commeroggdtionships, capit
commitments or acquisitions;

. competition from existing technologies and productaew technologies and products that may emerge;

. the entry into, modification or termination afraements with our sales representatives or digtrib;

. developments with respect to intellectual propeaghts;

. sales, or the anticipation of sales, of our comrstotk by us, our insiders or our other stockholdérsluding upon th

expiration of contractual lock-up agreements;

. our ability to develop and market new and enhameeducts on a timely basis;
. our commencement of, or involvement in, litigation;

. additions or departures of key management or teahpersonnel; and

. changes in laws or governmental regulations appkéct us.

In recent years, the stock markets genefrave experienced extreme price and volume fltichg that have often been unrelate
disproportionate to the operating performance o$¢hcompanies. Broad market and industry factosssigmificantly affect the market price
our common stock, regardless of our actual opeyagerformance.

We could be subject to securities class actioryétion.

In the past, securities class action lit@ya has often been instituted against companiesseltsecurities have experienced perioc
volatility in market price. Securities litigatiorrdught against us following volatility in our stopkice, regardless of the merit or ultimate re:
of such litigation, could result in substantial Ipswvhich would hurt our financial condition andeogting results and divert managemt
attention and resources from our business.

We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends e foreseeable future, and accordingly, stockholslenust rely on stock appreciation 1
any return on their investment.

We do not anticipate declaring any caslideivds to holders of our common stock in the fozabée future. In addition, our ability to
cash dividends is currently prohibited by the teoheur Amended Term Loan Agreement and may beibpiteld by future loan agreements.
a result, capital appreciation, if any, of our coomstock will be your sole source of gain for tbeskeeable future.

Our executive officers, directors and principal stholders own a significant percentage of our stoakd will be able to exert significa
control over matters subject to stockholder apprbva

As of March 13, 2015, our executive offiedirectors and principal stockholders benefigiaivned approximately 75.04% of «
outstanding voting stock. As a result, these stolddrs have the ability to influence us throughirtloevnership position and may be abl
determine all matters requiring stockholder appkovar example, these stockholders may be ablentral elections of directors, amendm
of our organizational documents, or approval of argrger, sale of assets, or other major corporatesaction. This may prevent or discou
unsolicited acquisition proposals or offers for cammon stock that you may feel are in your bastr@st as one of our stockholders.
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We are an "emerging growth company" and intend take advantage of reduced disclosure requirementgpl@able to emerging growt
companies, which could make our common stock ledgaative to investors.

We are an "emerging growth company,” aiddfin the JOBS Act, and we intend to take adwgataf certain exemptions from varic
reporting requirements that apply to other pubimpanies that are not "emerging growth companis.dn emerging growth company:

. we are exempt from the requirement to obtain astttion and report from our auditors on the assessof our internal contr
over financial reporting pursuant to the SarbaneleyAct of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;

. we are permitted to provide less extensive discsibout our executive compensation arrangementsiirperiodic report
proxy statements and registration statements; and

. we are not required to give our stockholders hionling advisory votes on executive compensationgaiden parachu
arrangements.

In addition, the JOBS Act provides thateanerging growth company may take advantage of tendrd transition period for complyi
with new or revised accounting standards. We haegacably elected not to avail ourselves of tixismption and, therefore, we will be sub
to the same new or revised accounting standardthas public companies that are not emerging grasthpanies.

We may remain an emerging growth compary December 31, 2019 (the last day of the fisadryfollowing the fifth anniversary of c
initial public offering). However, if certain evenbccur prior to the end of such fiyear period, including if we become a "large aceatx
filer," our annual gross revenue equals or exceédd8 billion or we issue more than $1.0 billion radn-convertible debt in any threea
period, we will cease to be an emerging growth camypprior to the end of such five-year period.

We will incur increased costs as a result of opéngtas a public company and our management will iegjuired to devote substantial time
new compliance initiatives and corporate governammactices.

As a public company, and increasingly afterare no longer an "emerging growth company,"wilkincur significant legal, accounti
and other expenses that we did not incur as atprixampany. In addition, the Sarbari@dey Act and rules subsequently implemented b
SEC and NASDAQ impose numerous requirements oniggabmpanies, including establishment and mainte@ani effective disclosure a
financial controls and corporate governance prasti@lso, the Exchange Act requires, among othiag#h that we file annual, quarterly ¢
current reports with respect to our business amdating results. Our management and other persevitheleed to devote a substantial amc
of time to compliance with these laws and regutetiorhese requirements have increased and wilintanto increase our legal, accounting
financial compliance costs and have made and wiitinue to make some activities more time consuraimg) costly. For example, we exf
these rules and regulations to make it more difiand more expensive for us to obtain director afiiter liability insurance, and we may
required to incur substantial costs to maintaindghme or similar coverage. These rules and regakatiould also make it more difficult for
to attract and retain qualified persons to servewrboard of directors or our board committeeaexecutive officers.

Overall, we estimate that our incrementats resulting from operating as a public compamgluding compliance with these rules .
regulations, may be between $1.5 million and $3lbam per year. However, these rules and reguleti@re often subject to vary
interpretations, in many cases due to their lackpefcificity, and, as a result, their applicatiorpractice may evolve over time as new guid
is provided by regulatory and governing bodies.sTéduld result in continuing uncertainty regardsampliance matters and higher ci
necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosuregavernance practices.
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As a public company, we are required to assess iotgrnal control over financial reporting on an anmal basis, and any future adver
results from such assessment could result in a lo$snvestor confidence in our financial reports ahhave an adverse effect on our st
price.

As a public company, we are required to glgmvith certain of the requirements of Section 404he Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, ¢
amended, regarding internal control over finanoéglorting. However, for as long as we remain anelgimg growthcompany" as defined
the JOBS Act, we intend to utilize the provisiorempting us from the requirement that our indepehdegistered public accounting fi
provide an attestation on the effectiveness ofimti@rnal control over financial reporting.

Prior to becoming a public company, we westrequired to comply with the requirements oft®as 404 but previously we had identif
two material weaknesses in our internal controlrdigancial reporting for certain financial statemeperiods included in this report.
"material weakness" is a deficiency, or a comborabf deficiencies, in internal control over fingaaeporting such that there is a reason
possibility that a material misstatement of ourwairor interim financial statements will not be y@ated or detected on a timely basis.
identified material weaknesses related to our awtrtg properly designed controls in place to actdéoncomplex debt and equity transactic
including preferred stock and warrants associatiéll debt issuances, and to record bonus accruatedatbd expense in the appropriate pe
While we believe we have remediated these prewawgiorted material weaknesses, we cannot assuréhgbd we will not be required to te
further remedial action with respect to those makeveaknesses or that there will not be materisdknesses or significant deficiencies in
internal controls in the future.

The process of becoming fully complianthwiection 404 may divert internal resources antl talde a significant amount of time ¢
effort to complete, and may result in additiondiadencies and material weaknesses being identliieds or our independent registered pt
accounting firm. We may experience higher thancigdied operating expenses, as well as increasiegpémdent registered public accoun
firm fees during the implementation of any requidthnges and thereafter. Completing documentatiooup internal control system a
financial processes, remediation of control deficies and management testing of internal contrdlsr@quire substantial effort by us. If ¢
internal control over financial reporting or oultated disclosure controls and procedures are riettafe, we may not be able to accura
report our financial results or file our periodaports in a timely manner, which may cause invesimtose confidence in our reported finar
information and may lead to a decline in our stpike.

Future sales of shares of our common stock by erigtstockholders could cause our stock price to litez

Sales of a substantial number of sharegiofommon stock in the public market could ocduargy time. These sales, or the perceptis
the market that our officers, directors or the leoddof a large number of shares of common sto@nahto sell shares, could reduce the mi
price of our common stock. As of March 13, 2015,hae approximately 14,924,949 shares of commorksiotstanding. Of these shares, «
the 5,750,000 shares of common stock sold in oQr #Ad 48,388 shares of common stock held by egistiackholders are freely tradal
without restriction, in the public market, unlessghased by our affiliates or our existing stockleos subject to lockp agreements. Each
our directors and officers, and certain of our khmiders, have entered into loak-agreements with the underwriters that resthieir tability tc
sell or transfer their shares (including any shaaghased through the directed share program)lddkeup agreements pertaining to our |
will expire on April 27, 2015. Piper Jaffray & Cand Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, hoarewnay, in their sole discretion, per
our officers, directors and other existing stockleos who are subject to the contractual lock-ugetbshares prior to the expiration of the lock
up agreements. After the lockp agreements expire, based on shares outstanslioighdarch 13, 2015, up to an additional 9,126,5B4res ¢
common stock will be eligible for sale in the pahtharket, approximately 90,909 of which are heldbhy directors and executive officers,
will be subject to volume limitations under Ruledldnder the
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Securities Act. In addition, 1,635,106 shares af @mmon stock that are subject to outstandingoaptias of March 13, 2015 will beco
eligible for sale in the public market to the extgermitted by the provisions of various vestingemgnents, the lockp agreements a
Rules 144 and 701 under the Securities Act.

Holders of an aggregate of approximate®48,925 shares of our common stock have rightgesuto some conditions, to require u
file registration statements covering their shayeso include their shares in registration stateimehat we may file for ourselves or ot
stockholders.

In addition, we have registered on For® $;631,922 shares of common stock subject to andgtg options granted under our 2
Equity Incentive Plan, or the 2007 Plan, 1,027,888res of common stock that we may issue unde2@l4 Equity Incentive Plan, or the 2(
Plan, as well as 255,500 share of common stockwkamay issue under our 2014 Employee Stock PuecR&m, or ESPP, that we adoy
concurrently with the completion of our IPO. Thebares can be freely sold in the public market upsnance and once vested, subject t
180-day lock-up period under the lock-up agreemédessribed above.

We cannot predict what effect, if any, sadé our shares in the public market or the avditgtof shares for sale will have on the mau
price of our common stock. Future sales of substiatnounts of our common stock in the public mgrkeluding shares issued upon exet
of outstanding options, or the perception that ssalles may occur, however, could adversely affectmarket price of our common stock
also could adversely affect our future ability tase capital through the sale of our common stactioer equityrelated securities of ours
times and prices we believe appropriate.

Future sales and issuances of our common stock ights to purchase common stock, including pursuaotour 2014 Plan and ESPP, cot
result in additional dilution of the percentage owenship of our stockholders and could cause our dtqarice to fall.

We expect that significant additional capihay be needed in the future to continue ourr@droperations, including conducting clin
trials, commercialization efforts, expanded reseaned development activities and costs associattdoperating a public company. To re
capital, we may sell common stock, convertible siéies or other equity securities in one or morngactions at prices and in a manne
determine from time to time. If we sell common &toconvertible securities or other equity secusitimvestors may be materially diluted
subsequent sales. Such sales may also result griatatilution to our existing stockholders, andwiavestors could gain rights, preferer
and privileges senior to the holders of our comsitmek.

Pursuant to the 2014 Plan, our managersenithorized to grant stock options to our empleydiectors and consultants.

Initially, the aggregate number of sharésoor common stock that may be issued pursuantdoksawards under the 2014 Plal
1,027,500 shares. Additionally, the number of shafeour common stock reserved for issuance umee2®14 Plan will automatically incre:
on January 1 of each year, beginning on Janua2915 and continuing through and including JanuargQP4, by 4% of the total number
shares of our capital stock outstanding on Decebef the preceding calendar year, or a lesseteummf shares determined by our boar
directors. Unless our board of directors electstadhcrease the number of shares available faréugrant each year, our stockholders
experience additional dilution, which could cause stock price to fall.

Our board of directors adopted our ESPBulg 2014 and our stockholders approved the ESRBcinber 2014. Our ESPP is intende
qualify as an employee stock purchase plan undetidde423 of the Code. The ESPP became effectioa tipe completion of the IPO. A ta
of 255,500 shares were initially reserved for is&gaunder the ESPP, subject to certain annualdres
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Our management team may invest or spend the prosdeam our IPO in ways with which you may not agree in ways which may not yie
a return.

Our management has considerable discrétitime application of the net proceeds from our |B@d you will not have the opportunity
part of your investment decision to assess whetiemet proceeds are being used appropriately.uBecaf the number and variability
factors that will determine our use of the net pemts from our IPO, their ultimate use may vary &utiglly from their currently intended u
Our management might not apply our net proceedsays that ultimately increase the value of yourestment. We expect to use the
proceeds from our IPO primarily for the continuegh@nsion of our sales force and marketing programspngoing research and developr
activities, and the acquisition of new product $n&/e intend to use the remaining proceeds for ingrkapital and general corporate purpc
The failure by our management to apply these fgfiéstively could harm our business. Pending the&, we may invest the net proceeds"
our IPO in short-term, investment-grade, intefessdring securities. These investments may not ydlavorable return to our stockholder:
we do not invest or apply the net proceeds fromIB@ in ways that enhance stockholder value, we fadyto achieve expected financ
results, which could cause our stock price to decli

Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documerdad under Delaware law may discourage or preventteange of control, even
an acquisition would be beneficial to our stockheld, which could reduce our stock price and preventr stockholders from replacing
removing our current management.

Our amended and restated certificate afriparation and amended and restated bylaws coptaiisions that could delay or prevel
change of control of our company or changes inbmard of directors that our stockholders might aeisfavorable. Some of these provisi
include:

. a board of directors divided into three classesisgrstaggered thregear terms, such that not all members of the badide
elected at one time;

. a prohibition on stockholder action through writesnsent, which requires that all stockholder astibe taken at a meetinc
our stockholders;

. a requirement that special meetings of stockholllersalled only by the chairman of the board oédhors, the chief executi
officer, or by a majority of the total number ofthorized directors;

. advance notice requirements for stockholder prdp@sa nominations for election to our board oédiors;

. a requirement that no member of our board of dimsctnay be removed from office by our stockholdsesept for cause and,
addition to any other vote required by law, upoa #pproval of not less than tvileirds of all outstanding shares of our vo
stock then entitled to vote in the election of dices;

. a requirement of approval of not less than thiocds of all outstanding shares of our voting ktée amend any bylaws
stockholder action or to amend specific provisioheur certificate of incorporation; and

. the authority of the board of directors to issuefgmred stock on terms determined by the boardretbrs without stockhold
approval and which preferred stock may includetagtuperior to the rights of the holders of comratmtk.

We are subject to the provisions of Sec#08 of the General Corporation Law of the StatdDefaware, which may prohibit cert:
business combinations with stockholders owning IB%more of our outstanding voting stock. These aifér provisions in our amended .
restated certificate of incorporation, amended i@stiated bylaws and Delaware law could make it ndiffecult for stockholders or potent
acquirers to obtain control of our board of direstor initiate actions that are opposed by our-fuement board of directors, including a mer
tender offer or proxy contest involving
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our Company. Any delay or prevention of a changearftrol transaction or changes in our board céadors could cause the market pric
our common stock to decline.

If securities or industry analysts issue an adverse misleading opinion regarding our stock, our stk price and trading volume cou
decline.

The trading market for our common stocK W influenced by the research and reports thohtstry or securities analysts publish abot
or our business. If any of the analysts who coweisgue an adverse or misleading opinion regardsgur business model, our intellec
property or our stock performance, or if our clalitrials and operating results fail to meet thpestations of analysts, our stock price wi
likely decline. If one or more of these analystasee coverage of us or fail to publish reports omegsilarly, we could lose visibility in tl
financial markets, which in turn could cause oocktprice or trading volume to decline.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters located in Santa Barl@adifornia is approximately 20,000 square feet. Téen of the lease for our headquar
expires in February 2020. We also lease warehqueseedocated in Santa Barbara, California, whicapigroximately 10,000 square feet.
term of the lease for our warehouse expires in &gnA016. We believe that our existing facilitie® adequate for our current needs
additional space is needed in the future, we belibat suitable space will be available in the imgulocations on commercially reason:
terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, we famen time to time involved in lawsuits, claims, #stigations, proceedings, and threat
litigation relating to intellectual property, comro@l arrangements and other matters. While theané of these proceedings and cle
cannot be predicted with certainty, as of Decen3ier2014, we were not party to any legal or arbdraproceedings that may have, or t
had in the recent past, significant effects on fimancial position or profitability. No governmenhtproceedings are pending or, to
knowledge, contemplated against us. We are nottg fraany material proceedings in which any dioectmember of senior managemer
affiliate of ours is either a party adverse to uswur subsidiaries or has a material interest amhv/&y us or our subsidiaries.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities

Our common stock has been traded on the DS Global Select Market under the symbol "SIENic& our initial public offering ¢
October 29, 2014. Prior to this time, there wagpublic market for our common stock. The followiradpke shows the high and low sale pr
per share of our common stock as reported on th8Q Global Select Market for the periods indicated

High Low
Fourth Quarter 2014 (beginning October 29, 2( $ 19.9¢ $ 1257

On March 13, 2015, the last reported setgedor our common stock on the NASDAQ Global $eMarket was $18.74 per share.
Stock Performance Graph

The graph set forth below compares the datiwe total stockholder return on our common stbekween October 29, 2014 (the dat
our initial public offering) and December 31, 20Mith the cumulative total return of (a) the NASDAQealth Care Index and (b)!1
NASDAQ Composite Index, over the same period. Thaph assumes the investment of $100 on Octobe2®9} in our common stock, 1
NASDAQ Health Care Index and the NASDAQ Compositdelx and assumes the reinvestment of dividendmyif The graph assumes
closing sales price on October 29, 2014 of $16&b5ghare as the initial value of our common stawtt aot the initial offering price to t
public of $15.00 per share.

The comparisons shown in the graph bel@wbassed upon historical data. We caution thattihek price performance shown in the gr
below is not necessarily indicative of, nor isnteinded to forecast, the potential future perforreanf our common stock. Information use
the graph was obtained from the Nasdaq Stock M&két a financial data provider and a source bakto be reliable. The Nasdaq St
Market LLC is not responsible for any errors or sgions in such information.

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN SUMMARY

December 2014
Comparison of 3 Month Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Inifial Investment of $100
December 2014
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This performance graph shall not be deefited for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchangé @dcotherwise subject to liabilities uni
that section and shall not be deemed to be incatpdrby reference into any filing of Sientra, lnader the Securities Act, except as sha
expressly set forth by specific reference in stilingf

Holders of Record

As of March 13, 2015, there were approxetya28 holders of record of our common stock. Thua number of stockholders is gre:
than this number of record holders, and includesks$tolders who are beneficial owners, but whoseeshare held in street name by bro
and other nominees. This number of holders of ckatso does not include stockholders whose shaagdoe held in trust by other entities.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends oncoatmon stock since inception and do not anticipaigng cash dividends in the foresee
future.

Securities authorized for issuance under equity copensation plans

Information about our equity compensatidanp is incorporated herein by reference to ItemoflZPart Il of this Annual Report «
Form 10-K.

Use of Proceeds from Public Offering of Common Stéc

On November 3, 2014, we closed the sake ©50,000 shares of common stock to the publidygiee of 750,000 shares of common s
sold by us pursuant to the full exercise of an aleiment option granted to the underwriters) atiae of $15.00 per share. The offer and
of the shares in the IPO was registered under ¢oeirBies Act pursuant to registration statememtd=orm S-1 (File No. 33398837), whic
was filed with the SEC, on September 19, 2014 andnaled subsequently and declared effective on @cfy 2014. Piper Jaffray & Co. ¢
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated acted amaging underwriters of the offering.

We raised approximately $77.0 million int ngroceeds after deducting underwriting discourtsl @ommissions of approximat
$6.0 million and other offering expenses of appmadiely $3.2 million. None of these expenses coedist payments made by us to direct
officers or persons owning 10% or more of our comrstmck or to their associates, or to our affisafEhere has been no material change i
planned use of proceeds from our IPO as descritbexd final prospectus filed with the SEC on OctoP@, 2014 pursuant to Rule 424.
invested the funds received in cash equivalentsoimet short-term investments in accordance withimeestment policy.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer or Aiffated Purchasers
There were no repurchases of shares of @mstock made during the year ended December 34, 20
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data shibbke read in conjunction with "Management's Dismrssind Analysis of Financial Conditi
and Results of Operations", the financial statesyemtd related notes, and other financial infornmaficcluded in this Annual Report
Form 10-K.

We derived the financial data for the yeamsled December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 and agadniber 31, 2014 and 2013 from
financial statements, which are included elsewlretkis Annual
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Report on Form 10-K. Historical results are notessarily indicative of the results to be expectefliture periods.

Years Ended December 31

Statement of Operations Data 2014 2013 2012
(in thousands, except per share dat¢
Net sales $ 4473 $ 3517. $ 10,44
Gross profit 33,23: 26,57¢ 8,09¢
Net loss (5,81)) (19,12 (23,437
Net loss per shar
Basic and dilute: (2.2¢) (82.2%) (85.07)
Weighted average share
Basic and dilute: 2,545,37. 232,51. 275,64.

As of December 31

Balance Sheet Data 2014 2013

(in thousands)
Working capital $ 103,15. $ 24,50¢
Total asset 139,07¢ 53,16¢
Long-term debt, excluding current porti 21,67 15,09:
Stockholders' equity (defici 95,63¢ (126,677

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should lead in conjunction with our financi
statements and related notes appearing elsewhdrgsrAnnual Report on Form 10-K.This discussiontaims forwardlooking statements tt
reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs, and wedlisks and uncertainties. Our actual results dhd timing of certain events could dit
materially from those anticipated in these forwdmdking statements as a result of several factorsluding those discussed in the sec
titted "Risk Factors" included under Part |, ltemdland elsewhere in this Annual Report. See "Spéddeé Regarding Forwartiooking
Statements" in this Annual Report.

Overview

We are a medical aesthetics company comdiitt making a difference in patients' lives byating their body image, growing their self
esteem and restoring their confidence. We werededrto provide greater choice to boaasttified plastic surgeons and patients in nee
medical aesthetics products. We have developedadiportfolio of products with technologically difentiated characteristics, supporte:
independent laboratory testing and strong clinical outcomes.

Our primary products are silicone gel bréaplants for use in breast augmentation and breasnstruction procedures, which we offe
over 150 variations of shapes, sizes and text@esbreast implants are primarily used in elecfiv@cedures which are generally performe
a cash-pay basis. Many of our breast implants pmate one or more differentiated technologiesluitiog a proprietary higlstrength
cohesive silicone gel and proprietary texturingnoied TRUE Texture. We also offer breast tissue ea@es and a range of other aesthetic
specialty products. We do not have any patentsatanp applications, but rely on trade secrets, ntgry knowhow and regulatory barriers
protect our products and technologies.

Our breast implants were approved by th®. Bood and Drug Administration, or FDA, in 2012skd on data we collected from
ongoing, longterm clinical trial of our breast implants in 1,78®men across 36 investigational sites in the Wn&eates. Our clinical trial
the largest prospective, long-term safety and #ffecess pivotal study of breast implant patientthe United States.
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We commenced sales of our breast implantise United States in the second quarter of 2042sell our breast implants and breast ti
expanders, or Breast Products, exclusively to boartified and boarddmissible plastic surgeons, who we refer to astiel&urgeons, ai
tailor our customer service offerings to their sfiemeeds, which we believe helps secure theialiyyand confidence. We currently sell
products in the United States where we sell oudpets through a direct sales organization congjstin 46 employees, including sé
representatives and sales management, as of Dec8tnt#014.

2007 Acquisition of Grader Street

On April 4, 2007, we acquired substantiadly of the assets of Grader Street Medical Pragunt., or Grader Street (forme
Silimed, Inc.), a privately held Texémsed company engaged in the development and fsadedical devices, including breast implants, u
the terms of an Asset Purchase Agreement, or AP&.cbnsideration paid by us to Grader Street w&9%®Rillion in cash, 90,909 shares
our common stock and a series of future contingagiments with a potential total value of $70.0 il

In March 2012, we initiated an arbitratiproceeding against Grader Street, which we referstthe Grader Street arbitration, to se
decision that, under the terms of the APA, we wartitled to a substantial reduction in the purchasee reducing contingent payments o
to Grader Street. On May 16, 2013, we, Grader Ste@ Grader Street's founder reached an agreemetich we agreed to pay Grader St
a gross amount of $18.0 million and release alhtdathat we had against Grader Street and its feur@rader Street and its founder .
released all claims against us, including all fataontingent payments, under the APA. In additiorder the terms of the agreement, we
$0.3 million to repurchase 72,727 shares (of thgiral 90,909 shares issued) held by Grader S¢rémthder.

Components of Operating Results
Net Sales

We commenced sales of our breast implanteé United States in the second quarter of 20mRcar Breast Products have historic
accounted for substantially all of our net salese$ of our Breast Products accounted for 97%, @n#96% of our net sales for the y«
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 respectively

We recognize revenue, net of sales dissoandl returns, as the customer has a standardaita window to return purchased prodt
We anticipate our net sales will increase as weedur sales force and marketing programs, ineraamreness of our products and incr
the comfort of Plastic Surgeons using anatomicsiigped breast implants. We also expect that, itfiutiiee, our net sales will fluctuate o
quarterly basis due to a variety of factors, inglgdseasonality of breast augmentation procedis believe that breast implant sales
subject to seasonal fluctuation due to breast antatien patients' planning their surgery leadingteighe summer season and in the pe
around the winter holiday season.

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Margin

Cost of goods sold consists primarily oktsoof finished products purchased from our tipiagty manufacturer, reserve for proc
warranties and warehouse and other related costs.

Our silicone gel breast implants, tissupagders and other products are manufactured undexcusive contract with Silimed. Under
contract with Silimed, each particular style of lat has a fixed unit cost. In addition to prodaosts, we provide a commercial warrant
our silicone gel filled breast implants. The watyatovers device ruptures in certain circumstanEstimated warranty costs are recorded ¢
time of sale. Our warehouse and other related donshsde labor, rent, product shipments from ourdtiparty manufacturer and other rele
costs.
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We expect our overall gross margin, whigttalculated as net sales less cost of goods sold §iven period divided by net sales
fluctuate in future periods primarily as a resdltanufacturing price increases, the changing rhiproducts sold with different gross marg
and targeted pricing programs.

Sales and Marketing Expense

Our sales and marketing expenses primaxilgsist of salaries, bonuses, benefits, incentmmpensation and travel for our sa
marketing and customer support personnel. Our saldsmarketing expenses also include expensesadeshows, our noharge custom
shipping program and product evaluation, as wekdiscational, promotional and marketing activitiesJuding direct and online marketil
We expect our sales and marketing expenses toaseia absolute dollars as we increase our heatlaodrexpand our marketing programs.

Research and Development Expent

Our research and development, or R&D, egesnprimarily consist of clinical expenses, retguia expenses, product developm
consulting services, outside research activitieglity control and other costs associated withdéeelopment of our products and complie
with Good Clinical Practices, or cGCP, requiremeR&D expenses also include related personnel amduitant compensation and stock
based compensation expense. We expense R&D ca$tsyaare incurred.

We expect our R&D expenses to vary as diffedevelopment projects are initiated and coredleéncluding improvements to our exisi
products, expansions of our existing product limesy product acquisitions and our FDA-required PR postapproval studies of our bre
implants. However, we generally expect these ao8tsncrease in absolute terms over time as wetiooe to expand our product portfolio ¢
add related personnel.

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative, or G&A, empes primarily consist of salaries, bonuses, fisrafid stoclkbased compensation for «
executive, financial, legal, business developmendtadministrative functions. Other G&A expensedude outside legal counsel and litiga
expenses, independent auditors and other outsitultants, insurance, benefits, facilities and rimfation technologies expenses. Beginnir
2013, G&A expenses also include the federal exeis®n the sale of medical devices in the Unitextest

In 2012, Mentor filed one lawsuit againstand one of our employees, in addition to thirteersuits against fifteen of our employees '
were all former Mentor employees, which we refeasothe Mentor litigation. In general, these lawssaileged that the former employee
Mentor breached their confidentiality and noompete agreements when they resigned in favomyflayment with us, misappropriai
confidential Mentor information and trade secretsd breached their respective duties of loyaltyh@dgh not a party to thirteen of
lawsuits, we provided for the defense of our emeésy In those lawsuits, all of Mentor's claims gegliminary injunctive relief were deni
and, following that, each of those lawsuits wasised. In the sole lawsuit against us and our eyegl, we prevailed at trial with verdicts
"no liability" rendered by the jury and judge om @kims. Final judgment in this case was entenedatober 3, 2013 with Mentor orderec
reimburse us for certain court costs, and in 20A€htor waived its right to appeal. For the yeardeshDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 201:
incurred $0.1 million, $10.2 million and $3.0 milfi, respectively, of G&A expenses related to thentde litigation, net of Mentor
reimbursement for certain court costs and prelimyifasurance recoveries.

In addition, for the years ended Decemter2®14, 2013 and 2012, we incurred $0.0 millioch23million and $0.3 million, respective
of G&A expenses related to the Grader Street atidin.
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Excluding the historic litigation and arbation expenses described above, we expect futéd €penses to increase as we build
finance, legal, information technology, human reses and other general administration resourcescdntinue to advance t
commercialization of our products. In addition, ®xpect to incur increased G&A expenses in connectiith becoming a public compai
which may increase further when we are no longée &b rely on the "emerging growth company" exemptive are afforded under -
Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, or the JOBS Ac

Other (Expense) Income, net

Other (expense) income, net primarily csissof interest expense and amortization of deditodint associated with our term loans
insurance recoveries.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgmeats and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our finahc@ndition and results of operations are basedwunfinancial statements, which have k
prepared in accordance with accounting principkrsegally accepted in the United States. The préiparaf these financial statements reqt
management to make estimates and judgments tleat &ifie reported amounts of assets, liabilities sakes and expenses and the disclost
contingent assets and liabilities in our finanstatements. We evaluate our estimates and judgraeree ongoing basis. We base our estin
on historical experience and on various other factivat we believe are reasonable under the cirfanoas, the results of which form the b
for making judgments about our financial conditeord results of operations that are not readily eppdrom other sources. Actual results |
differ from these estimates.

While our significant accounting policieeeamore fully described in Note 2 to our financéshtements, we believe that the follow
accounting policies to be most critical to the jodgnts and estimates used in the preparation dirancial statements.

Revenue Recoghnitio

We sell our products directly to customiersnarkets where we have regulatory approval. Werad sixmonth return policy; and v
recognize revenue, net of sales discounts andnetim accordance with the Financial Accountingn8tads Board, or FASB, Accounti
Standards Codification 60Revenue RecognitiofASC 605). ASC 605 requires that six basic criteriast be met before revenue car
recognized when a right of return exists:

. the seller's price to the buyer is substantiakedi or determinable at the date of sale;

. the buyer has paid the seller, or the buyer isgakdid to pay the seller and the obligation is rwitingent on resale of t
product;

. the buyer's obligation to the seller would not harged in the event of theft or physical destrictipdamage of the product;

. the buyer acquiring the product for resale has econ substance apart from that provided by thesell

. thedseller does not have significant obligationsfiure performance to directly bring about resaflehe product by the buy:
an

. the amount of future returns can be reasonatilynated.

Appropriate reserves are established fticipated sales returns based on historical expegierecent gross sales and any noatificatic
pending returns. The Company recognizes revenuen uiitie to the product and risk of loss transferctostomers, provided there are
remaining performance obligations required of tleenPany or any written matters requiring customeeptance. The Company
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allows for the return of product from customershivitsix months after the original sale and recasitmated sales returns as a reductic
sales in the same period revenue is recognizeds $alurn provisions are calculated based upoarftuat experience with actual returns. Ac
sales returns in any future period are inherentigentain and thus may differ from the estimatesctial sales returns differ significantly fr
the estimates, an adjustment to revenue in thewruar subsequent period would be recorded. Thep@aynhas established an allowance
sales returns of $10.0 million and $8.3 millionciDecember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, rebriet against accounts receivable ir
balance sheet.

A portion of the Company's revenue is gatest from consigned inventory of breast implantsntained at doctor, hospital, and cli
locations. The customer is contractually obligatednaintain a specific level of inventory and tatiffothe Company upon use. For th
products, revenue is recognized at the time thepgammis notified by the customer that the prodag heen implanted. Notification is usu
through the replenishing of the inventory and them@any periodically reviews consignment inventotiesconfirm accuracy of custon
reporting. FDA regulations require tracking theesabf all implanted products.

Warranty Reserve

We offer a limited warranty and a lifetirpeoduct replacement program for our silicone gelast implants. Under the limited warre
program, we will reimburse patients for certain-ofspocket costs related to revision surgeries perfdrmihin ten years from the date
implantation in a covered event. Under the lifetipreduct replacement program, we providecharge replacement breast implants unt
covered event. The programs are available to ks implanted with our silicone breast implaater April 1, 2012 and are subject to
terms, conditions, claim procedures, limitationsl @&xclusions. Timely completion of a device tragkand warranty enrollment form by
patient's Plastic Surgeon is required to activiageprograms and for the patient to be able to vedeénefits under either program.

We accrued for warranties issued in 2004,32and 2012 in the amounts of $0.5 million, $0ilion and $0.1 million, respectively. As
December 31, 2014 and 2013, we held total warratbylities of $1.0 million, $0.5 million, respegtly.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stockbased compensation cost is measured at the dgtamtfbased on the estimated fair value of the @weet of estimated forfeitur:
We estimate the fair value of our stock-based asvawcemployees and directors using the Bl&xtholes option pricing model. The grant «
fair value of a stock-based award is recognizegihasxpense over the requisite service period chtbard on a straight-line basis.

We recorded total non-cash sthesed compensation expense of $0.6 million, $0lgmiand $0.4 million for the years enc
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivelyofABecember 31, 2014 and 2013, we had total unrézed compensation costs
$1.9 million and $0.7 million, respectively, reldte® these stock options. As of December 31, 2@Heke costs are expected to be recog
over a weighted average period of 2.84 years.

The Black-Scholes model requires the inplusubjective assumptions, including the rigke interest rate, expected dividend vyi
expected volatility and expected term, among othguts. These estimates involve inherent unceréarand the application of manageme
judgment. If factors change and different assunmgtiare used, our stc-based compensation expense could be materiallgréift in th
future. These assumptions are estimated as follows:

. Risk-free interest rate-The riskfree interest rate is based on the yields of UrSa3ury securities with maturities similar to
expected term of the options for each option group.
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. Dividend yield—We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsda not presently plan to pay cash dividendshé
foreseeable future. Consequently, we used an eghedtidend yield of zero.

. Expected volatility—As we do not have a significant trading history dar common stock, the expected stock price valafibr
our common stock was estimated by taking the aeeoddi) the median historic price volatility anig the median of the implie
volatility averages, with a thremeonth lookback from the valuation date, for anyling options of industry peers based on (
price observations over a period equivalent to ékpected term of the time to a liquidity event. \éend to continue -
consistently apply this process using the samemoitas public companies until a sufficient amourittastorical informatiol
regarding the volatility of our own common stoclashprice becomes available.

. Expected termm—The expected term represents the period thattook-$ased awards are expected to be outstanding.

The following table presents the weightagrage assumptions used to estimate the fair \@luptions granted during the peri
presented:

Year ended December 31

2014 2013
Expected term (in year 5.77 to 6.0¢ 6.08
Expected volatility 52% to 57% 56%

Risk-free interest rat 1.71% to 2.00% 1.00% to 1.76%
Dividend yield — —

In addition to the assumptions used in Bi@ck-Scholes option pricing model, the amount wfckbased compensation expense
recognize in our financial statements includes stiimate of stock option forfeitures. We estimate foufeiture rate based on an analysis of
actual forfeitures and will continue to evaluate thppropriateness of the forfeiture rate based abnmahforfeiture experience, analysis
employee turnover and other factors. Changes iregienated forfeiture rate can have a significampact on our stockased compensati
expense as the cumulative effect of adjusting élbe is recognized in the period the forfeiturereate is changed. If a revised forfeiture ra
higher than the previously estimated forfeiturerain adjustment is made that will result in a dase to the stodkased compensation expe
recognized in the financial statements. If a rabig@feiture rate is lower than the previously mestted forfeiture rate, an adjustment is n
that will result in an increase to the stock-basaapensation expense recognized in our finana@ddstents.

Warrant Liabilities

We have issued warrants to Oxford to pusehshares of common stock in connection with oum ttean agreement. The warrants
recorded at fair value using either the Bl&doles option pricing model, other binomial valmatmodel or lattice model, depending on
characteristics of the warrants at the time ofvleation. The fair value of these warrants ismeasured at each financial reporting period
any changes in fair value being recognized as goooent of other (expense) income in the accompansiatements of operations. We
continue to re-measure the warrants to fair vahié exercise or expiration of the related warrant.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued accountingidtad update 2014-0®evenue from Contracts with Customefhe standard was issuec
provide a single framework that replaces existindustry and transaction specific US GAAP with aefistep analysis of transaction:
determine when and how revenue is recognized. dddeunting standard update is expected to be iféefcr the Company beginning in
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fiscal year 2018. The Company is currently assgstie impact that the standard will have on tharfiial statements upon adoption of
guidance.

In August 2014, the FASB issued accounstandard update 2014-1Bresentation of Financial Statement—Going Concerfhe
standard was issued to provide guidance about neamagt's responsibility to evaluate whether thesusstantial doubt about an entity's ab
to continue as a going concern and to provideadl&otnote disclosures. This accounting standpdhied will be effective for the Compe
beginning in fiscal year 2016. The Company antigpahere will be no impact on its financial staéetnupon adoption of this guidance.

Results of Operations
Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2014 203
The following table sets forth our resufoperations for the years ended December 31, 26i4013.

Year Ended
December 31
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Statement of operations d:

Net sales 44,73: 35,17:

Cost of goods sol 11,50( 8,59:

Gross profit 33,23 26,57¢
Operating Expense

Sales and marketir 23,59¢ 22,22¢

Research and developme 4,707 4,47¢

General and administratiy 10,71: 18,07¢
Total operating expens 39,01¢ 44,78t
Loss from operation (5,78Y (18,207
Other (expense) income, n

Interest expens (2,172 (872)

Other (expense) income, r 2,14¢ (46)
Total other (expense) income, | (26) (91§)
Net loss (5,811 (19,12%)

Net Sales

Net sales increased $9.6 million, or 27.286$44.7 million for the year ended December 3114 as compared to $35.2 million for
year ended December 31, 2013. This increase waaply driven by sales of our Breast Products i thnited States resulting from increa
sales and marketing activities and boarder adomti@ientra’s product offerings by boarekrtified Plastic Surgeons. As of December 31, 2
our sales organization included 46 employees, agaced to 39 employees as of December 31, 2013.

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Margin

Cost of goods sold increased $2.9 mill@n33.8%, to $11.5 million for the year ended DebenB1, 2014, as compared to $8.6 mil
for the year ended December 31, 2013. This incr@aseprimarily due to an increase in sales volume.
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The gross margins for the years ended DbeeBil, 2014 and 2013 were 74.3% and 75.6%, ra@gpctThe decrease in gross mal
was primarily due to a manufacturing price increasal the launch of new line extension in the fowgptarter, offset by holding fixed overhi
relatively constant.

Sales and Marketing Expense

Sales and marketing expenses increasedniillidn, or 6.2%, to $23.6 million for the year @dgd December 31, 2014, as compare
$22.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2a18s was primarily due to a $1.8 million increasemployee related expense for the ¢
department offset by a $0.4 million decrease inkeid@mg costs.

Research and Development Expent

R&D expenses increased $0.2 million, 0#&.10 $4.7 million for the year ended DecemberZ114, as compared to $4.5 million for
year ended December 31, 2013. This was primarig/tduan increase in employee related expensescatsl @ssociated with our p-approva
study.

General and Administrative Expenses

G&A expenses decreased $7.4 million, o7%9.to $10.7 million for the year ended December2Bil4, as compared to $18.1 million
the year ended December 31, 2013. This decreas@nmaarily due to the $10.1 million decrease ightion expenses related to the Me
litigation partially offset by an increase in expen related to accounting related costs and fedrcéde tax.

Other (Expense) Income, net

Total other (expense) income, net for tharyended December 31, 2014 was primarily assdcvaith interest expense on our term Ic
of $2.2 million and income from recovery of costsa@ciated with the Mentor litigation of $2.4 mitioTotal other (expense) income, net for
year ended December 31, 2013 was primarily assatiaith interest expense on our term loans of 0ligon.
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Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2013 202

The following table sets forth our resufoperations for the years ended December 31, 26#32012.

Year Ended
December 31
2013 2012
(in thousands)

Statement of operations d:

Net sales 35,17 10,44

Cost of goods sol 8,592 2,352

Gross profit 26,57¢ 8,09¢
Operating Expense

Sales and marketir 22,22¢ 17,91¢

Research and developme 4,47¢ 3,67(

General and administratiy 18,07¢ 9,93¢
Total operating expens 44,78t 31,52
Loss from operation (18,207 (23,437
Other (expense) income, n

Interest expens (872) —

Other (expense) income, r (46) (1)
Total other (expense) income, | (918) (1)
Net loss (19,125 (23,43))

Net Sales

We commenced sales of our breast implanthé United States in May 2012. Our net salesesmed $24.7 million, or 236.7%,
$35.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2GE3compared to $10.4 million for the year endeddbeer 31, 2012. As there was
material change in pricing, this increase was prilpmadue to having a full year of sales in 2013 casnpared to less than eight months of «
in 2012. We also began commercialization activitieMay 2012 and continued to increase these #ietiviresulting in greater familiarity w
our products and customer service offerings bytRl&irgeons, in 2013 as compared to 2012. Wherammercialization activities begar
May 2012, our sales organization included 29 emgxsy Our sales organization included 39 employge$ Becember 31, 2013.

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Margin

Cost of goods sold increased $6.2 milli@n265.3%, to $8.6 million for the year ended Deben8B1, 2013, as compared to $2.4 mil
for the year ended December 31, 2012. This increaseprimarily due to an increase in sales volueselting from having a full year of sa
in 2013, as compared to less than eight monthale§sn 2012.

The gross margins for the years ended Dbeefil, 2013 and 2012 were 75.6% and 77.5%, ra@splctThis decrease was primarily ¢
to manufacturing price increases and incrementa¢iaise costs.
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Sales and Marketing Expense

Sales and marketing expenses increasedn@fién, or 24.1%, to $22.2 million for the yeanaded December 31, 2013, as compar¢
$17.9 million for the year ended December 31, 20#s increase was primarily a result of a $2.Jioml increase related to expanding
headcount following commercialization in May 20¥®la $1.4 million increase in marketing costs.

Research and Development Expent

R&D expenses increased $0.8 million, 0022.to $4.5 million for the year ended December2®1,3, as compared to $3.7 million for
year ended December 31, 2012. This increase wasply due to an increase in employee related @stispos-approval study costs.

General and Administrative Expenses

G&A expenses increased $8.1 million, 01984, to $18.1 million for the year ended December2113, as compared to $9.9 million
the year ended December 31, 2012. This increasefiraarily due to the $7.2 million increase in erpes related to the Mentor litigation |
$0.9 million increase in expenses related to thadér Street arbitration. This increase was paytiaffset by a reduction in cert:
administrative expenses.

Other (Expense) Income, net

Other (expense) income, net for the yealedrDecember 31, 2013 was primarily associated int#rest expense on our term loan
$0.9 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have incurred sigant net operating losses and anticipate thatlasses will continue in the near term.
expect our operating expenses will continue to gemwe expand our operations. We will need to gegaesignificant net sales to achi
profitability. To date, we have funded our operasig@rimarily with proceeds from the sales of pnefdrstock, borrowings under our term loi
sales of our products since 2012, and the prockedsthe sale of our common stock in our recertidhpublic offering. To date, we ha
received gross proceeds from the sales of prefesteck totaling $151.0 million. We issued and spléferred stock for aggregate gi
proceeds of $65.0 million in March 2012, which was most recent issuance and sale of preferred.sfax of December 31, 2014, we |
$25.4 million outstanding on our term loans.

On November 3, 2014, we completed our IFQ@ammon stock in which we sold 5,000,000 sharea g@irice of $15.00 per she
Additionally, the underwriters exercised their gptito purchase an additional 750,000 shares aD$Jter share. As a result of our IPO,
raised a total of approximately $77.0 million intrgroceeds after deducting underwriting discoumd aommissions of approximat
$6.0 million and offering expenses of approximat$B:2 million. Costs directly associated with o®QO were capitalized and recordec
deferred IPO costs in other current assets pritliéacompletion of our IPO. Upon completion of tR€®, the issuance costs were reclassifit
additional-paidin capital to offset the IPO proceeds. Upon conighedf our IPO, all outstanding shares of our cotilvke preferred stock we
converted into 8,942,925 shares of common stock.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $96.7 amlin cash and cash equivalents. We believe thatailable cash on hand will be sulffici
to satisfy our liquidity requirements for at leéis¢ next 18 months. However, the continued groviithuo business, including the expansio
our sales force and marketing programs, and resesnd development activities, will significantlyciease our expenses. In addition,
amount of our future product sales is difficultpeedict, especially in light of the recent commalization of our silicone gel breast impla
and actual sales may be not be in line with our
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forecasts. As a result, we may be required to sdekional funds in the future from public or prigaofferings of our capital stock, borrowi
under term loans or other sources, subject todbigictions under our Amended Term Loan Agreement.

Our historical cash outflows have primatilgen associated with R&D related to obtaining Faproval for our breast implant portfc
and complying with the FDA's poapproval requirements, the Mentor litigation, aitidg relating to commercialization and increasa
working capital, including the purchase of invegtor

Cash Flows

The following table shows a summary of oash flows provided by (used in) operating, investand financing activities for the perit
indicated:

Year Ended
December 31
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Net cash provided by (used il

Operating activitie: 45C  (25,87))
Investing activities (43€) (18,07)
Financing activitie: 86,99¢ 14,46
Net change in cash and cash equival 87,007 (29,480

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activitiessv$0.5 million during the year ended December2Bll4 as compared to net cash use
operating activities of $25.9 million during theayeended December 31, 2013. The decrease in cashiu®perating activities between
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was prynaasbciated with the decrease in net loss of $18l®n and a decrease in cash outfls
from operating assets and liabilities resultingnfra decrease in inventory purchases, an increasastomer deposits and collections
accounts receivable, offset by a reduction in astopayable.

Cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities wagl®luring the year ended December 31, 2014 asa@upo $18.1 million during the year en
December 31, 2013. The decrease in cash usedasting activities of $17.6 million between the yeanded December 31, 2014 and 2012
primarily due to a nonrecurring $18.0 million paymhenade to Grader Street in May 2013 in connectiith the obligations relating to ¢
2007 acquisition of Grader Street.

Cash provided by financing activities

Net cash provided by financing activitieasa$87.0 million during the year ended Decembef814 as compared to $14.5 million du
the year ended December 31, 2013. The increasssimprovided by financing activities of $72.5 noitlibetween the years ended Decembe
2014 and 2013 was primarily the result of the gaslteeds from the issuance of our common stockpfnie underwriters discount in the |
of $80.2 million, offset by the payment of equitarisaction costs of $3.1 million during the yeadesh December 31, 2014. Our liquic
position and capital requirements are subject twumber of factors. For example, our cash inflow autflow may be impacted by t
following:

. net sales generated by our Breast Productsmandther future products that we may develop amdroercialize;
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. costs associated with expanding our sales forcaererlleting programs;

. cost associated with developing and commercialipimgproposed products or technologies;

. cost of obtaining and maintaining regulatory cleasor approval for our current or future products;
. cost of ongoing compliance with regulatory requiesns;

. expenses we incur in connection with potentiagdition or governmental investigations;

. anticipated or unanticipated capital expendauead

. unanticipated G&A expenses.

Our primary short-term capital needs, whach subject to change, include expenditures cblate

. support of our sales and marketing efforts rel&benlur current and future products;
. new product acquisition and development efforts;

. payment of monthly interest due under our term $pand

. facilities expansion needs

. investment in inventory required to meet custonamands

Although we believe the foregoing itemdeeff our most likely uses of cash in the sherth, we cannot predict with certainty all of
particular shorterm cash uses or the timing or amount of cash.u$edsh generated from operations is insufficiensatisfy our workin
capital and capital expenditure requirements, wg bearequired to sell additional equity or debtusiies or obtain additional credit facilitic
Additional capital, if needed, may not be availatmesatisfactory terms, if at all. Our term loaestrict our ability to incur additionglari passi
debt. Furthermore, any additional equity financingy be dilutive to stockholders, and debt financificavailable, may include restricti
covenants. For a discussion of other factors thea impact our future liquidity and capital fundingquirements, see "Risk FactorRisks
Related to Our Financial Results and Need for Faiman"

Indebtedness
Term Loan Agreement

On January 17, 2013, we entered into a lavahSecurity Agreement with Oxford, which was adezhand restated on June 30, 201
the Amended Term Loan Agreement. Under the Amenbienin Loan Agreement, we have (i) a $7.5 millionntiae A term loan, (i)
$2.5 million tranche B term loan, (iii) a $5.0 ok tranche C term loan and (iv) a $10.0 millioanche D term loan. The tranche A, B ar
term loans mature on February 1, 2017 and the HeBcterm loan matures on January 1, 2019. The leams are collateralized by a first-
priority security interest in substantially all @fir assets. The term loans bear interest at &gat&l to 8.4% per annum. The interesty perioc
for the tranche A, B and C term loans ends on Augju®015 and the interestily period for the tranche D term loan was extenfiem
August 1, 2015 to August 1, 2016 as a result ofrftaraised at least $50.0 million in gross proceiaddie IPO and the completion of the |
before June 30, 2015.

We may voluntarily repay amounts outstagdinder the term loan at any time, subject to gajte final payment. Upon making the fi
payment of each term loan, whether on prepaymeat oraturity, we are required to pay a 6.5% fed¢henaggregate principal amount of
term loan being paid. In connection with the Amehderm Loan Agreement, we issued to Oxford (i) sep@ar warrants in January 201:
purchase shares of our common stock with a valualeéq 3.0% of the tranche A, B and C term loansams and (ii) sevegear warrants |
June 2014 to purchase shares of our common stahkawialue equal to 2.5% of the tranche D term l@aount. The warrants have an exel
price per
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share equal to the lesser of (i) the Series C prafestock conversion price of $14.671 per sharéipthe price per share in a subseq
qualified round of financing where gross proceadsgaeater than $10.0 million.

The Amended Term Loan Agreement contaim®ua negative and affirmative covenants, includiegain restrictive covenants that li
our ability to transfer or dispose of certain assehgage in new lines of business, change the agittgm of our management, merge witl
acquire other companies, incur additional debtateremew liens and encumbrances, pay dividendshmrdinated debt and enter into mate
transactions with affiliates, among others. The Aded Term Loan Agreement also contains financ@méng requirements.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following table summarizes our contnatbbligations and commitments as of DecembeR@14:

Payments Due by Perioc

More than
Total Less than 1 yeal 1- 3years 3-5years 5 years
(In thousands)
Long-term debt obligation $ 25,000 $ 3,751 $ 1665. $ 4591 $ 0
Interest and other payments

related to lon-term deb 5,88¢ 2,04¢ 2,95¢ 87¢ 0
Operating lease obligatiol 2,21 50( 803 843 71
Total contractual obligatior $ 33,10. $ 6,30t $ 20,41 $ 6,312 $ 71

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
During the periods presented we did noehaer do we currently have, any off-balance shagingements as defined under SEC rules.
ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risks

We are exposed to market risks in the amgircourse of our business. Our cash and cash aquotg include cash in readily availe
checking accounts. Additionally, the interest meour term loans is fixed and not subject to clearig market interest rates.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &a

The financial statements required to bedfipursuant to this Item 8 are appended to thisrtdgeginning on page E- An index of thos
financial statements is included in Part IV, ltemlkelow.

Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or PwC, wasiguely our independent auditors since 2007. Onedmer 13, 2013, we dismissed F
and KPMG LLP was engaged as our independent asdildre decision to change our independent auditas approved by our board
directors.

During the years ended December 31, 20ML 2012 and the subsequent interim period througbeBwer 13, 2013, there were
(i) disagreements with PwC on any matter of acdagnprinciples or practices, financial statemersicttisure, or auditing scope or proced
which disagreements if not resolved to PwC's sattidn would have caused them to make referengetth@ their reports on the financ
statements for such years, or (ii) reportable erastdefined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of
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Regulation S-K, except as described below. PwChdidssue any audit reports for the years ende@&mbber 31, 2012 and 2013.

During October 2013, PwC notified us thawvas in disagreement with our revenue recognitiolicies relating to the timing of rever
recognition given our terms and conditions and tizas regarding returns. The subject matter of disagreement was not discussed bet
our board of directors and PwC prior to PwC's désai. We authorized PwC to respond fully to theuirigs of KPMG LLP concerning tl
subject matter of this disagreement. We requesied # provide us with a letter addressed to the St&afing whether or not PwC agrees
the above disclosures. A copy of PwC's letter, dl@etober 9, 2014, is attached as Exhibit 16.héoregistration statement on Form $ited
with the SEC on October 9, 2014.

KPMG LLP audited our financial statemerdsthe years ended December 31, 2012 and 201%eraltit reports of KPMG LLP for su
years did not contain an adverse opinion or a d@is@r of opinion, nor were they qualified or modifias to uncertainty, audit scope¢
accounting principles. During the two fiscal yeardled December 31, 2012 and through the subseiqienim period prior to KPMG LL
becoming the Company's independent auditors, thmp@ay did not consult with KPMG LLP on either (gt application of accounti
principles to a specified transaction, either catgd or proposed, (ii) the type of audit opinioatttnay be rendered on the Company's fina
statements; or (iii) any matter that was eitherghbject of a disagreement, as defined in Itema&Q#)(iv) of Regulation 3, or a reportabl
event. We are unable to quantify the impact of hegtters subject to the disagreement and cannat ethat the effect on our financ
statements would have been as an evaluation ofreatiers was not completed prior to the dismistauo former independent auditors.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Our management, with the participation of principal executive officer and principal finaalcofficer, has evaluated the effectivenes
our disclosure controls and procedures as of tleoéithe period covered by this Annual Report omnfr@0K. The term "disclosure contre
and procedures," as defined in Rules 13a-15(e)l&dd 5(e) under the Exchange Act means control and gttoeedures of a company that
designed to ensure that information required taliselosed by a company in the reports that it fdesubmits under the Exchange Ac
recorded, processed, summarized and reported mvifikitime periods specified in the SEC rules amh$. Disclosure controls and proced
include, without limitation, controls and procedsidesigned to ensure that information requirecetdibclosed by a company in the reports
it files or submits under the Exchange Act is acelated and communicated to the company's managemmehtding its principal executi
and principal financial officers, as appropriateattow timely decisions regarding required discl@siBased on the evaluation of our disclo
controls and procedures as of December 31, 20¥4principal executive officer and principal finaatbfficer have concluded that as of s
date, our disclosure controls and procedures witzetive.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Ovétinancial Reporting

This Annual Report on Form X0does not include a report of management's assggsegarding internal control over financial rejpag
or an attestation report of our registered pubticoainting firm due to a transition period estaldislioy the rules of the SEC for newly pu
companies.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Controls

Our management, including our Chief ExeautDfficer and Chief Financial Officer, does nofpegt that our disclosure controls .
procedures or our internal controls will preventletect all errors and all
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fraud. A control system, no matter how well coneéinand operated, can provide only reasonable,bsmtlate, assurance that the objective
the control system are met. Because of the inhdiraitations in all control systems, no evaluatiofcontrols can provide absolute assur:
that all control issues and instances of fraudnif, within the Company have been detected. Thdsrént limitations include the realities
judgments in decisic-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can oeeoause of a simple error or mistake. Additionatyntrols can t
circumvented by the individual acts of some persbgsollusion of two or more people, or by managatroverride of the control. The des
of any system of controls also is based in parnupertain assumptions about the likelihood of fetevents, and there can be no assuranc
any design will succeed in achieving its statedggaader all potential future conditions. Over tigentrols may become inadequate becau
changes in conditions, or the degree of compliavitte the policies or procedures may deterioratecaBese of the inherent limitations in a cost
effective control system, misstatements due tarenrdraud may occur and not be detected.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

There were no changes in our internal abmiver financial reporting during our most recéistal quarter that have materially affectec
are reasonably likely to materially affect, ourimtal control over financial reporting.

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART III
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corprate Governance

Incorporated by reference from the inforioratin our Proxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Megtof Stockholders, which we will fi
with the SEC within 120 days of the end of thedisgear to which this Annual Report on Form 10-kKates.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference from the inforioratn our Proxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Megtof Stockholders, which we will fi
with the SEC within 120 days of the end of thedisgear to which this Annual Report on Form 10-kKates.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiBOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Mégrs

Incorporated by reference from the infolioratin our Proxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Megtof Stockholders, which we will fi
with the SEC within 120 days of the end of thedisgear to which this Annual Report on Form 10-kKates.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections and Director Independence

Incorporated by reference from the inforioratin our Proxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Megtof Stockholders, which we will fi
with the SEC within 120 days of the end of thedisgear to which this Annual Report on Form 10-kKates.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference from the inforioratn our Proxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Megtof Stockholders, which we will fi
with the SEC within 120 days of the end of thedisgear to which this Annual Report on Form 10-kKates.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statements and Scldelles
(& (1) Financial Statements.
The response to this portion of ltem 18atsforth under Item 8 above.
(& (2) Financial Statement Schedules.

All schedules have been omitted becausg dhe not required or because the required infaomas given in the Financial Statement:
Notes thereto set forth under Item 8 abc

(@ (3) Exhibits.

See the Exhibit Index immediately followitlte signhature page of this Annual Report on FobAK1The exhibits listed in the Exhil
Index below are filed or incorporated by refereaseart of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Sientra, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balaneetshof Sientra, Inc. (the Company) as of DecerBbe2014 and 2013, and the rel:
statements of operations, convertible preferredksand stockholders' equity (deficit), and cashvfidor each of the years in the three
period ended December 31, 2014. In connection withaudits of the financial statements, we havetadidhe related financial statem
schedule ll—valuation and qualifying accounts. These finanagttements and financial statement schedule argeg@onsibility of th
Company's management. Our responsibility is to@sggan opinion on these financial statements aadhdial statement schedule based ol
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Thu
standards require that we plan and perform thet daodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimntecial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementiened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the financial position of Sientra, Inc
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results obpezations and its cash flows for each of the yéarthe three year period enc
December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. gengraltcepted accounting principles. Also in our opinithe related financial statem
schedule, when considered in relation to the bfasémcial statements taken as a whole, preseny fair all material respects, the informat
set forth therein.

/sl KPMG LLP

Woodland Hills, California
March 18, 201¢
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Sientra, Inc.
Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except per share data)

December 31

2014 2013
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 96,72¢ $ 9,72
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $10,380%$8,543 at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respecti 5,19¢ 6,111
Inventories, ne 20,174 21,53¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 1,782 884
Total current asse 123,88 38,25(
Property and equipment, r 55k 254
Goodwill 14,27¢ 14,27¢
Other intangible assets, r 114 207
Other asset 24¢ 177
Total asset $ 139,07¢ $ 53,16¢

Liabilities, Convertible Preferred Stock and Stocklolders' Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:

Current portion of lon-term debt $ 3,751 $ =
Accounts payabl 2,58¢ 4,76¢
Accrued and other current liabilitis 5,772 4,06¢
Customer deposi 8,614 4,90¢
Total current liabilities 20,73 13,74:
Long-term debt 21,671 15,09:
Warranty reserve and other lc-term liabilities 1,03¢ 55(
Total liabilities 43,43¢ 29,38:

Commitments and contingencies (Note
Convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value—Auittest, issued and
outstanding 24,593,087 shares at December 31, @iqjuidation
preference of $151,000 as of December 31, 2 — 150,45¢
Stockholders' equity (deficit
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value—Authorized 10,000 shares; non
issued or outstandir — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value—Authorized 200,000 Atd
30,200,000 shares; issued 14,985,704 and 279,876uistanding
14,912,977 and 207,152 shares at December 31,8012013,

respectively 15C 3
Additional paic-in capital 229,79" 1,81¢
Treasury stock, at cost (72,727 shares at Dece@ihet014 and 201: (260) (260)
Accumulated defici (134,046  (128,23)

Total stockholders' equity (defici 95,63¢ (126,672)
Total liabilities, convertible preferred stock astdckholders'
equity (deficit) $ 139,07 $ 53,16¢

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Sientra, Inc.
Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Net sales $ 4473 $ 3517: $ 10,44%
Cost of goods sol 11,50( 8,59- 2,352
Gross profi 33,23 26,57¢ 8,09t
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 23,59¢ 22,22¢ 17,91¢
Research and developm 4,707 4.47¢ 3,67(
General and administratiy 10,71: 18,07¢ 9,93¢
Total operating expens 39,01¢ 44,78¢ 31,527
Loss from operation (5,78%) (18,207 (23,437
Other (expense) income, n
Interest expens (2,1772) (872) —
Other (expense) income, n 2,14¢ (46) (1)
Total other (expense) income, | (2€) (91¢) (1)
Loss before income taxi (5,81)) (19,125 (23,437
Income taxe: — — —
Net loss $ (5,81) $ (19,125 $ (23,439
Basic and diluted net loss per share attributabmmmon
stockholder $ (2.26) $ (82.2f5) $ (85.0))
Weighted average outstanding common shares usefo
loss per share attributable to common stockholt
Basic and dilutes 2,545,37 232,51 275,64

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Balance at
December 3
2011
Issuance of

Series C
convertible
preferred
stock at
$5.335 pel
share, net
of issuanci
costs of
$447
Stock option
exercise
Employee
stock-
based
compensa
expenst
Net loss

Balances at
December 3
2012
Stock option

exerciset
Repurchaser
common
shares
Employee
stock-
based
compensa
expenst
Net loss

Balances at
December 3
2013
Conversion

of
convertible
preferred
stock to
common
stock
Proceeds
from IPO,
net of cost
Stock option
exercises
Employee
stock-
based
compensa
expenst
Net loss

Balances at
December 3
2014

Sientra, Inc.

Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock and Stodiolders' Equity (Deficit)

(in thousands, except per share data)

Convertible preferred Additional Total
stock Common stock Treasury stock Accumulated stockholders'

paid-in equity

Shares Amount Shares  Amount Shares Amount capital deficit (deficit)
12,409,39 $ 85,90 275,03t $ 3 — $ — $ 1,107 $ (85,67) $ (84,567
12,183,69 64,55: — — — — — — —
— — 1,81¢ — — — 3 — 3
— — — — — — 357 — 357
_ _ — — = = — (23,43)) (23,43))
24,593,08 150,45t 276,85¢ 3 — — 1,467 (109,110 (107,64
— — 3,02¢ — 10 — 10
— — — — 72,72 (260) — — (260)
— — — — — — 34z — 34z
— — — — — — — (19,129 (19,125
24,593,08 $ 150,45¢ 279,87¢ $ 3 72,727 $ (260 1,81¢ (128,23)) (126,679
(24,593,08) (150,45f) 8,942,92! 89 — — 150,36° — 150,45t
— —  5,750,00! 58 — — 76,97" — 77,03t
— — 12,90( — — — 38 — 38
— — — — — — 594 — 594
— — — — — — — (5,81) (5,81))
— — 1498570 $ 15C 72,720 $§ (260 $ 229,79' $ (134,040 $ 95,63¢

74

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




Table of Contents

Sientra, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss $ (5,810 $ (19,125 $ (23,439
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexviby (usec
in) operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic 27¢ 28C 28¢
Provision for sales return resel 1,74¢ 3,93¢ 4,24(
Provision for doubtful accoun 39 107 14C
Provision for warrantie 447 392 128
Change in fair value of warrar 22C 46 —
Non cash interest expen 49C 17¢ —
Stoclk-based compensation expel 594 34z 357
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl (873 (6,809 (7,636
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and oteds (864) 19t (57%)
Inventories 1,35¢ (10,857 (7,520
Accounts payabl (2,26€) 1,90¢ 39C
Accrued and other liabilitie 1,38t (70 2,931
Customer deposi 3,707 3,59: 84¢
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 45( (25,877 (29,846
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of property and equipm (439 (77) (399
Contingent payment related to Silimed acquisi — (18,000) —
Net cash used in investing activit| (43¢) (18,07) (399
Cash flows from financing activitie

Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 38 10 3
Repurchase of common sta — (260) —
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock — — 64,55

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net ofrurders

discount 80,21:

Proceeds from issuance of l-term debt 10,00( 15,00( —
Deferred financing cos (14¢) (28¢) —
Deferred equity issuance co (3,107%) — —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 86,99¢ 14,46 64,55¢

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 87,00% (29,48¢) 34,31¢

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of perioc 9,72 39,20¢ 4,892
End of perioc $96,72¢ $ 9,722 $ 39,20¢

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest paic $ 1577 $ 641 $ —
Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing amehfting
activities:
Accrual for the resolution of contingent paymenated to
Silimed acquisitior $ — $ — $ 18,00(
Accrued equity issuance co: 71 — —
Property and equipment in accounts pay: 44 — —

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

75




Table of Contents

Sientra, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

(In thousands, except per share data)
1) Formation and Business of the Company
(&) Formation

Sientra, Inc., or the Company, was incoafexn in the State of Delaware on August 29, 2008umhe name Juliet Medical, Inc.
subsequently changed its name to Sientra, Incpifil 2007. The Company acquired substantially ladl &ssets of Silimed, Inc., or Silimed,
April 4, 2007. The purpose of the acquisition wagtquire the rights to the silicone breast imptdinical trials. Following this acquisition, t
Company focused on completing the clinical triadsgain Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, apmbto offer its silicone gel bre:
implants in the United States.

In March 2012, Sientra announced it ha@ikexl approval from the FDA for its portfolio ofisbne gel breast implants, and in the se«
quarter of 2012 the Company began commercializaftorts to sell its products in the United StafEse Company, based in Santa Bark
California, is a medical aesthetics company thati$es on serving boan#rtified plastic surgeons and offers a portfoliciticone shaped ai
round breast implants, tissue expanders, and boalpering products.

(b) Reverse Stock Split

On October 10, 2014, the board of directmd stockholders approved an amendment to the @uwytgpfourth amended and resti
certificate of incorporation, which was filed ontGiser 17, 2014, which effected a 1 for 2.75 reveteek split of the Company's issued
outstanding shares of common stock. The par vdlilkeocommon stock was not adjusted as a resuheofeverse stock split. All issued i
outstanding shares of common stock, stock optiors vaarrants and the related per share amountsigedtan the Company's financ
statements have been retroactively adjusted teatethis reverse stock split for all periods présénAlso, as a result of the reverse stock
of the common stock, the conversion ratios foofithe Company's convertible preferred stock haaenbadjusted such that the preferred ¢
are now convertible into shares of common stock abnversion rate of 2.75-to-1 instead of 1ktoFhe number of issued and outstan
shares of preferred stock and their related peresamounts have not been affected by the reveosi split and therefore have not b
adjusted in the Company's financial statements. éd@w to the extent that the convertible prefesttk are presented on an as convert
common stock basis, such share and per share asnoomtained in the Company's financial statemeat& tbeen retroactively adjustec
reflect this reverse stock split for all periodegented.

(c) Initial Public Offering

On November 3, 2014, the Company complatechitial public offering, or IPO, whereby it sotdtotal of 5,750,000 shares of comr
stock at $15.00 per share inclusive of 750,000eshapld to underwriters for the exercise of th@itian to purchase additional shares.
Company received net proceeds from the IPO of aqpiately $77,035, after deducting underwriting disats and commissions and offel
expenses of approximately $9,215. These expendldsenecorded against the proceeds received fh@iRO.

The interestnly period for the tranche D term loan (see NQtevds extended from August 1, 2015 to August 1,6284 a result of havil
raised at least $50,000 in gross proceeds in tBeali®l the completion of the IPO before June 305201
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Sientra, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)
1) Formation and Business of the Company (Continugd

The outstanding shares of convertible pretestock were converted on a 2.75kttbasis into shares of common stock concurrent thid
closing of the IPO. All of the outstanding sharéseries A, Series B and Series C preferred stookerted into 8,942,925 shares of com
stock. Following the closing of the IPO, there weeeshares of preferred stock outstanding.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementscamformity with accounting principles generally epted in the United States of Ame
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates asutrgtions that affect the reported amounts of ass®d liabilities and the disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities at the dateheffinancial statements, and the reported amountsvenues and expenses during the repc
period. Actual results could differ from those esttes. Assets and liabilities which are subjecsigmificant judgment and use of estimi
include the allowance for doubtful accounts, saédsrn reserves, provision for warranties, valuatd inventories, recoverability of lorlgred
assets, valuation allowances with respect to dedetax assets, useful lives associated with prpmertl equipment and finite lived intangi
assets, and the valuation and assumptions undgrtiockbased compensation and other equity instrumentsa®mngoing basis, t
Company evaluates its estimates compared to tdatoekperience and trends, which form the basisrfaking judgments about the carry
value of assets and liabilities. In addition, thenpany engages the assistance of valuation spgsialiconcluding on fair value measurem
in connection with stock-based compensation andrahuity instruments.

(b) Liquidity

Since inception, the Company has incurredlasses. During the years ended December 31, 2018, and 2012 the Company incu
net losses of $5,811, $19,125, and $23,433, raspgctThe Company provided $450 of cash in operatifor the year ended Decembel
2014 and used $25,877 and $29,846 of cash in épesaduring the years ended December 31, 2013 @hd, 2espectively. At December
2014 and 2013 the Company had an accumulated tdeffi$l. 34,046 and $128,235, respectively. At Decen®i, 2014, the Company had ¢
and cash equivalents of $96,729. The Company'&yatul continue to meet its obligations and to aoki its business objectives is depen
upon, amongst other things, generating sufficiemenues. The Company believes that it has thetyatilicontinue as a going concern thra
at least December 31, 2015.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid éstments purchased with an original maturity oééhmonths or less to be cash equival
Cash equivalents consist primarily of checking acts.

(d) Concentration of Credit and Supplier Risks

Financial instruments that potentially sdbjthe Company to significant concentrations efdirrisk consist primarily of cash and c
equivalents. The Company's cash and cash equisadeatdeposited in demand accounts at a finamgétution that management believe
creditworthy. The Company is exposed to credit isthe event of default by this financial institit for cash and cash equivalents in
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Sientra, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cotinued)

excess of amounts insured by the Federal Depasirdnce Corporation (FDIC). Management believestteCompany's investments in ¢
and cash equivalents are financially sound and haaanal credit risk and the Company has not exgered any losses on its deposits of
and cash equivalents.

The Company currently purchases all oBitsast Products from one supplier under an exdlysiontract. The supplier and its produc
facility are located in Brazil. The Company is egpd to risks of foreign regulations in Brazil tieatld hinder the Company's ability to img
goods, as well as halts or limitations in produtsia@ue to events outside of the Company's contraliroing at the production facility. Tt
could result in the Company not being able to aggthie inventory needed to meet customer demanithwiould result in possible loss
sales and affect operating results adversely. Mamagt believes that there is minimal risk of suebnés occurring.

(e) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash atprits, accounts receivable, accounts payableyedtdiabilities, and customer deposits
reasonable estimates of their fair value becausheoshort maturity of these items. The fair vahiighe common stock warrant liability
discussed in Note 2(f). The fair value of our Idegn debt is based on the amount of future cashsflassociated with the instrum
discounted using our current market rate. At Decam3i, 2014, the carrying value of the lalegm debt was not materially different from
fair value.

() Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are caraethir value under GAAP. Fair value is definedfss exchange price that would be received f
asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit pjiin the principal or most advantageous marketterasset or liability in an orderly transac
between market participants on the measurement Wataation techniques used to measure fair valustrmaximize the use of observe
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable ingkitsancial assets and liabilities carried at failue are to be classified and disclosed in
of the following three levels of the fair value faechy, of which the first two are considered olsabte and the last is considered unobservabls

. Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for titeal assets or liabilities.

. Level 2—Observable inputs (other than Level 1 quoted pyisesh as quoted prices in active markets for simélssets
liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are metive for identical or similar assets or liab@#i or other inputs that :
observable or can be corroborated by observablkandata.

. Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlem@market activity and that are significant toedstining the fai
value of the assets or liabilities, including pmgimodels, discounted cash flow methodologies andes techniques.

The Company's common stock warrant lidbgitare carried at fair value determined accortiinipe fair value hierarchy described ab
The Company has utilized an option pricing valuatioodel to determine the fair value of its outstagc&common stock warrant liabilities. T
inputs to the model include fair value of the comnmrsiock related to the warrant, exercise pricehef warrant, expected term, expe:
volatility, risk-free interest rate and dividenabld. Prior to the IPO, the Company determined
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Sientra, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cotinued)

the fair value per share of the underlying commtoglsby taking into consideration its most recealé ©f its convertible preferred stock as
as additional factors that the Company deems rete@ibsequent to the IPO, the warrants are valsed) the fair value of common stock
of the measurement date. The Company historically lleen a private company and lacks compmegific historical and implied volatili
information of its stock. Therefore, it estimateséxpected stock volatility based on the histdéricdatility of publicly traded peer compan
for a term equal to the remaining contractual tefmthe warrants. The riskee interest rate is determined by reference ¢oUts. Treasu
yield curve for time periods approximately equattie remaining contractual term of the warrantee Tompany has estimated a 0% divic
yield based on the expected dividend yield anddhethat the Company has never paid or declarddatids. As several significant inputs
not observable, the overall fair value measureroétite warrants is classified as Level 3.

The following tables present informationoab the Company's liabilities that are measuredaat value on a recurring basis as
December 31, 2014 and 2013 and indicate the ldwhakedair value hierarchy utilized to determinesdair value:

Fair Value Measurements as o
December 31, 2014 Using:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Liabilities:
Liability for common stock warran $ — — 42C 42(
Fair Value Measurements as o
December 31, 2013 Using:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Liabilities:
Liability for common stock warran $ — — 90 90

The following table provides a rollforwaofl the aggregate fair values of the Company's comstock warrants for which fair value
determined by Level 3 inputs:

Fair value upon issuance during 201. $ 4
Increase in fair value through December 31, 2 46
Balance, January 1, 2014 a0
Fair value of warrants upon issuance during 2 11C
Increase in fair value through December 31, 2 22(C
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 42

The company recognized changes in thevédire of these warrants in other (expense) incoraein the statement of operations.
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Sientra, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cotinued)
(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at oces$tpf accumulated depreciation. Depreciation immated using the straiglite method ove
the estimated useful life of the asset; generdligd years. Leasehold improvements are depreaistedthe shorter of the lease term or
estimated useful life of the related asset. Updineraent or sale of an asset, the cost and reltedmulated depreciation or amortization
removed from the balance sheet and any resultiig @raloss is reflected in operations in the penedlized. Maintenance and repairs
charged to operations as incurred.

(h) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the mselprice over the fair value of net assets ofhaged businesses. Goodwill is not amort
but instead subject to impairment tests on at laasannual basis and whenever circumstances sutigésgoodwill may be impaired. T
Company's annual test for impairment is performedfaOctober 1 of each fiscal year. The Companyasakqualitative assessment of whe
it is more likely than not that a reporting unféé value is less than its carrying amount befapplying the twastep goodwill impairment te
If the Company concludes that it is not more likétan not that the fair value of a reporting usitiéss than its carrying amount, it is
required to perform the two-step impairment testliat reporting unit.

Under the first step of the test, the Comypi required to compare the fair value of a répgrunit with its carrying amount, includi
goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit ee@ds its carrying amount, goodwill of the reportingjt is not considered impaired and
second step of the test is not performed. If tiselte of the first step of the impairment test gadé that the fair value of a reporting unit ¢
not exceed its carrying amount, then the secorp ait¢he test is required. The second step of ekt dcompares the implied fair value of
reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amounttbfat goodwill. The impairment loss is measuredhzyexcess of the carrying amount of
reporting unit goodwill over the implied fair valod that goodwill.

Management evaluates the Company as aesiagbrting unit for business and operating purp@seall of the Company's revenue stre
are generated by the same underlying productsalés $n the United States of America. In addititre, majority of the Company's costs are
their nature, shared costs that are not speckiddéntifiable to a geography or product line, belate to all products. As a result, there is d
degree of interdependency among the Company'satest and cash flows for the entity and identifiaddsh flows for a reporting unit sepa
from the entity are not meaningful.

Judgments about the recoverability of pasell finitelived intangible assets are made whenever eventhanges in circumstar
indicate that impairment may exist. Each fiscalryibg@ Company evaluates the estimated remaininfylusees of purchased intangible as:
and whether events or changes in circumstance maaraevision to the remaining periods of amori@at Recoverability of finitdived
intangible assets is measured by comparison ofdahging amount of the asset to the future undistedi cash flows the asset is expecte
generate. The intangible asset is amortized testihiement of operations based on estimated casis fienerated from the intangible ove
estimated life.
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Sientra, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)
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(i) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company's management routinely considdrether indicators of impairment of lotiged assets are present. If such indicator:
present, management determines whether the sune eltimated undiscounted cash flows attributabthd assets in question is less than
carrying value. If less, the Company will recognae impairment loss based on the excess of thgiegramount of the assets over tl
respective fair values. Fair value is determineddiscounted future cash flows, appraisals or othethods. If the assets determined t
impaired are to be held and used, the Companyr&gdthgnize an impairment charge to the extent thegmt value of anticipated net cash fl
attributable to the asset are less than the assetisng value. The fair value of the asset Wit become the asset's new carrying value.
have been no impairments of lohged assets recorded during the years ended Desre®dih 2014, 2013 and 2012. The Company may r
impairment losses in future periods if factorsueficing its estimates change.

() Revenue Recognition

The Company sells its product directly tstomers in markets where it has regulatory apprdte Company offers a sixonth retur
policy and recognizes revenue net of sales dissoantl returns in accordance with the Financial Aotiog Standards Board, or FAS
Accounting Standards Codification 6(8evenue RecognitiglhSC 605). ASC 605 requires that six basic criteniast be met before rever
can be recognized when a right of return exists:

the seller's price to the buyer is substantiaktedi or determinable at the date of sale;

. the buyer has paid the seller, or the buyer isgabdid to pay the seller and the obligation is rwttiogent on resale of t
product;

. the buyer's obligation to the seller would not bar@ed in the event of theft or physical destructipdamage of the product;

. the buyer acquiring the product for resale has ecnn substance apart from that provided by thesell

. thedseller does not have significant obligationsfimure performance to directly bring about resaflehe product by the buy:
an

. the amount of future returns can be reasonadilynated.

Appropriate reserves are established fticipated sales returns based on historical expegierecent gross sales and any notificatic
pending returns. The Company recognizes revenue itle to the product and risk of loss transferctesstomers, provided there are
remaining performance obligations required of tleenany or any written matters requiring customeeptance. The Company allows for
return of product from customers within six monéifter the original sale and records estimated salesns as a reduction of sales in the ¢
period revenue is recognized. Sales return pravisare calculated based upon historical experiaiitteactual returns. Actual sales return
any future period are inherently uncertain and thay differ from the estimates. If actual salesmes differ significantly from the estimates,
adjustment to revenue in the current or subsequendd would be
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recorded. The Company has established an allowaneales returns of $10,018 and $8,270 as of Dbeel, 2014 and 2013, respectiv
recorded net against accounts receivable in thanbalsheet.

A portion of the Company's revenue is gatesl from consigned inventory of breast implantsntained at doctor, hospital, and cli
locations. The customer is contractually obligatednaintain a specific level of inventory and tatiffothe Company upon use. For th
products, revenue is recognized at the time thegaomis notified by the customer that the prodast been implanted. Notification is usu
through the replenishing of the inventory and them@any periodically reviews consignment inventotiesconfirm accuracy of custon
reporting. FDA regulations require tracking theesabf all implanted products.

Shipping and handling charges are largetyided to customers free of charge. The assocists are viewed as part of the Comps
marketing programs and are recorded as a compaiesdles and marketing expense in the statemeopefations. For the years en
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 these costs aetbtm$1,305, $1,021 and $354, respectively.

In other cases, shipping and handling at&rgay be invoiced to customers based on the ansbgmbducts sold. In such cases, ship
and handling fees collected are recorded as revamti¢he related expense as a component of cgsioafs sold.

(k) Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtfccounts

Accounts receivable are recorded at theigad amount and do not bear interest. The Compaaintains allowances for doubt
accounts for estimated losses resulting from theility to collect from some of its customers. Tdlwances for doubtful accounts are b
on the analysis of historical bad debts, customedlitworthiness, past transaction history with the awmgig and current economic trends. If
financial condition of the Company's customers wereleteriorate, adversely affecting their abililymake payments, additional allowar
may be required. The Company has established awallce for doubtful accounts of $312 and $273 aBafember 31, 2014 and 20
respectively.

() Inventories and Cost of Goods Sold

Inventories represent finished goods tmatracorded at the lower of cost or market on st-fiv, firstout basis (FIFO). The Compe
periodically assesses the recoverability of alleimeries to determine whether adjustments for impant or obsolescence are required.
Company evaluates the remaining shelf life and rofeneral obsolescence and impairment criteriassessing the recoverability of
Company's inventory.

The Company recognizes the cost of invgri@nsferred to the customer in cost of goods wdidn revenue is recognized.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, approxirge$d,989 and $528, respectively, of the Compamyernitory was held on consignmen
doctors' offices, clinics, and hospitals. The vane quantity at any one location is not significan
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(m) Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes utiterasset and liability method. Under this methdeferred tax assets and liabilities
determined based on the difference between thadiabstatement and tax bases of assets and tiebilising enacted tax rates in effect fo
year in which the differences are expected to ateable income. Valuation allowances are esthbtisvhen necessary to reduce deferre
assets to the amounts expected to be realized.

The Company accounts for uncertain taxtosin accordance with ASC 740-18ccounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxe§ he
Company assesses all material positions takenyinn@mome tax return, including all significant untzén positions, in all tax years that are
subject to assessment or challenge by relevamdaadithorities. Assessing an uncertain tax posliegins with the initial determination of -
position's sustainability and is measured at thgelst amount of benefit that is greater than fifgrcent likely of being realized upon ultim
settlement. As of each balance sheet date, unexbalvcertain tax positions must be reassessedhar@ompany will determine whether (i)
factors underlying the sustainability assertionéhakianged and (ii) the amount of the recognizedaefit is still appropriate. The recognit
and measurement of tax benefits requires signifigadgment. Judgments concerning the recogniticth measurement of tax benefit mi
change as new information becomes available.

(n) Research and Development Expenditures

Research and development costs are chamgeperating expenses as incurred. Research aradogevent, or R&D, primarily consist
clinical expenses, regulatory expenses, produceldpment, consulting services, outside researchites, quality control, and other co
associated with the development of the Compangdymts and compliance with Good Clinical Practioes;CP, requirements. R&D expen
also include related personnel and consultant caosgi®n and stock-based compensation expense.

(o) Advertising

Expenses related to advertising are chargedles and marketing expense as incurred. Adirgrtcosts were $1,548, $801 and $51(
fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(p) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company applies the fair value provisiof ASC 718,Compensation—Stock Compensati®sC 718). ASC 718 requires !
recognition of compensation expense, using a falner based method, for costs related to all empleyarehased payments, including st
options and the employee stock purchase plan. ABd&quires companies to estimate the fair valushafebased payment awards on the
of grant using an option-pricing model. All optigrants valued are being expensed on a straighbéses over their vesting period.

(g) Product Warranties

The Company offers a limited warranty andedime product replacement program for the Comymsilicone gel breast implants. Un
the limited warranty program, the Company will reimse
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patients for certain out-qfecket costs related to revision surgeries perfdrmighin ten years from the date of implantatioraicovered evetr
Under the lifetime product replacement program, @wmpany provides noharge replacement breast implants under a cowredt. Th
programs are available to all patients implantethwhe Company's silicone breast implants afterilApr2012 and are subject to the ter
conditions, claim procedures, limitations and egins. Timely completion of a device tracking anarsanty enrollment form by the patiel
Plastic Surgeon is required to activate the progrand for the patient to be able to receive benafitler either program.

The following table provides a rollforwasfithe accrued warranties:

December 31

T2014_ 2013
Beginning balanc $ 51t $ 12t
Payment made during the peri (@D} —
Changes in accrual related to warranties issueidgltie perioc 50¢ 392
Changes in accrual related to -existing warrantie: (62 —
Ending balanc: $ 961 $ 51t

() Deferred Equity Issuance Costs

Deferred equity issuance costs, primarilgsisting of legal, accounting and other direcsfard costs relating to the IPO, were capital
as incurred, in other current assets prior to tirapletion of the IPO. Upon completion of the IPG,1¥8 of issuance costs were capitalizet
of which were reclassified to additional-paid-impital to offset the IPO proceeds.

(s) Segment Information

Management has determined that it has oééss activity and operates in one segment @slytreports financial information on
aggregate basis to its Chief Executive Officer, ishthe Company's chief operating decision makdrtahgible assets are held in the Un
States.

() Net Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share attributable to commstockholders is computed by dividing net loss hy weighted average number of comi
shares outstanding during each period. Diluted pgsscommon share is computed by dividing net éosslable to common stockholders by
weighted average number of common shares andwdilpiitential common share equivalents then outsigntb the extent they are diluti'
Potential common shares consist of shares issugiole the exercise of stock options and warrantagube treasury stock method), and
weighted average conversion of the convertiblegoretl stock into shares of common stock (usingftitenverted method). Dilutive loss |
share is the
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same as basic loss per share for all periods pexsbrecause the effects of potentially dilutivenisewere anti-dilutive.

December 31

2014 2013 2012
Net loss $ (5,810 $ (19,129 $ (23,43
Weighted average common shares
outstanding, basic and dilut 2,545,37. 232,51. 275,64
Net loss per share attributable to comr
stockholders $ (2.28) $ (82.2%) $ (85.0)

The Company excluded the following potdhtialilutive securities, outstanding as of Decem®g&r 2014, 2013 and 2012 from
computation of diluted net loss per share attribletdo common stockholders for the years ended mbee 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 bec:
they had an anti-dilutive impact due to the nes laiributable to common stockholders incurredtierperiods.

December 31

2014 2013 2012
Stock options to purchase common
stock 1,613,54. 1,422,31! 1,409,04
Warrants for the purchase of commo
stock 47,71( 30,67( —
Convertible preferred stock (as
converted to common stoc o 8,942,92! 8,942,92!

1,661,25 10,39591 10,351,97

(u) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued accountingidtad update 2014-0®evenue from Contracts with Customefhe standard was issuec
provide a single framework that replaces existimduistry and transaction specific GAAP with a fitepsanalysis of transactions to deterr
when and how revenue is recognized. This accoustargdard update is expected to be effective bmpany beginning in fiscal year 2C
The Company is currently assessing the impactiizastandard will have on the financial statemeptn adoption of the guidance.

In August 2014, the FASB issued accounst@ndard update 2014-1Bresentation of Financial Statement—Going Concerfihe
standard was issued to provide guidance about reamagt's responsibility to evaluate whether thesusstantial doubt about an entity's ab
to continue as a going concern and to provideedl&otnote disclosures. This accounting standpdhied will be effective for the Compe
beginning in fiscal year 2016. The Company antitgpahere will be no impact on its financial staéeupon adoption of this guidance.
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Property and equipment, net consist ofdHewing:

December 31

2014 2013
Leasehold improvemen $ 69 $ 19
Computer equipmer 13¢€ 18<
Software 16€ 85
Office equipmen 167 12¢
Furniture and fixture 63€ 45¢€

1,17¢ 871
Less accumulated depreciati (621) (617)

Depreciation expense for the years endexdber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $182, $148 Ho®l i@spectively.

Accrued and other current liabilities cansif the following:

558 § 254

December 31

2014 2013
Accrued clinical trial and research and developnesipense $ 10 $ 16€
Audit, consulting and legal fet 72 124
Payroll and related expens 2,49 1,89(
Accrued commissio 1,96¢ 1,56:
Warrant liability 42C a0
Other 70t 232

$ 577 $ 4,06t

(4) Long-term Debt

On January 17, 2013, the Company enteredanLoan and Security Agreement, or the OriginairnT Loan Agreement, with Oxfc
providing for a $15,000 term loan facility consigfiof original term loans of (i) a $7,500 tranchée#m loan, (ii) a $2,500 tranche B term |
and (iii) a $5,000 tranche C term loan, maturing=ebruary 1, 2017. The term loan facility is calalized by a firspriority security interest
substantially all of the Company's assets. Borrg&innder the term loan facility bear interest edta equal to 8.4% per annum and the Oril
Term Loan Agreement provides for interesiy payments through June 30, 2015. The term lgzslade an additional lump sum paymen
$975 due on February 1, 2017.

On June 30, 2014, the Company entered ttoAmended and Restated Loan and Security Agreeroerthe Amended Term Lo
Agreement, with Oxford, under which the interesty period for the original term loans was extahde August 1, 2015 and raised
additional $10,000 in a fourth tranche (tranchenigturing on January 1, 2019. The term loans aratechlized by a firspriority security
interest in substantially all of the Company's &sSEhe term loans bear interest at a rate equal to
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8.4% per annum. The interest-only period for tten¢he A, B and C term loans ends on August 1, 20itbthe interestnly period for th
tranche D term loan ends on the same date, buextasded another year to August 1, 2016 as the @oynpised at least $50,000 in gl
proceeds as part of the IPO (see Note 1). Thehmbcterm loan includes an additional lump sum paytnof $650 due on January 1, 2019.

The Amended Term Loan Agreement contaim®ua negative and affirmative covenants, includiegain restrictive covenants that li
the Company's ability to transfer or dispose ofaiarassets, engage in new lines of business, ehfwegcomposition of Company managen
merge with or acquire other companies, incur addéti debt, create new liens and encumbrances, igakedds or subordinated debt and e
into material transactions with affiliates, amorigeys. The Amended Term Loan Agreement also camfaiancial reporting requirements.

The aggregate maturities of loegm debt as of December 31, 2014 are: $3,757 15,211,094 in 2016, $5,558 in 2017, $4,223 in :
and $368 in 2019.

In connection with the Original Term Loagr&ement and the Amended Term Loan Agreement, timep@ny issued to Oxford (i) seven-
year warrants in January 2013 to purchase shareedfompany's common stock with a value equal@&63of the tranche A, B and C te
loans amounts and (ii) sevgear warrants in June 2014 to purchase sharesdfdmpany's common stock with a value equal to 25%e
tranche D term loan amount. The warrants have arcise price per share equal to the lesser dfii¢iSeries C preferred stock conversion |
of $14.671 per share or (ii) the price per share snbsequent qualified round of financing whemsgproceeds are greater than $10,000.

(5) Acquisition of Silimed, Inc.

On April 4, 2007, the Company acquired saigally all of the assets of Silimed, a privatélgld Texadased company engaged in
development and sale of medical devices includirepst implants, under the terms of an Asset Puechageement, or the APA. T
consideration paid by the Company to Silimed wa8,820 in cash and 90,909 shares of the Compangisnonm stock. The transaction
specifieda series of contingent payments with a total paéentlue of $70,000. As the net assets acquirededed the purchase price,
since the contingencies were not resolved, thehase price allocation included a deferred credig&tive goodwill) of $4,298.

On May 16, 2013, the Company, Grader Stfieemerly, Silimed, Inc.) and Grader Street's fdenreached a confidential agreemel
which the Company agreed to pay Grader Streetssgmount of $18,000 and to release all claimsttita€ompany had against Grader S
and its founder. In return, Grader Street anddtmiler also released all claims, including all fetaontingent payments, under the APA
addition, under the terms of the agreement, the f@my paid $260 to repurchase all 72,727 sharesh@foriginal 90,909 shares issu
currently held by Grader Street's founder.

Accordingly, the excess fair value of tle¢tlement payment and the release of $576 in @tbeets related to claims against Grader ¢
over the $4,298 deferred credit were recognizeabldgional cost of the asset acquisition as of Dewr 31, 2013.
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(&) Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill was $14,2@8all periods presented. The Company has detesuniihat it has one reporting unit and
chosen October 1 as the date for its annual imgaitriiest. The Company performed the annual impaitrest of goodwill for 2014 and 20
and determined that goodwill was not impaired.

(b) Other Intangible Assets

The Company recorded approximately $1,7flBitangible assets in connection with the acqisibf Silimed. The components of
Company's intangible assets are as follows:

December 31

2014 2013
Acquired FDA nol-gel product approv: $ 1,71 $ 1,71
Less accumulated amortizati (1,599 (1,50€6)

$ 114 $ 207

Amortization expense for intangible asdetsthe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an? @@% $93, $132 and $179 respecti
and is recorded in general and administrative expeén the statement of operations. The remainingrération period as of December
2014 is 3 years. The following table summarizes ésémated amortization expense relating to the @omw's intangible assets as
December 31, 2014:

2015 $ 61
2016 37
2017 16

$ 114
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Actual income tax expense differs from tbhtained by applying the statutory federal incdmerate of 34% to income before incc
taxes as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Tax at federal statutory ra $ (1,97¢) $ (6,507 $ (7,9679)
State, net of federal bene (260 (57€) (774
Permanent item 58C 33¢ 25E
Research and development cre (21€) (232) (18€)
Benefit state rate chan (947) — —
Other 49t 15 98
Change in valuation allowan: 2,31¢ 6,95¢€ 8,574

$ — $ — $ —

The tax effects of temporary differenced aarryforwards that give rise to significant ponis of the deferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31

2014 2013
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 3937. $ 37,27¢
Research and development cre 2,23( 2,01«
Depreciatior 36 31
Accruals and reserve 5,03¢ 3,70¢
Intangibles 5,732 7,05¢
52,40t 50,08"
Less valuation allowanc (52,40 (50,087
Total deferred tax asse $ — $ —

The Company has established a full valuagibowance against its net deferred tax assetdaltiee uncertainty surrounding realizatiol
such assets.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company hddperating loss carryforwards of approximately 5102 and $91,474 available to rec
future taxable income, if any, for federal andesiatome tax purposes, respectively. The fedetabperating loss carryforward begins expi
in 2027, and the state net operating loss carndaas begin expiring in 2017. It is possible thatwilk not generate taxable income in time
use these NOLs before their expiration. In addjtiender Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Cod#986, as amended, or the Code,
corporation undergoes an "ownership change" (gépetafined as a greater than 50% change, be vaiuigs equity ownership over a th
year period), the corporation's ability to usepts-change NOL carryforwards and other pre-changeattibutes to offset its poshang
income may be limited. We have not performed aildetaanalysis to determine whether an ownershijgbaunder Section 382 of the C
has previously occurred. As a result, if we earmntaeable income, our ability to use our pteange net operating loss carryforwards to ¢
U.S. federal taxable income may become subjedtiitations, which could potentially result in
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increased future tax liability to us. Until suchadysis is completed, we cannot be sure that tHeafnbunt of the existing federal NOLs will
available to us, even if we do generate taxablerm&before their expiration.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company hadarch and development credit carryforwards of @pprately $1,799 and $1,762 availe
to reduce future taxable income, if any, for fetlarad California state income tax purposes, resyedgt The federal credit carryforwards be
expiring in 2027 and the state credits carryforwiadfinitely.

At December 31, 2014, the Company had wyeized tax benefits of approximately $732 assediatith the research and developn
credits. The Company does not anticipate that toteécognized net tax benefits will significantlyanige over the next twelve months.

A reconciliation of the beginning and erglaamount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

Ending balance at December 31, 2! $ 594
Additions based on tax positions taken in the airyear 77
Ending balance at December 31, 2! 671
Additions based on tax positions taken in the airyear 61
Ending balance at December 31, 2! $ 73

It is the Company's policy to include pé¢iesl and interest expense related to income tax@s@mponent of other expense and int
expense, respectively, as necessary. There wasiteeest expense or penalties related to unrecagniar benefits recorded throt
December 31, 2014.

The Company files U.S. federal and stat®nme tax returns in jurisdictions with varying stat of limitations. The years that may
subject to examination will vary by jurisdictionh@ Company's tax years 2010 to 2014 will remaimde examination by the federal ¢
state tax authorities.

(8) Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
(a) Authorized Stock

The Company's Amended and Restated Cettfiof Incorporation, effective upon the completasrthe IPO, authorizes the Compan
issue 210,000,000 shares of common and prefer@k,stonsisting of 200,000,000 shares of commowksteith $0.01 par value a
10,000,000 shares of preferred stock with $0.0lvphre. As of December 31, 2014, the Company haweferred stock issued or outstanding

Prior to the IPO, the Company was autharizeissue 30,200,000 shares of common stock viit@I$par value and 24,593,087 share
preferred stock with $0.01 par value.

(b) Convertible Preferred Stock

Prior to completion of the IPO, under thenpany's Certificate of Incorporation, as amendeel,Company's convertible preferred s
was issued in three series: A, B and C. The oulstgrshares of convertible preferred stock wereveded on a 2.75-t@-basis into shares
common stock concurrent
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with the closing of the IPO. All of the outstandislgares of Series A, Series B and Series C prefstoek converted into 8,942,925 share
common stock.

At December 31, 2013, the Company's coiblerpreferred stock consists of the following:

Proceeds
net of
Shares issuance Liquidation Issuance
Series authorized Outstanding costs value date
A 1,000,001 1,000,000 $ 994 1,00( October 200t
B 11,409,39  11,409,39 84,90¢ 85,00( April 2007 and October 20(
C 12,183,69 12,183,69 64,55! 65,00( March 201z

24,593,08 24,593,08 $ 150,45t 151,00(

As of December 31, 2013, the holders ofvettible preferred stock have various rights arefgmences as follows:
(c) Voting Rights

The holder of each share of Series A, S@iand Series C convertible preferred stock atileshto the number of votes equal to
number of shares of the common stock into whicthesoare of the preferred stock could be convertethe record date. The holders of sh
of preferred stock have voting rights and powelsa¢tp the voting rights and powers of holdersahmon stock.

(d) Dividends

The holders of convertible preferred staok entitled to receive noncumulative dividendsemhnd if declared by the Board of Direct
out of any assets legally available, prior to angrieference to any declaration or payment of éivitb on the common stock of the Company.

(e) Liquidation Preference

In the event of any corporate reorganizatimuidation, dissolution or winding up of the @pany, whether voluntary or involuntary,
holders of Series A, Series B and Series C ardemhto receive an amount of $1.00, $7.45 and $5#8 share, respectively (adjusted to re
stock dividends, stock splits, and recapitalizgtiptus any accrued but unpaid dividends. HoldéiSasies C are entitled to be paid first pric
payment of holders of Series A and Series B. Tlienedhe holders of Series B are entitled to biel jpaior to payment of holders of Series
The remaining assets, if any, shall be distribaedng common stockholders.

As of December 31, 2013, the carrying valfithe preferred stock has not been adjusted tigitidation redemption value as an event
would trigger liquidation redemption is not consield probable.
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() Conversion Rights

Each share of convertible preferred statkhe option of the holder, is convertible at &imye into the number of shares of common s
(adjusted to reflect stock dividends, stock sglitsl recapitalization) that results from dividing tbriginal issue price by the conversion pric
effect at the time of the conversion. The initiar ghare conversion price of the Series A, Serias®C convertible preferred stock is $2
$20.49 and $14.671 per share, respectively, angcutn adjustment in accordance with antidilutfmovisions contained in the Compal
Articles of Incorporation.

If not previously converted at the optidrttee holder, the conversion of the convertiblefemed stock is automatic and will be conve
at the then applicable conversion prices upon #ukee of any of the following events: (i) affirmeg¢ election of the holders of at least 659
the then outstanding shares of the convertibleepred stock on an ageonverted basis, or (ii) the closing of a firmnamitment underwritte
public offering based on an effective registratgtatement under the Securities Act of 1933 fori$iseance of common stock. The sbar
price must be at least 200% of the Series C puechase resulting in the aggregate proceeds rdieed the offering of at least greater tl
$35,000 or (iii) consent of holders of at least 66Pthe then outstanding shares of the converplééerred stock, on an #sconverted basis,
connection with any mandatory conversion, as pilesdrin the Certificate of Incorporation, in whithe current fair market value of 1
Company's Common Stock exceeds the Series C parghie or (iv) upon the consent of the holderstolieast 65% of the then outstanc
shares of the convertible preferred stock, on aifi @nverted basis, including the consent of alkkholders that hold in excess of 19% of
then outstanding shares of the preferred stochkeoClompany.

(g) Stock Option Plan

In April 2007, the Company adopted the 2B@juity Incentive Plan, or 2007 Plan. The 2007 Rlaovides for the granting of stock optit
to employees, directors and consultants of the @GompOptions granted under the 2007 Plan may eileeincentive stock options
nonstatutory stock options. Incentive stock optiarsiSO, may be granted only to Company employBesistatutory stock options, or NS
may be granted to all eligible recipients. A ta&l1,690,448 shares of the Company's common staark weserved for issuance for the Z
Plan.

Options under the 2007 Plan may be grafatederiods of up to ten years as determined byBib&rd of Directors, provided, however,
(i) the exercise price of an ISO shall not be tess 100% of the estimated fair value of the sharethe date of grant, and (ii) the exercise |
of an ISO granted to a more than 10% shareholddl bt be less than 110% of the estimated faineaf the shares on the date of grant
NSO has no such exercise price limitations. Théooptgenerally vest on a strai-lined basis over the requisite service period af fgears fa
the award. The vesting provisions of individualiops may vary but provide for vesting of at leas¥2per year.
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As of December 31, 2014, pursuant to th@72Blan, there were 1,631,922 shares of commork séserved and no shares of comi
stock available for future grants.

Our board of directors adopted our 2014ifgdacentive Plan, or 2014 Plan, in July 2014, ad stockholders approved the 2014 Ple
October 2014. The 2014 Plan became effective upamtetion of the IPO, at which time the Companyseebmaking awards under the 2
Plan. Under the 2014 Plan, the Company may issOg¢ N&SOs, stock appreciation rights, restricted kstwards, restricted stock unit awe
and other forms of stock awards, or collectivelpck awards, all of which may be granted to empésyéncluding officers, noemploye:
directors and consultants of us and our affiliat8©s may be granted only to employees. A total, 027,500 shares of common stock v
initially reserved for issuance under the 2014 Psaibject to certain annual increases.

Options under the 2014 Plan may be grafatederiods of up to ten years as determined byBib&rd of Directors, provided, however,
(i) the exercise price of an ISO shall not be tess 100% of the estimated fair value of the sharethe date of grant, and (ii) the exercise |
of an ISO granted to a more than 10% shareholddl sbt be less than 110% of the estimated fainealf the shares on the date of grant
the option is not exercisable after the expiratbfive years from the date of grant. An NSO hassnoh exercise price limitations. The opti
generally vest on a straiglitted basis over the requisite service period of fgears for the award. The vesting provisionsndfiidual option
may vary but provide for vesting of at least 25% year.

As of December 31, 2014, pursuant to th&42Plan, there were 1,027,500 shares of commork sexerved and 986,138 share
common stock available for future grants.

The following summarizes all option actvitnder the 2007 and 2014 Plan:

Weighted
average
Weighted remaining
average contractual
Option Shares exercise price term(years)
Balances at December 31, 2( 1,409,04 $ 2.67
Granted 26,35¢ 3.8C
Exercisec (3,02%) 3.41
Forfeited (10,069 3.9¢
Balances at December 31, 2( 1,422,31 $ 2.67 5.7¢€
Granted 266,06 12.72
Exercisec (12,900 2.9¢
Forfeited (20,57%) 5.5t
Balances at December 31, 2( 1,654,900 $ 4.2t 5.4¢
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 1,654,900 $ 4.2° 5.4¢
Vested and exercisable at December 31, @ 1,245,50! $ 2.54 4.4z

The weighted average grant date fair valustock options granted to employees and directarig the years ended December 31, .
and 2013 was $6.82 and $1.90 per share, respsctBtckbased compensation expense for the years endednbec8l, 2014, 2013 a
2012 was $560, $342 and $357,
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respectively. Tax benefits arising from the dispioni of certain shares issued upon exercise okstptions within two years of the date
grant or within one year of the date of exerciseh®yoption holder, or Disqualifying Dispositiomsovide the Company with a tax deduc
equal to the difference between the exercise @ik the fair market value of the stock on the aditexercise. When realized, those ex
windfall tax benefits are credited to additionaldpa capital. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, thexee total unrecognized compensa
costs of $1,898 and $723, respectively, relatethése stock options. The expense is recorded willénoperating expense captions in
statement of operations based on the employeewireg¢he awards. As of December 31, 2014, thes¢scare expected to be recognized o
weighted average period of 2.84 years.

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock amiis calculated as the difference between theciseeprice of the stock options and the
value of the Company's common stock for those stgtions that had exercise prices lower than thhevédue of the Company's common stc
The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options eised was $176 and $1 during the years ended Deze3ib2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company estimated the fair value oflstoptions using the Blac&eholes option valuation model. The fair value wipoyee stoc
options is being amortized on a straifihe basis over the requisite service period ofaherds. The fair value of employee stock optioas
estimated using the following assumptions:

Year ended December 31

2014 2013
Expected term (in year 5.77 to 6.0¢ 6.08
Expected volatility 52% to 57% 56%
Risk-free interest rat 1.71% to 2.00% 1.00% to 1.76Y

Dividend yield — —

The expected term of employee stock optioiskfree interest rate and volatility represents thégiwed average, based on grant
period, which the stock options are expected toarermutstanding. The Company utilized the simpdifiaethod to estimate the expected 1
of the options pursuant to ASC Subtopic 7IBfor all option grants to employees. The expegtddtility is based upon historical volatilitie$
an index of a peer group because it is not prduticeo make a reasonable estimate of the Companlasility. The riskfree interest rate
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effedhattime of the grant for periods correspondinthviine expected term of the option.
dividend yield assumption is based on the Compdngtsry and expectation of dividend payouts. Tlen@any has never declared or paid
cash dividends on its common stock, and the Compdarg not anticipate paying any cash dividendherféreseeable future.

As stockbased compensation expense recognized in the Cgadatement of operations is based on awardsatiily expected to ve
the amount has been reduced for estimated forésituforfeitures were estimated based on the Cortgpdaistorical experience and fut
expectations.

For purposes of financial accounting farcktbased compensation, the Company has determinddithalues of its options based in |
on the work of a third-party valuation specialishe determination of stodkased compensation is inherently uncertain andestibg an
involves the application of
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valuation models and assumptions requiring theofigedgment. If the Company had made different agsions, its stoclbased compensati
expense, and its net loss could have been significdifferent.

(h) Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company's board of directors adopted2thil4 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or ESPP|yir20a4, and the stockholders appra
the ESPP in October 2014. The ESPP allows eligibiployees to purchase shares of the Company's comstook at a discount throu
payroll deductions of up to 15% of their eligiblenegpensation, subject to any plan limitations. TIS#E provides offering periods not to exc
27 months, and each offering period will includeghase periods, which will be the approximatelyrsianth period commencing with ¢
exercise date and ending with the next exercise, dadcept that the first offering period commenoedthe first trading day following tl
effective date of the Company's registration statgimEmployees are able to purchase shares at 88% wer of the fair market value of-
Company's common stock on the first trading daghefoffering period or on the exercise date. Theler of shares available for sale ur
the 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan will be asmé annually on the first day of each fiscal yegual to the lesser of i) 1% of the t
outstanding shares of the Company's common stook e last day of the immediately preceding fisazar; ii) 3,000,000 shares of comn
stock, or iii) such lesser amount as determinethbyBoard of Directors.

At December 31, 2014, no purchase has beste and 255,500 shares were available for fusswance under the ESPP. In 2014
Company recorded $34 of stock-based expense ratated ESPP.

The Company estimated the fair value of leyge stock purchase rights using the Bl&dholes model. The fair value of employee s
purchase right is being amortized on a stralgifg-basis over the requisite service period. Tdievalue of employee stock purchase right
estimated using the following assumptions:

Year ended
December 31, 2014
Expected term (in year 0.63 10 2.1¢
Expected volatility 43% to 44%
Risk-free interest rat 0.08% to 0.49%

Dividend yield —
(9) Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Operating Lease Commitment

In August 2013, the Company entered intous month warehouse lease in Santa Barbara, @aifocommencing on September 1, 2
This operating lease is used for additional geneffade, warehouse, and research and developméid.l@ase was renewed on Decembe
2013 for an additional six months, and was reneagadn in June 2014 for an additional 12 months.

In March 2014, the Company entered int® a®nth lease agreement in Santa Barbara, Cakiforiie operating lease is for general o
use only and commenced on July 1, 2014.
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The terms of the facility lease provide fental payments on a graduated scale. The Comaagnizes rent expense on a stralgtd-
basis over the lease term. Rent expense for ths geded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $328,and $376, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014, future minimurrsepayments under all non-cancelable operatingdea® as follows:

Years ending December &

2015 $ 50C
2016 40C
2017 402
2018 41E
2019 and thereaftt 49¢

$ 2,217

(b) Contingencies

The Company is subject to claims and agsests from time to time in the ordinary course o$iness. The Company accrues a liat
for such matters when it is probable that futurpesxditures will be made and such expenditures eareéisonably estimated. There wer
contingent liabilities requiring accrual as of Dedeer 31, 2014.

On March 27, 2012, Mentor Worldwide LLC (Mer), a wholly owned subsidiary of Johnson & Jaimsdiled thirteen lawsuits agai
fifteen employees of the Company (all former Mergorployees) and, on June 8, 2012, filed a fourtekwsuit against the Company anc
additional employee. In general, these fourteerslats alleged that the former employees of Menteabhed their confidentiality and non-
compete agreements when they resigned in favompfayment with the Company; misappropriated configg Mentor information and tra
secrets; and breached their respective dutiesyafitio Although not a party to thirteen employewdaits, the Company provided for
defense of its employees in the lawsuits. In theleyee lawsuits, all of Mentor's claims for Prelirary Injunctive Relief were denie
Following that, some of the employee lawsuits wdismissed with prejudice and others dismissed witlpoejudice. On October 3, 2013,
last of the thirteen employee lawsuits was disndisse

In the sole lawsuit against the Compang,Glompany and its employee prevailed at trial wéldicts of "no liability" rendered by the jt
and judge. Final judgment in this case was entere@ctober 3, 2013 with the plaintiff ordered tonburse defendants for certain court c«
and in 2014, Mentor waived its right to appeal.

In 2012, the Company filed a claim with tHartford Insurance Company (Hartford) for reimtment of legal costs incurred
connection with litigation with Mentor. The Compahglds a D&O insurance policy with Hartford, ane tBompany and Hartford settled
matter in May 2014. The Company received settlerpagients from Hartford of $2,358 and $351 forybhars ended December 31, 2014
2013, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

The following tables set forth our unauditguarterly statements of operations data in doldand as a percentage of revenue and ot
metrics for each of the eight quarters ended Deeerdb, 2014. We have prepared the quarterly data oansistent basis with the aud
financial statements included in this report. la tpinion of management, the financial informatiefiects all necessary adjustments, consi
only of normal recurring adjustments, necessaryafdair presentation of this data. This informat&hould be read in conjunction with
audited financial statements and related notesidieci elsewhere in this report. The results of hisdbperiods are not necessarily indicativ

the results of operations for a full year or antfa period.

2014

Net sales

Gross profit

Net loss

Net loss per shar
Basic and dilute

2013

Net sales

Gross profit

Net loss

Net loss per shar
Basic and dilutes

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
$ 10,22¢ $ 11,71¢ $ 10,67C $ 12,11¢
7,654 8,83¢ 7,83¢ 8,90:
(959) (209) (1,452) (3,197
$ (459 $ (100 $ (6.9 $ (0.3

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
$ 8,461 $ 947¢ $ 7,981 $ 9,25(
6,48¢ 7,07( 6,01: 7,01C
(4,112 (5,469 (6,475 (3,079
$ (1485 $ (2265 $ (3145 $  (14.89
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(In thousands)

Additions
Balance at charged to Balance at
beginning of costs and end of
period expense: Deductions(1) period
Year ended December 31, 2012 Allowan
for sales return $ 95 $§ 27,88: $ (23,645 $ 4,33/
Year ended December 31, 2013 Allowanc
for sales return $ 4,332 $ 93,76¢ $ (89,83) $ 8,27(
Year ended December 31, 2014 Allowan
for sales return $ 8,27C $ 110,03 $ (108,28Y) $ 10,01¢

(1)  Amounts represent actual sales retu
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registrant has duly caused this report
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Date: March 18, 201 SIENTRA, INC.

By: /sl HANI ZEINI

Hani Zeini
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, thatleperson whose signature appears below constantappoints Hani Zeini a
Matthew Pigeon, and each of them, as his true antll attorneys-irfact and agents, with full power of substitutiom fém, and in his name
any and all capacities, to sign any and all amemdsni® this Annual Report on Form kKQ-and to file the same, with exhibits thereto artite!
documents in connection therewith, with the U.ScuBigies and Exchange Commission, granting untd s#tiorneys-irfact and agents, a
each of them, full power and authority to do andgren each and every act and thing requisite armessary to be done therewith, as fully t
intents and purposes as he or she might or couliesh gg@rson, hereby ratifying and confirming all ttisaid attorneys-ifiact and agents, a
either of them, his substitute or substitutes, taamfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SeesriExchange Act of 1934, as amended, this repmtheen signed below by the follow
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in theatga and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ HANI ZEINI President, Chief Executive Officer a

Director (Principal Executive Officer)

March 18, 201!

Hani Zeini
/sl MATTHEW PIGEON Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and March 18, 201!
Matthew Pigeor Accounting Officer)
/s/ NICHOLAS SIMON
Director March 18, 201!
Nicholas Simor
/s/ RISHI GUPTA
Director March 18, 201!
Rishi Gupte
/s/ TIMOTHY HAINES
Director March 18, 201!

Timothy Haines
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Name Title

/s/ R. SCOTT GREER

Director
R. Scott Gree
/s KEVIN O'BOYLE
Director
Kevin O'Boyle
/s/ JEFFREY NUGENT
Director

Jeffrey Nugen

Date

March 18, 201!

March 18, 201!

March 18, 201!
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit SEC File Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form No. Exhibit Filing Herewith
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of S1/A 3334198837 3.2 October 20, 2014
Incorporation of the Registra
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the S41/A 3334198837 3.4 October 20, 2014
Registrant
4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate of the S-1/A 3334198837 4.1 October 20, 2014
Registrant
4.2 Conversion and Amendment Agreement by S-1/A 333198837 411 October 20, 2014
and among the Registrant and certain of its
stockholders, dated October 10, 20
4.2  Amended and Restated Investor Rights S-1 333198837 4.2 September, 19 2014
Agreement, dated March 28, 2012, by and
among Sientra, Inc., and the investors and
stockholders party theret
4.4 Warrant to Purchase Stock issued to Ox S-1 333198837 4.3 September, 19 2014
Finance LLC, dated January 17, 20
4.5 Warrant to Purchase Stock issued to Ox S-1 333198837 4.4 September, 19 2014
Finance LLC, dated January 17, 20
4.€ Warrant to Purchase Stock issued to Ox S-1 333198837 4.5 September, 19 2014
Finance LLC, dated August 1, 20:
4.7 Warrant to Purchase Stock issued to Ox S-1 333198837 4.6 September, 19 2014
Finance LLC, dated August 1, 20:
4.€ Warrant to Purchase Stock issued to Ox S-1 333198837 4.7 September, 19 2014
Finance LLC, dated December 13, 20
4.¢  Warrant to Purchase Stock issued to Ox S-1 333198837 4.8 September, 19 2014
Finance LLC, dated December 13, 20
10.3# Form of Indemnity Agreement by and S-1 333198837 10.1 September, 19 2014
between Sientra, Inc. and its directors and
officers.
10.2# 2007 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended, and S-1 333198837 10.2 September, 19 2014
forms of award agreements thereun:
10.3# 2014 Equity Incentive Plan and forms of S1/A 333198837 10.3 October 20, 2014
award agreements thereunc
10.4¢ 2014 Non-Employee Director Compensation S-1 333198837 104 September, 19 2014
Policy.
10.5# 2014 Employee Stock Purchase P S-1/A 333198837 10.5 October 20, 201
10.€  Multi-Purpose Commercial Building Lease,  S-1 333198837 10.6 September, 19 2014
dated March 28, 2014, by and between
Sientra, Inc. and Fairview Business
Center, L.P
10.7 Amended and Restated Loan and Security ~ S-1 333198837 10.7 September, 19 2014
Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2014, by and
between Sientra, Inc. and Oxford
Finance LLC.
10.&+ Amended and Restated Exclusivity S41/A 3334198837 10.8 October, 20 2014

Agreement, dated April 4, 2007, by and
between Sientra, Inc. (formerly, Juliet
Medical, Inc.) and Silimed Industria de

Implantes Ltda. (formerly, Silimed-Silicone e

Instrumental Medico-Cirugio e
Hospitalar Ltda.)
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Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by Reference

SEC File
Exhibit Description Form No. Exhibit

Filing

Filed
Herewith

10.¢

10.1C

10.1%

10.12#

10.1%#

10.14#

10.1%#

10.1¢#

10.1#

10.1¢#

16.1

24.1

31.1

31.z

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated S-1 333198837 10.9
Exclusivity Agreement, dated May 12, 2010,

by and between Sientra, Inc. (formerly, Juliet

Medical, Inc.) and Silimed Industria de

Implantes Ltda. (formerly, Silimed-Silicone e

Instrumental Medico-Cirugio e

Hospitalar Ltda.)

Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated S-1 333198837 10.10
Exclusivity Agreement, dated November 8,

2013, by and between Sientra, Inc. (formerly,

Juliet Medical, Inc.) and Silimed Industria de

Implantes Ltda. (formerly, Silimed-Silicone e

Instrumental Medico-Cirugio e

Hospitalar Ltda.)

Offer Letter to R. Scott Greer, dated July 9, S-1 333198837 10.11
2014.

Offer Letter to Kevin O'Boyle, dated July 9,  S-1 333198837 10.12
2014.

Offer Letter to Jeffrey Nugent, dated July 9, S-1 333198837 10.13
2014.

2014 Employee Stock Purchase P S-1/A 333198837 10.5

Amended and Restated Employment S1/A 333198837 10.14
Agreement by and between Sientra, Inc. and
Hani Zeini, dated October 15, 20:

Amended and Restated Employment S1/A 333198837 10.15
Agreement by and between Sientra, Inc. and
Matthew Pigeon, dated October 15, 2C

Amended and Restated Employment S41/A 3334198837 10.16
Agreement by and between Sientra, Inc. and
Joel Smith, dated October 15, 20

Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement by and between Sientra, Inc. and
Charles Huiner, dated February 1, 2C

Letter from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to S-1/A 3334198837 16.1
the Securities and Exchange Commission,
dated October 9, 201

List of significant subsidiaries of the S-1 333198837 211
registrant

Consent of KPMG LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firr

Power of Attorney (included in signature pi
to this Annual Report on Form -K).

Certification of Principal Executive Officer
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended

September, 19 2014

September, 19 2014

September, 19 2014

September, 19 2014

September, 19 2014

October 20, 201

October 20, 2014

October 20, 2014

October 20, 2014

October 9, 2014

September 19, 2014
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Number Exhibit Description Form No. Exhibit Filing Herewith
32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer X

pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.z Certification of Principal Financial Officer X
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

101.IN$* XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
Document.

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
Linkbase Documen

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
Linkbase Documen

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
Document.

101.PRI XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
Linkbase Documen

+ Confidential treatment has been granted with rdspetertain portions of this exhibit. Omitted ports have been filed separately with the SEC.
# Indicates management contract or compensatory péantract, or agreement.
* XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) imiation is furnished and not filed herewith, is @mopart of a registration statement or prospectu

purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securitiesoh&933, is deemed not filed for purposes of secti8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ahémwise i:
not subject to liability under these sectic







Exhibit 10.18
SIENTRA, INC.

AMENDED AND RESTATED
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

Charles Huiner

This Amended and Restated Executive Employment ékgemt (the “Agreement”), made between Sientra, Inc. (the
Company”) and Charles Huiner (Executive”) (collectively, the “Parties”), is effective as of February 1, 2015 (thEffective
Date ”) and amends and restates the prior employment kgterement between the Company and Executive dataghry 1:
2014.

WHEREAS , the Company desires to continue to employ Exeeytursuant to the terms, provisions and condits®
forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS , Executive desires to accept and continue his @mnpgnt on the terms, provisions and condition$at in
this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the promises and the mutoaknants herein contained, the Parties he
agree as follows:

1. Employment by the Company.

1.1 Position. Executive shall continue to serve as Chief Stsatend Corporate Development Offic
During the term of Executive’s employment with thempany, Executive will devote Executisailigent efforts and substantie
all of Executives business time and attention to the businesseo€timpany, except for approved vacation periodseasbnab
periods of iliness or other incapacities permitigdhe Company’s general employment policies.

1.2 Duties and Location. Executive shall perform such duties as are requby the Compang’ Chie
Executive Officer, to whom Executive will reporExecutive’s primary office location shall be the manys Santa Barba
office. The Company reserves the right to reasignedqjuire Executive to perform Executigeduties at places other tl
Executives primary office location from time to time, and tequire reasonable business travel. Executivel stealote
substantially all of Executive’s business time atténtion to the performance of Executséuties hereunder and shall not en
in any other business, profession or occupatiortdonpensation or otherwise that would conflictrdeifere with the rendition
such services, either directly or indirectprovidedthat nothing in this Agreement shall preclude Exieufrom (i) managin
personal investments, (ii) serving on civic or dadle boards or committees, (iii) engaging in bass or professional activit
for compensation from a third party, for 40 or fevmeurs per calendar year, so long as such aesvdb not compete with 1
Company, and (iv) with the prior approval from tGhief Executive Officer or Chairman of the Boarat(ho be unreasonat
withheld or delayed), serving on the board of dwex of other forprofit companies that do not compete with the Camgpac
long as all such activities described in clausgth(ough (iv) herein do not materially interferégwthe performance of Executiwe’
duties and responsibilities under this Agreement.

1.3 Policies and Procedures. The employment relationship between the Partiedl e governed by tl
general employment policies and practices of then@my, except that when the terms of this Agreerdéfdr from or are i
conflict with the Company’s general employment i@l or practices, this Agreement shall control.

1.




2. Compensation.

2.1 Salary. As of the Effective Date, Executiwebase salary is payable at the annualized ra$2&8,00!
per year (the “Base Salary”), subject to standard payroll deductions and withinglsl and payable in accordance with
Company’s regular payroll schedule.

2.2 Bonus. Effective as of October 2014, Executive will Bigible for an annual discretionary bonus of

to 45% of Executive’s Base Salary (th@drget Bonus™), with the actual bonus amount (thédfhinual Bonus”) determined b

the Compensation Committee of the Board of Direct¢the “Board ") (or a subcommittee thereof) (theCommittee ) base:

upon achievement of the performance goals est&olibly the Committee. Whether Executive receiveramual Bonus for ar

given year, and the amount of any such Annual Bowilsbe determined by the Committee in its soigeccetion based upon 1

Company’s and Executive’achievement of objectives and milestones to bermined on an annual basis by the Commi

Executive must remain an active employee throughetid of any given calendar year in order to earArmnual Bonus for th

year and any such bonus will be paid prior to Fetyrd5 of the year following the year in which Extree’s right to such amou

became vested. Executive will not be eligible #ord will not earn, any Annual Bonus (includingrarpted bonus) if Executive’
employment terminates for any reason before theoétite calendar year, except as expressly contgagpin Section 6 below.

3. Standard Company Benefits. Executive shall be entitled to participate in ethployee benefit programs
which Executive is eligible under the terms anddittons of the benefit plans that may be in effecin time to time and provid
by the Company to its employees. The Company vesédhe right to cancel or change the benefit ptaimsograms it offers to |
employees at any time.

4. Paid Time Off. Executive shall be entitled to accrue and use paid off in accordance with the terms of
Company’s policies and practices.

5. Expenses.The Company will reimburse Executive for reasonataleel, entertainment or other expenses inc
by Executive in furtherance or in connection witte tperformance of Executive’duties hereunder, in accordance with
Company’s expense reimbursement policy as in effent time to time.

6. Termination of Employment; Severance.

6.1 At-Will Employment. Executive’s employment relationship isveitt. Either Executive or the Compa
may terminate the employment relationship at amgtiwith or without Cause or advance notice.

6.2 Termination; Resignation; Death or Disability.

(a) The Company may terminate Executve&mployment with the Company at any time wit
without Cause (as defined below). Further, Exeeuthay resign at any time, with or without Good $®a(as defined below
Executive’s employment with the Company may alstelinated due to Executive’s death or disability.

(b) Except as provided in Section 6.3 and Section &ldvy if Executive resigns or the Comp.
terminates Executive’s employment, or upon Exeeldivleath or disability, then (i) Executive will nanger vest in any equ
awards, (ii) all payments of compensation by then@any to Executive hereunder will terminate immusdia (except as -
amounts already earned), and (iii) Executive




will not be entitled to any severance benefitsadidition, Executive shall resign from all posisosind terminate any relationst
as an employee, advisor, officer or director with Company and any of its affiliates, each effectim the date of termination.

6.3 Termination without Cause. In the event Executive’employment with the Company is terminate:
the Company without Cause (and other than as regutteath or disability), then provided such teration constitutes
“separation from service” (as defined under TreafRegulation Section 1.4092¢h), without regard to any alternative definif
thereunder, a Separation from Service”), and provided that Executive remains in compliandh e terms of this Agreeme
the Company shall provide Executive with the folilogvseverance benefits (collectively, thEéverance Benefits):

@) The Company shall pay Executive, an amount equalinie (9) months of Executive’s then:
current Base Salary paid in equal installmentshenGompanys normal payroll schedule over the nine month geimomediatel
following the date of Separation from Service.

(b) Provided that Executive timely elects continuedetage under COBRA, the Company shall
Executive’s COBRA premiums to continue Executiveerage (including coverage for eligible depensleiitapplicable) (*
COBRA Premiums ") through the period (the COBRA Premium Period ”) starting on the Executive’Separation from Servi
and ending on the earliest to occur of: (i) ningn@nths following Executive’ Separation from Service; (ii) the date Execl
becomes eligible for group health insurance cowethgough a new employer; or (iii) the date Exaauteases to be eligible
COBRA continuation coverage for any reason, inelgdilan termination. In the event Executive becoomered under anaotl
employers group health plan or otherwise cease to be #&idgdys COBRA during the COBRA Premium Period, Ex@& mus
immediately notify the Company of such event. Ntitaianding the foregoing, if the Company determiiredéts sole discretio
that it cannot pay the COBRA Premiums without assasitial risk of violating applicable law (includinwithout limitation
Section 2716 of the Public Health Service Act), @@mpany shall in lieu thereof provide to Executveaxable monthly payme
in an amount equal to the monthly COBRA premiunt Ereecutive would be required to pay to continueéxrives group heall
coverage in effect on the date of Executveinployment termination (which amount shall beedasn the premium for the fi
month of COBRA coverage), which payments shall laglenon the last day of each month regardless ofheh&xecutive elec
COBRA continuation coverage and shall end on thiéeeaf (x) the date upon which Executive obtasther employment
(y) the last day of the® calendar month followitxecutive’s Separation from Service date.

6.4 Termination in Connection with Change in Control. If Executive is terminated without Cause (
other than as result of death or disability) or &xeve resigns for Good Reason immediately priothi closing of a Change
Control (as defined below) or within twelve (12) mtlas following the closing of a Change of Contmalch termination qualifies
a Separation from Service, and provided that Exesuémains in compliance with the terms of thigéement, then (a) Execut
will be entitled to all of the Severance Benefiteyided for in Section 6.3 above, and (b) 100% lbfo& Executive’'s then-
outstanding unvested Company equity awards willkelecate and will be deemed vested and exercisablef é&Executives
Separation from Service.

7. Conditions to Receipt of Severance Benefits.The receipt of the Severance Benefits provideBeation 6.3 ar
Section 6.4 above will be subject to Executive isigrand not revoking a separation agreement amésel of claims in a for
reasonably satisfactory to the Company (ti&eparation Agreement”’) within the time period set forth therein, which kmept
exceed 50 days from the date of Executive’s Separfiom Service (the Release Period). No Severance Benefits will be p
or




provided until the Separation Agreement becomesctffe. If the Release Period described in thequlimg sentence spans
calendar years, then payment of Severance Benélfitn any event commence in the second calendar.yExecutive shall al
resign from all positions and terminate any relahips as an employee, advisor, officer or direafitih the Company and any
its affiliates, each effective on the date of teration.

8. Section 409A. It is intended that all of the severance begefitd other payments payable under this Agree
satisfy, to the greatest extent possible, the exemp from the application of Code Section 409Avmed under Treasu
Regulations 1.409A-1(b)(4), 1.409A-1(b)(5) and BAAL(b)(9), and this Agreement will be construed te treatest exte
possible as consistent with those provisions, arttid extent no so exempt, this Agreement (anddefipitions hereunder) will
construed in a manner that complies with Sectid®40For purposes of Code Section 409A (includwghout limitation, fo
purposes of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A¢2J6))), Executive’s right to receive any installment payments untié
Agreement (whether severance payments, reimburgsmemtherwise) shall be treated as a right teiveca series of separ
payments and, accordingly, each installment payrherdunder shall at all times be considered a agpand distinct paymer
Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary instiAgreement, if Executive is deemed by the Companhyhe time ¢
Executive’s Separation from Service to be a “spediemployee’for purposes of Code Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i), &nahy of the
payments upon Separation from Service set forteihend/or under any other agreement with the Compae deemed to
“deferred compensationthen to the extent delayed commencement of anyopart such payments is required in order to awa
prohibited distribution under Code Section 409AZ(B)(i) and the related adverse taxation undeiti®@d09A, such paymer
shall not be provided to Executive prior to thelieat of (i) the expiration of the simonth period measured from the dat
Executive’s Separation from Service with the Comypdi) the date of Executive’ death or (iii) such earlier date as perm
under Section 409A without the imposition of adeetaxation. Upon the first business day followihg expiration of such tin
period, all payments deferred pursuant to this gtaph shall be paid in a lump sum to Executive, amgdremaining payments ¢
shall be paid as otherwise provided herein or énapplicable agreement. No interest shall be duengramounts so deferred.

9. Parachute Payments.If any payment or benefit (including payments aeddfits pursuant to this Agreeme
that Executive would receive in connection with lza@ge in Control from the Company or otherwis@@dnsaction Payment”)
would (i) constitute a “parachute paymentithin the meaning of Section 280G of the Code, éndut for this sentence,
subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 49the Code (the “Excise Tax”), then the Company shall cause tc
determined, before any amounts of the Transactaymieént are paid to Service Provider, which of tlting two alternativ
forms of payment would result in Service Provide®geipt, on an aftealx basis, of the greater amount of the Transe
Payment notwithstanding that all or some portiothef Transaction Payment may be subject to thesExtax: (1) payment in fi
of the entire amount of the Transaction PaymeftKall Payment”), or (2) payment of only a part of the TransactiogrRant s
that Service Provider receives the largest payrpessible without the imposition of the Excise Tax‘(Reduced Payment').
For purposes of determining whether to make a Palyiment or a Reduced Payment, the Company shalé daube taken in
account all applicable federal, state and locabiime and employment taxes and the Excise Tax (afipated at the highe
applicable marginal rate, net of the maximum reiducin federal income taxes which could be obtaiftech a deduction of su
state and local taxes). If a Reduced Payment teen(&) Executive shall have no rights to any addél payments and/or bene
constituting the Transaction Payment, and (y) redoan payments and/or benefits shall occur in itienner that results in t
greatest economic benefit to Executive as detemninghis paragraph. If more than one method diicdon will result in th
same economic benefit, the portions of the Trammadayment shall be reduced pro ratdnless Executive and the Comp
otherwise agree in writing, any determination regghiunder this section shall be made in writinghsy Companys independe
public accountants (theAccountants”),




whose determination shall be conclusive and bindipgn Executive and the Company for all purpodes. purposes of maki
the calculations required by this section, the Agtants may make reasonable assumptions and ap@tioms concernir
applicable taxes and may rely on reasonable, gaitidifterpretations concerning the applicatioisettions 280G and 4999 of
Code. Executive and the Company shall furnishh® Accountants such information and documents @sAdtountants m
reasonably request in order to make a determinatnmier this section. The Company shall bear atscthe Accountants m
reasonably incur in connection with any calculagiaontemplated by this section as well as any éostsred by Executive wi
the Accountants for tax planning under Sectiong280d 4999 of the Code.

10. Definitions.

10.1 Cause. For purposes of this AgreemefiGause” for termination will mean: (a) Executivse'willful
failure substantially to perform his duties andpassibilities to the Company or willful, materialolation of a policy of th
Company; (b) Executive’ commission of any act of fraud, embezzlementiatiesty or any other willful misconduct that
caused or is reasonably expected to result in mhirjury to the Company; (c) Executivewillful breach of any of his obligatio
under any written agreement or covenant with they@any; (d) Executives material and willful violation of a federal oagt lav
or regulation applicable to the business of the gamy; and (e) Executive’s conviction or plea ofliyudr no contest to a felony.

10.2 Change in Control. For purposes of this AgreemetiChange in Control” shall have the meani
provided in the Company’s 2014 Equity IncentiverPla

10.3 Good Reason.For purposes of this Agreement, Executive shalehaGood Reason’ for resignatio
from employment with the Company if any of the daling actions are taken by the Company without Htee's affirmative
prior written consent to such adverse change (whpstifically acknowledges Executigewaiver of the Good Reason condi
with respect to the individual action that woulchetwise form the basis of a resignation for Googadee): (a) a mater
reduction in Executive’s base salary of 10% or mnréne aggregate during the tibnth period following the closing of a Cha
in Control; (b) a material reduction in Executivelaties (including responsibilities and/or authesd}, provided, howeverthat ¢
change in job position (including a change in Yigeall not be deemed a “material reduction” in ahdtself unless Executive’
new duties are materially reduced from the priaredy or (c) relocation of Executiv@principal place of employment to a pl
that increases Executive's one-way commute by rtie fifty (50) miles as compared to Executive'srtisurrent principal plac
of employment immediately prior to such relocatidn.order to resign for Good Reason, Executivetrpusvide written notice
the Companys Chief Executive Officer within 30 days after tfirst occurrence of the event giving rise to GooeaBon settir
forth the basis for Executiveresignation, allow the Company at least 30 days freceipt of such written notice to cure ¢
event, and if such event is not reasonably curékiinvsuch period, Executive must resign from akipons Executive then hol
with the Company not later than 60 days after ttgration of the cure period.

11. Proprietary Information Obligations. Regardless of the reason of Execusvgrmination of employment w
the Company, Executive will continue to comply witle Employee Confidentiality, Inventions and Naterference Agreeme
entered into in connection with the commencemelhiEmployment with the Company (th€bnfidentiality Agreement”) .

12. No Adverse Interests. Executive agrees not to acquire, assume or jte in, directly or indirectly, ai
position, investment or interest known to be adwers antagonistic to the Company, its businessrospgects, financial
otherwise.




13. Non-Solicitation. Executive agrees that during the period of emplaymeéth the Company and for twelve (.
months after the date Executiseemployment is terminated for any reason, Exeeutiill not, either directly or through othe
solicit or encourage or attempt to solicit or ememe any employee, independent contractor, or ¢tamswf the Company
terminate his or her relationship with the Companygrder to become an employee, consultant or ied@gnt contractor to or 1
any other person or entity.

14. Dispute Resolution. To ensure the timely and economical resolutionigputes that may arise in connection \
Executives employment with the Company, Executive and the@oy agree that any and all disputes, claimsaoses of actic
arising from or relating to the enforcement, bregoérformance, negotiation, execution, or integtieh of this Agreemer
Executive’s employment, or the termination of Exeais employment, including but not limited to statytataims, shall b
resolved to the fullest extent permitted by lawfimal, binding and confidential arbitration, by im@e arbitrator, in Los Angele
California, conducted by JAMS, Inc. JAMS ") under the then applicable JAMS rules (which cafooed at the following we
addresshttp://www.jamsadr.com/rulesclauses). By agreeing to this arbitration procedure, bBttecutive and the Compe
waive the right to resolve any such dispute throaglrial by jury or judge or administrative procesmd The Compar
acknowledges that Executive will have the righb&represented by legal counsel at any arbitrggroseeding. The arbitras
shall: (a) have the authority to compel adequadeodery for the resolution of the dispute and wa such relief as wol
otherwise be permitted by law; and (b) issue atemitarbitration decision, to include the arbitregoessential findings a
conclusions and a statement of the award. Theratdn shall be authorized to award any or all réie® that Executive or t
Company would be entitled to seek in a court of. [&ike Company shall pay all JAM&tbitration fees in excess of the amoul
court fees that would be required of the Executivihe dispute were decided in a court of law. Mg in this Agreement
intended to prevent either Executive or the Comgfamy obtaining injunctive relief in court to praveirreparable harm pendi
the conclusion of any such arbitration. Any awasdsrders in such arbitrations may be enteredemfidrced as judgments in-
federal and state courts of any competent jurigutict

15. General Provisions.

15.1 Notices. Any notices provided must be in writing and wikk deemed effective upon the earlie
personal delivery (including personal delivery lax)f or the next day after sending by overnightiegrto the Company at
primary office location and to Executive at the i@3$d as listed on the Company payroll.

15.2 Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agresmeéll be interpreted in such manne
to be effective and valid under applicable law, ibainy provision of this Agreement is held to beadlid, illegal or unenforceat
in any respect under any applicable law or rulany jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or enforceability will not affect ar
other provision or any other jurisdiction, but tiiigreement will be reformed, construed and enforicesuch jurisdiction to tt
extent possible in keeping with the intent of tlaeties.

15.3 Waiver. Any waiver of any breach of any provisions ofsttigreement must be in writing to
effective, and it shall not thereby be deemed tehsaived any preceding or succeeding breach ofdh® or any other provisi
of this Agreement.

15.4  Complete Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Confidential§greement, constitutes i
entire agreement between Executive and the Compahyegard to this subject matter. It superseegrevious agreements ¢
understandings between the parties with respetttetaubject matter hereof and is the completel, fared exclusive embodime
of the Parties’ agreement




with regard to this subject matter. This Agreemienéntered into without reliance on any promisgepresentation, written
oral, other than those expressly contained heegid, it supersedes any other such promises, warsaotirepresentations. T
Agreement cannot be modified or amended exceptritang signed by a duly authorized officer of tGempany.

15.5 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate cqante, any one of which need
contain signatures of more than one party, butfalthich taken together will constitute one andshene Agreement.

15.6 Headings. The headings of the paragraphs hereof are imksésteconvenience only and shall not
deemed to constitute a part hereof nor to affecthtieaning thereof.

15.7 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is intended to bind and inure He benefit of and |
enforceable by Executive and the Company, and tesjpective successors, assigns, heirs, executdradministrators, exce
that Executive may not assign any of his dutiegieder and he may not assign any of his rightsuineler without the writte
consent of the Company, which shall not be withlugiceasonably.

15.8 Tax Withholding and Indemnification. All payments and awards contemplated or made patdaahis
Agreement will be subject to withholdings of applite taxes in compliance with all relevant laws aedulations of a
appropriate government authorities. Executive askedges and agrees that the Company has neithee arey assurances
any guarantees concerning the tax treatment ofpagynents or awards contemplated by or made purdaathis Agreemen
Executive has had the opportunity to retain a takfinancial advisor and fully understands thedad economic consequence
all payments and awards made pursuant to the Agneem

15.9 Choice of Law. All questions concerning the construction, vajidind interpretation of this Agreem
will be governed by the laws of the State of Califa.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Parties have executed this Agreement onaheudd year first written above.
SIENTRA, INC.
By: /s/Hani Zeini

Hani Zeini
Founder and Chief Executive Officer

EXECUTIVE

/s/ Charles Huiner
Charles Huiner
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Sientra, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe registration statement (No. 333-199684fom S8 of Sientra, Inc. of our report da
March 18, 2015, with respect to the balance shafeBentra, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and 28a48,the related statements of operat
convertible preferred stock and stockholders' gqfgieficit), and cash flows for each of the yeardhe three year period ended Decembe
2014, and the related financial statement scheddiiEh report appears in the December 31, 2014&maport on Form 10-K of Sientra, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Woodland Hills, California
March 18, 2015
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Hani Zeini, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual reporform 10-K of Sientra, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a matixdalor omit to state a material fact neces
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madeisigiading with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldidh this report, fairly present in all mate
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyindiadr and | are responsible for establishing andntaaing disclosure controls and procedure:
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controts@mocedures, or caused such disclosure contrdigritedures to be designed undel
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of #mgistrant's disclosure controls and procedurespasskented in this report our conclusi
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contamid procedures, as of the end of the period coviyethis report based on st
evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any changethe registrant's internal control over financiaporting that occurred during
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the reaysts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the rgant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyindicdr and | have disclosed, based on our most tememuation of internal control over financ
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitacommittee of the registrant's board of direct¢os persons performing the equival
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and m@&l weaknesses in the design or operation ofriatecontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not materthht involves management or other employees whe hasignificant role in the registra
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 18, 2015 /sl HANI ZEINI

Hani Zeini
President and Chief Executive Offic







Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Matthew Pigeon, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual reporform 10-K of Sientra, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a matixdalor omit to state a material fact neces
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madeisigiading with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldidh this report, fairly present in all mate
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyindiadr and | are responsible for establishing andntaaing disclosure controls and procedure:
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controts@mocedures, or caused such disclosure contrdigritedures to be designed undel
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of #mgistrant's disclosure controls and procedurespasskented in this report our conclusi
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contamid procedures, as of the end of the period coviyethis report based on st
evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any changethe registrant's internal control over financiaporting that occurred during
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the reaysts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the rgant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyindicdr and | have disclosed, based on our most tememuation of internal control over financ
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitacommittee of the registrant's board of direct¢os persons performing the equival
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and m@&l weaknesses in the design or operation ofriatecontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not materthht involves management or other employees whe hasignificant role in the registra
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 18, 2015 /sl MATTHEW PIGEON

Matthew Pigeon
Chief Financial Officel







Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report ofr8ia, Inc. (the "Company") on Form XOfor the period ended December 31, 2014 as filed
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the ldateof (the "Report”), I, Hani Zeini, President a@tief Executive Officer of tt
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 3 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sesiaxiey Act of 2002, to my knowled
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSafction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangedk 1934, as amendt
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operatic
of the Company.

Date: March 18, 2015 /sl HANI ZEINI

Hani Zeini
President and Chief Executive Offic

A signed original of this written statemeatjuired by Section 906 has been provided to tthragainy and will be retained by the Comg
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosiomi®r its staff upon request.







Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report ofr8ia, Inc. (the "Company") on Form X0for the period ended December 31, 2014 as fileét
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thehdatof (the "Report"), I, Matthew Pigeon, Chief &igial Officer of the Company, certi
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipot$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @28 my knowledge that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangedhk 1934, as amendt
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operatic
of the Company.

Date: March 18, 2015 /sl MATTHEW PIGEON

Matthew Pigeot
Chief Financial Officel

A signed original of this written statemeatjuired by Section 906 has been provided to ttragainy and will be retained by the Comg
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionior its staff upon request.







